
 
 
 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MARCH 3, 2014 
7:00 PM MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 
 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 
 

Vision Statement 
 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, 
dynamic and diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2014-3114 approving the appointment of Sharon 
Carson-Small from temporary assistant utility billing clerk to full-time utility billing clerk. (Pgs.3-4)

 
2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2014-3115 adopting a revised Engineering Fee 

Schedule.  (Pgs. 5-8)
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2014-2770 vacating a portion of the Ninth Street 
right-of-way dedicated to the city between Industrial Parkway and Highway 219, creating utility 
easements, and creating an access easement.  (Pgs. 9-23)

 (Legislative Hearing) 
 

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 3, 2014) Page 1 of 2 

Page 1



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 3, 2014) Page 2 of 2 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion directing staff to develop an application to the state of Oregon for a 
designated enterprise zone.  (Pgs. 25-29)

 
2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2014-3116 adopting the Erosion and Sedimentation 

Control Manual and Standard Details.  (Pgs. 31-121)
 
3. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2014-3117 revising the Design Standards Manual 

and Standard Design Drawings.  (Pgs. 123-337)
 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
X. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Executive session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(a) relating to employment of a public officer, employee, 
staff member or individual agent – City Manager Recruitment. 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Recorder’s Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please 
dial 711. 
 
Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 4:30 p.m. on the preceding 
Wednesday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

Page 2

http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/192.html


 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3114 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 03, 2014 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX    Motion           Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2014-3114 

SUBJECT: Appointing Sharon Corson-Small from 
temporary assistant utility billing clerk to full-time 
utility billing clerk under the Finance Department  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director 
Dept.:  Finance 
File No.:  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the appointment of Sharon Corson-Small as a permanent full-time utility billing clerk under the 
Finance Department. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Newberg went out for a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) in April of 2013, with the intent of 
outsourcing the Utility Billing Department of the city.  Four bids were received, with only one qualifying.  
During the timeframe for collecting those requests, knowing her future position was in question, one of the 
existing employees in the utility billing department left to take a position with another city.  Since the 
decision hadn’t been made by the City Council to outsource, the vacant position needed to be filled.  A 
person was hired to fill that position on a temporary basis, as the proposal to outsource utility billing was 
still being prepared and had not come before the City Council for discussion.  
 
Through various circumstances, the recommendation to outsource the utility billing department was 
changed, and the City Council accepted the motion on October 7, 2013, to not outsource the utility billing 
department.  This meant that the temporary assistant utility billing position could become permanent.   
 
Between the hiring of the temporary position and the City Council’s decision to not outsource, the utility 
billing clerk’s position became vacant.  This allowed the city to move Sharon Corson-Small, who already 
had the qualifications required of the utility billing clerk, into the position of utility billing clerk. 
 
The City Charter, Chapter VIII, Section 34(h) provides the manager pro tem “has the authority and duties of 
manager, except that a Manager Pro Tem may appoint or remove employees only with council approval”. 
 
The City Manager Pro Tem Lee Elliott and Finance Director Janelle Nordyke have reviewed the material 
and approve the permanent hire of Sharon Corson-Small as full-time utility billing clerk.  The appointment 
is submitted to the council for their approval pursuant to the city charter as stated above. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Compensation for this position is in the adopted 2013-2014 Budget under 31-1320, Utility Billing. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
Changing this position from a temporary to a full-time position will provide continuity within the utility 
billing department. 

Page 3



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3114 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING SHARON CORSON-SMALL FROM 
TEMPORARY ASSISTANT UTILITY BILLING CLERK TO FULL-TIME 
UTILITY BILLING CLERK  

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. Reason for Vacancy:  The position became vacant on September 06, 2013, with the resignation of 

the incumbent. 
 
2. Posting:  A job advertisement was posted internally from January 31, 2014, and closed February 6, 

2014.  
 

3. Recommendation:  The finance director recommends Sharon Corson-Small for the position. 
 
4. Funding:  Position funding is within the 2013-2014 Budget. 
 
5. Manager Pro Tem Appointment:  Assistant City Manager Lee Elliott was appointed manager pro 

tem on August 26, 2013, by the city council.  He reviewed the material and appoints Sharon Corson-
Small, subject to council approval.  The City Charter, Chapter VIII, Section 34(h) provides the 
manager pro tem “has the authority and duties of manager, except that a manager pro tem may 
appoint or remove employees only with council approval”. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The city council approves the appointment by the city manager pro tem of Sharon Corson-Small as 
full-time utility billing clerk. 

 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 4, 2014. 
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 3rd day of March, 2014. 

 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 6th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3114 PAGE 1 

Page 4



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3115 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 3, 2014 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2014-3115 

SUBJECT:  A resolution to adopt the revised 
Engineering Fee Schedule.  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Jay Harris, City Engineer 
 Dept.: Engineering Services Department 
File No.:  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2014-3115 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
With the review and revision of the Engineering Standard Design Manual and the creation of the City 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Manual, it is necessary to update the Engineering Fee Schedule.  
 
The revised Fee Schedule includes fees for private development related efforts which have previously not 
been accounted for.  Currently, the time and costs incurred for these additional efforts have been funded by 
city rate payers instead of private development.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The revised Engineering Fee Schedule will enable the Engineering Services Department to recover the cost 
of staff time required to review and inspect public and private development projects.  The update to the fee 
schedule minimizes the impact to city rate payers by providing additional compensation to the Engineering 
Department for resources allocated to private development projects. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The fees collected for private development projects do not currently cover the costs incurred by the 
Engineering Services Department, including staff time. City Rate payers have subsidized the 
Engineering Department review and inspection tasks for private development projects. This revised fee 
schedule more accurately accounts for various services the Engineering Services Department services 
provided for private development projects.  The fee schedule also includes the additional fees that are 
needed for to the additional review and inspection tasks added in the adoption of Storm Water 
Ordinance, No. 2012-2274.

Page 5



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3115 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE REVISED ENGINEERING FEE 
SCHEDULE 

 
RECITALS: 

 
1. The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) required the City of Newberg on October 

17, 2006, to create a Willamette River Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan, 
which was subsequently approved by the Oregon DEQ on October 17, 2008, and adopted by the city 
council on December 1, 2008, through Resolution No. 2008-2820. 
 

2. On June 18, 2012 the Newberg city council adopted Ordinance No. 2012-2754, which included 
measures to control construction site runoff, illicit discharges into the stormwater system, and post-
construction stormwater runoff.  This ordinance was a requirement of the city’s TMDL 
Implementation Plan. 

 
3. As a result of the adopted stormwater ordinance, additional services are required to be provided by 

the engineering department for private development projects.  This updated fee schedule accounts 
for those additional tasks, as well as updates and adds fees for engineering services currently being 
provided to private development projects. 
 

4. Minor changes to the fee schedule may occur when deemed necessary by the city engineer, and will 
be approved using the city’s executive order process.  Major changes, as identified by the city 
manager, or designee, will be adopted by the city council. 
 

5. Permit fees should be adjusted annually to reflect changes in the costs of services. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The city council adopts the Engineering Fee Schedule as attached in Exhibit A, which by this 

reference incorporated, and replaces all previous adopted versions of this schedule. 
 

2. The city manager is authorized to amend the Engineering Fee Schedule by executive order annually 
to reflect changes in the consumer price index. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is:  March 4th, 2014. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 3rd day of March, 2014. 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 6th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3115 PAGE 1 

Page 6



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3115 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3115 PAGE 2 

 
ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

FEE SCHEDULE 

Base Additional Per Description 

 $50 Inspection  Re-Inspection, After 2 Failed Inspections 

5%   Construction 
costs estimate

 Site Development Permit for Public 
Improvements (refer to application form) 

$250.00 $5.00 Lot or Parcel Final Plat Review, Partition & Subdivision 

 $1.00 Square Foot Stormwater Fee in Lieu of Construction 
for Private Net New Impervious Surfaces  

 $1.50 Square Foot 
Stormwater Fee in Lieu of Construction 
for Public Street Net New Impervious 
Surfaces 

$150.00   
Right of Way/ Subsurface Permit,  
Franchise and Non Franchise Utility 
Providers 

$25.00 $0.25 Square Feet Sidewalk or Driveway Permit and 
Inspection 

 $30.00 Ramp Public Street ADA Ramp Review and 
Inspection 

$250.00 $10.00 Lot 
(after 20 lots) 

Planning Review, Partition & Subdivision  
(Type II/III applications) 

$350.00 200.00 
Additional 
Developed 

Acre 

Development Review for Public 
Improvements on Commercial, Industrial 
& Multifamily Developments  

$200.00   
Single Family Home Public Improvements 
Plan Review, Inspection, and Building 
Final Approval 

$250.00   Right of Way, Easement Dedication 
Review, or Encroachment Permit 

$300.00 $75.00 
Additional 
Developed 

Acre 

Private Facility Storm Drainage Plan 
Review and Final Inspection for Water 
Quality/ Quantity facilities 

$150.00   
Erosion Control Plan Review and 
Inspection                                             
(less than 5000 sq. ft. disturbed) 

Page 7



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3115 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3115 PAGE 3 

ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
FEE SCHEDULE 

Base Additional Per Description 

$350.00   
Erosion Control Plan Review and 
Inspection (5001 sq. ft. to less than 1 acre 
disturbed) 

$200.00   Water or Sanitary Sewer Service 
Hardship Application Requests 

$1200.00   Non-Franchise Utility Agreement 

Actual Cost 
of Services   

Outside Consultant Review or Inspection 
Services as required for Structural, 
Traffic, Geotechnical, or Biological 

$60.00 
(1 hr. min.) $60.00 Hour 

As-Built Research, GIS Mapping, Data 
Transmission, Conversion to CAD, 
Custom Web Map Development and 
Printing 

 
FOR PUBLIC RECORDS RESEARCH FEES CONTACT THE CITY RECORDER’S OFFICE 
AT (503) 537-1283 OR BY EMAIL AT CITYRECORDER@NEWBERGOREGON.GOV. 

Page 8

mailto:CITYRECORDER@NEWBERGOREGON.GOV


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 3, 2014 
Order       Ordinance  XX  Resolution        Motion        Information ___ 
No. No. 2014-2770 No. 

SUBJECT:  Vacation of the Ninth Street right-of-
way portion dedicated to the City between Industrial 
Parkway and Highway 219. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Steve Olson, Associate Planner 
Dept.: Planning & Building 
File No.: VAC-11-002 

 
HEARING TYPE:  LEGISLATIVE  QUASI-JUDICIAL  NOT APPLICABLE 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2014-2770 vacating the portion of the Ninth Street right-of-way dedicated to the 
city between Industrial Parkway and Highway 219, and creating utility easements and an access 
easement per the legal description and map exhibits.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The ordinance would vacate the Ninth Street right-of-way dedicated to the city between Industrial 
Parkway and Hwy 219. It would also create a public access easement and create utility easements for 
city and franchise utility lines. Ownership of the vacated area would revert to the original land owners 
(Airpark Properties and the Norman Family Trust).  
 
The proposed vacation was tentatively approved by the City Council on July 5, 2011. The vacation was 
then put on hold to allow the abutting property owners time to prepare surveys and other documents for 
the vacation. The City Council reopened public testimony on the proposed street vacation due to 
opposition from one abutting property owner, and opened the public hearing on October 15, 2012. They 
continued the hearing to February 2013 to allow the abutting property owners time to discuss the 
vacation. The hearing was continued several times, and finally held on August 5, 2013. Both abutting 
property owners were again in favor of the vacation, and the council tentatively approved the vacation, 
conditional upon Airpark Properties supplying by November 5, 2013 legal descriptions and exhibits 
prepared by a surveyor of the area to be vacated and any necessary utility and access easements. The 
utility easements were to be placed over the actual utility lines, instead of covering the entire right of 
way. Airpark Properties was also directed to coordinate with PGE and pay the costs to remove the 
existing streetlight, unless the Normans requested that the streetlight remain. Staff was directed to 
prepare an ordinance for final approval after the exhibits and utility easements had been reviewed by 
staff. 
 
Airpark Properties submitted legal descriptions and map exhibits for the vacation, access easement and 
utility easements. They were reviewed by staff, revised by the surveyor as needed, and approved by 
staff, and have been incorporated into the ordinance for final approval. 
 
The Normans did not wish for the streetlight to remain, so Airpark Properties contacted PGE and had the 
streetlight disconnected. The Public Works - Maintenance division picked up the streetlight and now has 
it as a spare. 
 

Page 9



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is potential for a small positive impact if the vacated area is developed, as the City would collect 
development fees and property taxes.  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The property is no longer needed as a public street, as ODOT has extended Industrial Parkway to the 
north and installed a traffic light to control access to Highway 219. Utility easements can protect the 
public interest in the existing utility lines, and a public access easement will provide access to both 
properties from Industrial Parkway. The Council previously heard testimony regarding the vacation and 
tentatively approved the vacation. Vacation of the right-of-way will return the property to the abutting 
owners and allow them more development options in the future.   
 
 

Page 10



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING THE PORTION OF THE NINTH STREET 
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATED TO THE CITY BETWEEN INDUSTRIAL 
PARKWAY AND HIGHWAY 219, ADJACENT TO YAMHILL COUNTY 
TAX LOTS 3220-304 AND 3220DD-100, WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
CITY LIMITS OF NEWBERG, OREGON, AND CREATING ACCESS AND 
UTILITY EASEMENTS WITHIN PART OF THE VACATED AREA 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. Airpark Properties, LLC and the Norman Family Trust applied on February 1, 2011, to vacate 

the portion of the Ninth Street right-of-way dedicated to the city between Industrial Parkway and 
Highway 219. 

 
2. After proper notice, the Newberg city council conducted a public hearing on July 5, 2011, to 

consider the application, which was tentatively approved. The vacation was put on hold to allow 
the abutting property owners time to prepare surveys and other documents for the vacation.  

 
3. The city council reopened public testimony on the proposed street vacation to allow additional 

testimony and opened the public hearing on October 15, 2012. They continued the hearing to 
February, 2013, to allow the abutting property owners time to discuss the vacation issues.  

 
4. The hearing was continued several times, and finally held on August 5, 2013. Both abutting 

property owners were again in favor of the vacation, and the council tentatively approved the 
vacation, conditional upon Airpark Properties supplying legal descriptions and exhibits prepared 
by a surveyor of the area to be vacated and any necessary utility and access easements. The 
utility easements were to be placed over the actual utility lines, instead of covering the entire 
right-of-way. Airpark Properties was directed to coordinate with PGE and pay associated costs to 
remove the existing streetlight.  

 
5. Staff was directed to review and approve the legal descriptions and exhibits and draft an 

ordinance for final approval by city council. The legal descriptions and exhibits have been 
approved by staff and the streetlight removal has been completed. 

 
6. All of the abutting property owners have consented to the vacation. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The findings of fact for approval, listed as Exhibit A are hereby attached, adopted, and by this 

reference incorporated. 
 

2. The public right-of-way within the city of Newberg, county of Yamhill, state of Oregon, 
described and shown in Exhibit B is hereby vacated; the public access easement described and 
shown in Exhibit B is hereby created; and utility easements described and shown in Exhibits C, 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 1 

Page 11



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 2 

D, and E are hereby created. Exhibits B, C, D, and E are hereby adopted and by this reference 
incorporated. 
 

3. Subject to the above provisions, the city recorder of the city of Newberg is hereby directed to file 
for recording with the county clerk and ex-officio recorder of conveyances of the county of 
Yamhill, state of Oregon, a certified copy of this ordinance and exhibits, and the city recorder is 
further directed to file a copy of this ordinance and exhibits with the surveyor and the assessor of 
said Yamhill County, Oregon, respectively.  
 

4. Title to the real property included within said rights-of-way hereby vacated shall attach to the 
property abutting said right-of-way, in accordance with the provisions of ORS 271.140. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: April 3, 2014. 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 3rd day of  March, 2014, by the 
following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 6th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 

Page 12



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 3 

 
EXHIBIT A TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 

FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL OF A RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION 
 

ORS 271.130 lists the criteria for vacations. The section states that approval must include affirmative 
findings that: 
 
 Criteria 1.  Notice has been given as provided by ORS 271.110. 
 
Finding: Notice has been provided in accordance with ORS 271.110. Notice was published in the 
Newberg Graphic for two consecutive weeks prior to the October 15, 2012 hearing date. The hearing 
was continued several times, and each time it was continued to a date certain. In addition, notice has 
been posted near the site and in four public places, and a mailed notice was sent to all property owners 
within 100 feet of the site. Notice has been posted on the city website since 2011 and updated each time 
the hearing was continued or a decision was made. 
 
 Criteria 2.  The owners of a majority of the area affected do not object in writing. 
 
Finding: Written consent has been received from all owners of the abutting properties. 
 

Criteria 3.  Where owner consent has not been provided, the vacation will not   
  significantly affect the value of the abutting properties, unless the city   
  provides for paying damages. 

 
Finding:  The owners of all abutting properties have provided written consent.  
 
Conclusion:  Based on the criteria and conclusionary findings, the proposed vacation satisfies City 
standards and approval criteria. 

Page 13



 
EXHIBIT B TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS AND MAPS FOR A 

RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION AND ACCESS EASEMENT  

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 4 

Page 14



 
EXHIBIT B TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS AND MAPS FOR A 

RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION AND ACCESS EASEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 5 

Page 15



 
EXHIBIT B TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS AND MAPS FOR A 

RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION AND ACCESS EASEMENT (CONTINUED) 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 6 

 

Page 16



EXHIBIT B TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS AND MAPS FOR A 
RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION AND ACCESS EASEMENT (CONTINUED) 

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 7 

Page 17



 
EXHIBIT C TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION AND MAP  
 

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 8 

EXHIBIT C TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT LEGAL 

Page 18



DESCRIPTION AND MAP (CONT.) 

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 9 

Page 19



 
EXHIBIT D TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION AND MAP 
 

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 10 

Page 20



 
EXHIBIT D TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION AND MAP (CONT.) 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 11 

 

Page 21



 
EXHIBIT E TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: STORM SEWER EASEMENT LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION AND MAP 
 

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 12 

Page 22



 
EXHIBIT E TO ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770: STORM SEWER EASEMENT LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION AND MAP (CONT.) 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2014-2770 PAGE 13 

 

Page 23



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 24



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 3, 2014 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Approval for staff to move forward with 
development of application for an enterprise zone 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: David Beam, AICP 
Dept.: Planning and Building 
File No.: G-14-001 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Move to direct staff to develop an application to the State of Oregon for a 
designated enterprise zone.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   At council’s March 3, 2014 meeting, city staff engaged the council in the 
discussion of enterprise zones and the possibility of establishing such a zone in our community.  Please see 
Attachment A for a brief description of an enterprise zone.  Council felt this opportunity was worth 
exploring further. 
 
The State of Oregon is currently accepting applications for designation of an enterprise zone within a 
community.  Applications are due April 11, 2014.  Please see Attachment B for a description of the process 
for the development of an application.  
 
The following is a proposed general outline of tasks that will need to be accomplished for the development 
of an application to the State of Oregon to become an enterprise zone.   
 
Feb. 18 – March 2 Draft proposed enterprise zone boundary.  Determine which taxing districts would be 

affected by such a boundary. 
 
March 3, 2014  Seek city council’s approval for staff to move forward with process for development 

of an application to become a designated enterprise zone.   
 
March 4-7, 2014 With council’s approval to move forward with project, staff to will mail a special 

meeting notice to taxing districts regarding the proposed enterprise zone, which 
would be held on a day during the last week in March.  Notice must be sent 21 days 
prior to the special meeting.    

 
March 4-23, 2014 Staff confirms with State that Newberg should be able to meet the qualifications to 

become an enterprise zone (the "economic hardship" standards).  Staff feels it is 
likely that we will qualify.  Develop information required by enterprise zone 
application.  Meet with Yamhill County assessor office to determine which taxing 
districts would be affected by potential enterprise zone and potential impacts on 
taxing districts.  Reach out to potential taxing district that would be affected by an 
enterprise to discuss implications and impacts of an enterprise zone. 

 
March 24-28, 2014 On a date during this time period yet to be determined, city and state staff will hold a 

special meeting with representatives that would be affected by a potential enterprise 
zone in Newberg.  At the meeting, staff will make a presentation about the proposed 
enterprise zone, answer questions, and take input for meeting participants.    

Page 25



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 2 

 
April 7, 2014  City council considers resolution supporting the submission of application to the 

State of Oregon for the designation of an enterprise zone in Newberg.  It should be 
noted that the decision to submit an application for an enterprise zone is at the sole 
discretion of the city council. 

 
April 10, 2014  Yamhill County Board of Commissioners consider resolution of consent to the 

establishment of Newberg’s proposed enterprise zone (NOTE:  This step is needed 
only if the proposed enterprise zone boundary includes land outside of the city 
limits).   

 
April 11, 2014  City staff submits enterprise zone application to the State of Oregon.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time will need to be dedicated to implement the process for the development of 
the enterprise zone application. There will likely be some other costs incurred through some contract support 
services from the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments.  Staff anticipates having a cost estimate 
for those contract services by the March 3rd meeting. 
 
The current timeline for the project shows that staff would be holding two more public meetings prior to the 
submission of an application for an enterprise zone.  The first public meeting would be held sometime 
during the last week of March (TBD) with representatives of the taxing districts within the proposed 
enterprise zone boundaries.  The second meeting is expected to be held with the city council at their April 7th 
meeting, where they will consider a resolution supporting the city’s submission of an application for a 
enterprise zone designation.  At both these meeting, staff expects to have more information about the 
potential impacts of a designated enterprise zone.    
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: The city of Newberg understands the importance of supporting local 
businesses.  A healthy business sector is a key component to having a healthy community overall.  Having 
an enterprise zone in Newberg may be a good tool to add to our community’s economic development 
“toolbox”.  Staff knows of two businesses in Newberg that have expressed interest how they might be able 
to strengthen their companies through the use of an enterprise zone.  If council approves moving forward 
with the process of developing an application for a designated enterprise zone, staff expects that we will be 
able to secure sufficient information about them for the city council to ultimately make an educated decision 
on whether or not city should apply for an enterprise zone in our community.  
 

Page 26



Attachment A to 
Enterprise Zone Motion

Page 27



Attachment A to 
Enterprise Zone Motion

Page 28



Attachment B to 
Enterprise Zone Motion

Page 29



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 30



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3116 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 3, 2014 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2014-3116 

SUBJECT:  A resolution to adopt the Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Manual and Standard 
Details.  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Jay Harris, City Engineer 
                Dept.: Engineering Services Department 
File No.:  

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2014-3116  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Currently, requirements for erosion control measures for projects less than one acre in size are addressed in 
the existing engineering design standards manual.  Construction of projects that disturb more than one acre 
are required to acquire an Oregon Department of Quality (DEQ) erosion control permit, which is issued and 
monitored by DEQ.  Erosion control for construction projects which disturb less than one acre are under the 
jurisdiction of the City of Newberg, and to date, minimal erosion control requirements have been required. 
  
In May of 2011, Council, by Resolution No. 2011-2947, formed the Stormwater Ad-Hoc Committee. The 
Committee was tasked to work in tandem with staff to prepare the needed changes to the Municipal Code 
developed by City Staff.  In January of 2012, the Planning Commission adopted the Code changes, and in 
July of 2012, Council adopted Ordinance No. 2012-2754 which required measures to control construction 
site and post construction site runoff. This ordinance was a requirement of the City’s TMDL Implementation 
Plan. 
 
As a result of Ordinance No. 2012-2754, a City stormwater erosion control manual has been created.  The 
manual outlines the requirements for erosion control that developers and contractors must comply with, 
which meets the intent of the adopted Ordinance. 
 
Minor changes to the erosion control manual and details may occur when deemed necessary by the City 
Engineer, and will be approved using the City’s executive order process.  Major changes, as identified by 
the City Manager, will be adopted by the City Council.  
      
As part of the process of creating the ESC Manual, an open house was hosted in October of 2012. This open 
house was utilized to discuss comments, concerns and ideas. The engineering department considered all 
input received from the open house meeting to develop the ESC Manual and Details. The Draft ESC Manual 
and Details was distributed to interested individuals and also made public on the City Website for input by 
the interested community. The responses received were discussed by staff and were incorporated into the 
ESC manual, as determined by the City Engineer.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The Erosion Sedimentation Control and updated design standard manuals will create a small workload 
increase to the Engineering Services Department.  A revised Engineering Fee Schedule is to be considered 
in a separate resolution. 

Page 31



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3116 PAGE 2 

 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The Erosion Sedimentation Control Manual and Design Standards Manual will provide guidelines for 
development projects to meet the new erosion sedimentation control and stormwater requirements that 
were added to Chapter 13.25 of the municipal code, by Ordinance No. 2012-2754. 

Page 32



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3116 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION 
CONTROL MANUAL AND STANDARD DETAILS 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 

1. The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) ordered the city of Newberg on October 
17, 2006, to create a Willamette River Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan.   

 
2. City staff worked with URS Corporation to create the TMDL Implementation Plan.  The Oregon 

DEQ accepted the TMDL Implementation Plan on October 17, 2008, and was eccepted by the city 
council on December 1, 2008, through Resolution No. 2008-2820. 
 

3. May 16, 2011, council established a stormwater ad-hoc committee by Resolution No. 2011-2947.  
The Committee was tasked to work in tandem with staff to prepare the needed changes to the 
Newberg Municipal Code (NMC).   

 
4. On January 12, 2012, the planning commission adopted Planning Resolution No. 2012-296, which 

amended the NMC. 
 
5. On June 18, 2012, council adopted Ordinance No. 2012-2754, which required measures to control 

construction site and post construction site runoff.  This ordinance was a requirement of the city’s 
TMDL Implementation Plan. 
 

6. City staff solicited input on the manual from the general public, developers, and engineers.  This 
input was considered and incorporated in the final manual, as deemed appropriate by the city 
engineer. 
 

7. Minor changes to the Erosion and Sedimentation Control Manual Drawings may occur when 
deemed necessary by the department director, city engineer, or designee, and will be approved using 
the city’s executive order process.  Major changes, as identified by the city manager, or designee, 
will be adopted by the city council. 
  

8. The Erosion Sedimentation Control Manual and Standard Details will provide a guide for 
development projects to meet the requirements of NMC §§13.25, which was revised by Ordinance 
No. 2012-2754. 

 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3116 PAGE 1 

Page 33



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3116 PAGE 2 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The city council herby adopts the Erosion and Sedimentation Control Manual and Standard Details 
as attached in Exhibit A, which is hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated.  

 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is:  March 4, 2014. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 3rd day of March, 2014. 

 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 6th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 34



Erosion�&�Sediment��
Control�Manual�

�

February�2014�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 35



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

�
CONTENTS

��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 �������!���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

"
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�#�$�
�������$��
���%�&��$
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�#�$�
�����'
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����(���%�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� 	�������� ���������� "���#��
� ������������ &���
�� )	�"�&*� �
���� '
+��
�
�����
����,���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��-���������	
��
��'
+��
�
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������%���

%�&$
��
������)�&�*�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��.�	
��
��&�
������%���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�

��/�"
$���
������&���
� ��%��)"& *���%�0&���$����������

��)0&���*��������������������������������-�

�#�$�
�-���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

-����������!�$
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

-���&�����#����
���������%�����������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�#�$�
�������&��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

������&����!�$
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

������&��$
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

����-�1
��#
���%��
��$�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

������'�������������%2��
�����$
��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

�����������������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

��-�4
��������
�
���������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

�����&�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������5�

�������&�������'
+��
�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������5�

�������&��������$$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������5�

����-�4������&������������&�����&��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6�

������'
������&������������&�����&��
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6�

��.�"
������
%��&��(��$
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�#�$�
�.�����&���
���
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.���7
�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�����
����� ������)'
+��
%*������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�-���������
�
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 36



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�����

.�-���	����
�8
�
���������%�4���
�9��
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�-���"�����������)'
+��
%*���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�-�-�7���%����
�)'
+��
%*������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�-���&

%������%�����#���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�

.�-�.���������)"
������/�6:/��*���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.���'�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.�

.�����&���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.�

.�����;���
�����
������)"
�����/�/*�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

.���-�&����
�'���#
�����)"
�����/�5*�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

.�.�&
%��
����������������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

.�.���������������������
���%��<����)'
+��
%�,�"
�����/��*�������������������������������������������������5�

.�.���!�
�1��#�=��������)'
+��
%>����
����
�����
*��������������������������������������������������������������������5�

.�.�-�"
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6�

.�.���(��
�����
������)'
+��
%�,�"
�����/�.*�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������6�

.�.�.�&
%��
���=
��
�)"
�����/��*������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�.�/�1����
�)"
�����/��*�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�.�3�&����4��
�)"
�����/�-*�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

.�.�5�8
�
���
%�&��$��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�#�$�
�/����&���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�

/������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�

/���&$�����
�
��������%�'
�$���
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�

/�-�&
���%�����������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

/���8
#���
���%��+��$�
���=�
�������%������
����
��������������������������������������������������������������������������

/�.�����
�
�1���
������
�
���)"
�����/�3*���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.�

/�/�&�����
��
$���������%��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.�

/�3�1���
�"��$��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.�

�#�$�
�3����(��$
���������%�"����
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

3���7
�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

3���(��$
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

3�-�"����
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

�$$
�%�<��?��	
��
��&�
������%��;�
������$�����������������������������������������������������������������������������5�

�$$
�%�<�4?��'
+��
%�&���%�%�	��
������&�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6�

�$$
�%�<��?��&�������������������%�&
%��
�����������
���
��������������������������������������������������-��

�$$
�%�<�"?��4�����&�����&��
��&���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-��

(���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-��

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 37



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

&��
�(�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������--�

��������(���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������--�

��2
���&�@
���%�"���#��
� ��������?�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-.�

	���
���%�&
+�
��
������������������������?�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-.�

&��
�=
���
����%�&
������
��
�������
����
��
%�������������������������������������������������������������������������������-/�

�&���
���
��(�$�
�
��
%����&��
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-/�

�&���
���
������
�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-/�

�&���
���
������������'������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-3�

�&���
���
������������&
%��
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-3�

�����������
�
�������
���
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-3�

(��$
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-3�

��$��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-5�

�
�������������%�	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-5�

&��
�������<��$�
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-6�

�$$
�%�<��?��'
�����&�����&��
��&�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

(������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

&��
�(��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��������(������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��2
���&�@
���%�"���#��
� ��������?����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

	���
���%�&
+�
��
������������������������?����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

&��
�=
���
����%�&
������
��
�������
����
��
%��������������������������������������������������������������������������������.�

�&���
���
��(�$�
�
��
%����&��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

�&���
���
������
�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

�&���
���
������������'�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

�&���
���
������������&
%��
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

�����������
�
�������
���
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�

(��$
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

��$���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

"
�����"����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

�
�������������%�	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

&��
�������<��$�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6�

�$$
�%�<�=?��(��$
������ ������%�'
$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.��

(��$
������ ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.��

(��$
������'
$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.��

�<��$�
�(��$
������ �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.-�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 38



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
���

�<��$�
�(��$
������'
$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.��

�$$
�%�<�7?��A�%�������$$�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������..�

1��%�=��
�����#�A�%�������$$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������..�

&

%���=
����@
�A�%�������$$����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������..�

�$$
�%�<�A?��&$�����
�
��������%�'
�$���
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.5�

1#
��!��'
$����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.5�

;
����&���
�&$����'��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.5�

��
���$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.6�

'
$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.6�

"�B�&$����'
�
��
�'
$����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/��

�$$
�%�<�(?��&���%�%�"
����������&���
���
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/.�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 39



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

��������
BFM� � 4;	"�"�=(4�'���!'(C�
CFR� � �;"��;=�=�"�'� �'�70 �!(;	&�
DEQ� � ;'�7;	�"���'!��	!�;=��	8(';	��	!� �B0� (!D�
DSL� � "���'!��	!�;=�&!�!�� �	"&�
ESA� � �	"�	7�'�"�&���(�&���!�
ESC� � �';&(;	��	"�&�"(��	!��;	!'; &�
NMC� � 	�14�'7��0	(�(�� ��;"��
NOAA� � 	�!(;	� �;���	(����	"��!�;&�A�'(���"�(	(&!'�!(;	�
NPDES� 	�!(;	� ��;  0!�	!�"(&�A�'7��� (�(	�!(;	�&D&!���
NRC� � 	�!(;	� �'�&�;	&����	!�'�
NRCS� � 	�!0'� �'�&;0'����;	&�'8�!(;	�&�'8(���
OERS� � ;'�7;	����'7�	�D�'�&�;	&��&D&!���
ORS� � ;'�7;	�'�8(&�"�&!�!0!�&�
TMDL�� !;!� ���C(�0��"�( D� ;�"�
USACE�� 0&��'�D��;'�&�;=��	7(	��'&�
�
�
�

LIST OF TABLES 

���
�
!���
���� 7���%����
��$$����������E��EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE����������5�
!���
��� 7���%����
��$$����������EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE�������������
!���
�-�� ��������&$
�������������EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE�������/�
!���
���� &���
�"
��������
����EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE��������3�
�
�
�

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 40



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�����

DEFINITIONS

“Applicant”��
�����#
����
������#��@
%���
��������������
#��������#
����
��

“City”��
�����#
���������	
��
�>�;
�����

“City�Engineer”��
�����#
���%���%����%
������
%�����#
�����������
����#��
��#
����#�����
��� 
��
����%��$$������������$�2
���� ���2
��� ��� �#
�
�%
����� ����%�%��� �!#
�����������
����������
����������1�F��"�
����������������#�����
��#
���#
�����������

�$��������
�����������

“Clay”��
��������������#�$�����
���@
���#����
��
����#��������

�GCurb”��
���� �#
� ���
� �#��� ��%����
�� �#
� 
%�
���� �� �
#������ ��%�������#��� �#
���
����
��#�,��,������

“Definition� of� Words”� �
���� �#��>� �#
�
�
>� ��� �#
�
� &���%�%�>� �#
���%�� H%�
��
%H>�
H
+��
%H>�H$
����
%H>�H�%

%H>�H%
������
%H>�����%�������F
���$�����
��
���
%>��#
��
�#���� �
� ��%
����%� ��� �
��� �#
� %�
�����>� 
+��
�
��>� $
�������>� �� �%
� ���
%
���������� ��� �#
� ����� �����

�� � &�������>� �#
� ��%�� H�$$��
%>H� H���
$����
>H� ��
H�����������>H��#�����
����$$��
%���>����
$����
���>�������������������#
�����������

��

“Design� storm”� �
���� �� #�$��#
������ %���
�
� �������� �#����
�@
%� ��� �� �$
������
%������>� �
�$���� %����������>� �������� ���
�����>� 
���� �
+�
���� ��%� ������ %
$�#� ���
���������

�“Development”� �
���� 
��%
�����>� ����
����>� ��%������>� �� �������������� �����������>�
���
�����>�����#
���$��
�
����#��#����
���#
�#�%��������#����
������������$�$
���
��$�$
��
�����

“Director”� �
���� �#
� ����� ��� 	
��
�I�� %�
���� ��� $������ ��F�� �� �#
�� ���#��@
%�

$
�
������
��

“Driveway”��
�������
#����������
�������
��

����,���
�$�F������%��#
�$��������#�,���
�����

�“Easement”��
�����
��������
%������%
����%
%����
%���#�,��,������%��#��#��
�����
%�
��� �#
� ����� ��� �$
����� ��
��� ���
�
�������� ����� �
� ����
%� ��� ���,����� 
�����
�� ���#� ���
����#��
������������$���
������#
����
���

“Engineer”� �
���� �#
� 
����

>� �����%���� �#
� ����J�� 
����

>� ���
��
%� ��� �#
� &���
� ���
;
������������
�������������

���%
��#��
�%�
������$����>�$����
�>���%�%
����������#
�
��F��
�$
$�
%���%��������
%�����#
���������
��
����%��$$����>����#���������#��
�
�����%�
�$������
��������������������#
���$��
�
����

“Erosion”��
�����#
��
��#
��������������
������
���������#
����
�
���������%>����
>�
��
>�����>������%�%��������
���������
���

“Erosion� and� sediment� control”� �
���� �� ��������� �� ���,��������� %
���
� �#��� ���
��$�
�
��
%����$
�
���
��������%��
%��
����������

“Erosion� and� sediment� control� (ESC)� plan”� �
���� �� $���� �������
%� ��� �#
� ����� ���#�
����
%� %������>� ��%� �#
� �
�#�%�� ��%� ��$
�� ��� %
���
�� ��� �
� ��$�
�
��
%� %����� �#
�
$�2
������$
�
���
��������%��
%��
����������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 41



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
������

“Excavation”��
���������������#��#����������F�������>�%��>�+���
%>������

%>�
���
%>�
%��$���
%>���
�����
%��

“Fill”��
������%
$�����������������#
�
��#����
����$���
%���������������
�����

“Grade”��
�����#
�%
�

�����������������������

�������$
��

“Grading”��
����������������#��#�����������
�
%>����$$
%>�����F$��
%>�
<�����
%>�������
%>�
����
%>��������������������#

����

“Ground�disturbing� project”� �
���� �� $�2
��� �#��� �����%
�� ��������
�� �#��� #��
� �#
�
$��
����������
��
������
�������������%>�$
��$�������>�����
��
�������
%��
���%
$������
������
����
���� ���%����#��� �#
������ �����%���>��������� �����
%� ��>�%
��������>� ��
�����
��%��������>���%���>�
<��������>�����$�����>���%���������������%���

“Hazardous�materials”��
�����������
������������������������
������#��#�%�
��������
+�������>� ����
�������>� �� $#������>� �#
�����>� �� ���
������� �#����
����������� ����
� ��
��������
� ����� ������������#�@�%� ���#�����#
���#>� ���
��>�$�$
��>��� �#
�
������
���
�#
����$�$
����
��
%>����
%>�����$��
%>�%��$��
%���>�����#
���
������
%.�

�“Impervious”� � �
���� �#
� #�%� �����
� �
�� �#��� 
��#
� $
�
���� �� �
����� 
��%��
��������������%�����
�����
������������#
������
�����
��
�+�������
�������������
��
%�
��
��������������#���$
�
��������%
�
��$
%����%���������&����
���#��#�����%��%�������
�
������%

%�$
�������
������%

%���$
����������#
��%�������������������������������
����������
��

“Infiltration”��
�����#
�$�����
������
�
���������
�������#
��������������
��

“National�pollutant�discharge�elimination�system�(NPDES)”��
�����#
��
�
��>����$>�
��%� ��%���%���� ��������
�%���#��
�$
������#��#� 
�����
� ��������
��%
���
%� ��� �
%
���
	�"�&� 
���������� ��%� 
�����
%� �#���#� �#
� ;
���� "
$���
��� ��� �������
�����
B���������

“Natural�Contour”��
�����#
���%
�����#
����%���������%�����
%�����
��

�“Owner”��
���� �#
� ���
� ��� 
��%� ��� 
��� $�$
��� ��� �#���� ��� �#
� %

%� 
��%�� ���
D��#��������������#
�$
���)�*��#��$��#��
)�*���$�$
�����%������#
��
��%
��
�����#���
$��#��
���%
�������
��
��%
%����%����
����������

“Plans”� �
���� ������������ $����>� �����%���� ���� �$$������
� ����
�� $����>� �
�
� $����>�
$����
�>�������
������>�
�
�������>�$�2
����$
������%
����
%�%������>�����%�%�%
�����>�
���>�
��
$�%���������#

��>�����
%�����#
������

����'
��%>��$$��
%�������
��$$��
%����
�#
�����������

>��#��#��#����#
���������>��#����
>�%��
������>���%�%
����������#
���F�
��� �
� $
���
%>� ��%� �#��#� ���������
� $��� ��� �#
� ������������ �������� %����
���� ���
$����
��� ������
%�%
�
��$�
���$�2
������$�������� ������
%� ����������
� ��$��
�
���
$�2
�����

“Pollution”� �
���� �� �������������� �� ��#
� %
��%������ ��� �#
� $#������>� �#
�����>� ��
�����������$�$
��
����������
����
K�����%���#��
�����������
����
��#�������%��
��
���
$�������������
�������������
������
����
����#��#��������
�
���������
>��+������#������>�
$������#
���#���$���������
�����������F��

“Project”��
�����������������#����
��
����$
�������
����

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 42



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��<�

“Project� start”� �
���� �#
� ����� ����%,%��������� ��������� ��������
%� ���#� �� $�2
���
�����%���>� ���� ���� �����
%� ��>� $
$������ ��������
�� ���#� ��� ��
����>� �������>� ��%���>�

<��������>���%����������

“Responsible� party”��
���� �� $
���� �� 
������ #��%���� �

� ����
� ��� �� $�$
��>� � �
����>�
�
��

>� �� �� $
���� �� 
������ �#�� ��� ������� ��� ��� ���
I�� 
$
�
������
� �����%���� ����
$
���>� ���$���>� ���$����� �����@������ �� ��#
� 
������ $
������� �
���
�� �#��� �
�
�������
%>� ����������
%>� �� �������
%���� ��#
� ��

�
��� ����

�� �#
� 
+��
�
���� ���
�#�����%
��

“Right�of�Way”��
�����������%������

����#

����#��#�)���%

%>�����
����
>���

�
��>�

��
�
��>�%
%�������>�����
>���$��
���������*����
�
�
%������%
%����
%�����#
���
�����#
�
$�����������%
���F>��������>���%L����%����$�$��
���

�“Sand”��
������������#�$�����
���@
���
��

��/-�����%�������

“Sediment”��
���� ����� �� ��#
� �����
����
���� #
�%� ��� ���$
������ ��� �����
����
� ��
�������
��

“Sedimentation”��
���� �#
�$��
��������������� �
%��
����
����%
$����
%������ 
��������
%
�
��
%������
����
����������
��
��������

“Sensitive�resources”��
���������
���#��>�%�
�����#
��������
����
�������F��������
����
��$������$
�
��>��������������������
�����
$����
�����#
��
�����
���$���������
%��
�������>�

��������%��������
���<��$�
�������%
�%�
���#�%�����������
������������F
�>���
���>�
�
����%�>� �$����>� �

$�>� �� ��#
� ���
� 
����
�K� ����
������� �
��K� #��#��� 
�%���
�
������ ��%� ��

$� ���$
�K� �$����� ����
�K� #��#� ���
� ����
�K� �������� %
$�#� ��� �
%��FK�
�������������
��>���������������������
�����%�
������
��������%��K��
������#���������
��$�����
K����
�����#����
%����
�%���

%��$
��
���

“Silt”��
�������
��������%������ �
<��
%������$�����
�>� �����%����������#��� ���
������
�%���
�
��%�
������������$
������
�
�����������
����
������
����

“Site”��
��������$�$
��������������������$�$
��
���#

���$�2
�������
����$�$��
%�
�����$�
�
%���

“Slope”� �
���� �#
� �#���
� ��� 
�
������� ��� �� ����%� �����
� 
<$
��
%� ��� �� ����� ���
#��@������%������
�����
������%������
>�
���-A?�8��

“Soil”��
�����������%
$��������
�������
%��F��

“Stabilize”��
�����#
���
�
��������� ������������
���� ��� ���$���
���%��
��,
�������#
%�
$���%��������
�����#���<�����
������$��
�������

“Stabilization”� �
���� �#
� ��
� ��� �
�
�����
� �� ��������� �
�#��+�
�� ��� $
�
��� �����
���
�
����

“Standard�Drawings”��
�����#
�%
����
%�%����������������
����%L���%
��������%
���
��
�����������
%����$��������$��
�
������%�
�

%�������������������$������

“Stockpile”��
���������
������������>����%>����
�>�����>���%>�%
���>�
���
>���������#
�
���
���>������������������>����������
����
%��
���

“Stormdrain”� �
���� ���
��>� ����
��>� ���#��
�>� ����#� ������>� $�$
�>� ��%� ��#
� ������
��
��
%��������
���������
���������������
�%���#��
�$������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 43



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�<�

“Stormwater”��
�������
� �#����������
�����$
��$�������������$�����������
>������>���
���
�#
%���%���������
����%�����$
�����������
�����#����$
���������������#
�����%��

“Stormwater� facility”� �
���� �� ��������� ��� ����
>� 
����>� �� %
����� �������
� ��� �#
�
$�$��
��������
�+���������+�������������
�
�����!#
���������������
���������������,
��������>�#����

��%
����
%���%���������
%�����%������������%
���������%�%�>���%�#���
�

��
+��
%�����#
����������������$���,�������������������
��

�“Stormwater� system”��
���� �#
� ������������ ��� ���#� ���������� ��%� ������� ����
��� ���
%����>�%���#
�>�������>�����
��>�%
�
������$��%�>�
�
������$��%�>�%���>���%���#
����
�
���������������
����
%��������
��������%�����$�������������
��

“Street� Wash� Water”� �
���� ���
� ��
%� ��� ���#� ��

��� ���
� 
�
�
���� $
����
��
�������� ���#
�� �#
� �����@������ �� $
���� 
�
��
�� $��� ����� �$$����� ��� %���#��
� ���
���������#
��
��$
����������
��
%�������%���
�#�%�����#��������

$
������������%�
�#
�%���#��
�����#
��������
�%�
������
<�

%��
%
���������
����
�+�����������%�%�����

“Streets� or� Roadways”��
���� %
������
%� ���%� �#��� ����� �
� ��
%>� �� ��� �
���� ��
%>� ���
����$���������

“Structure”��
��������#������������
%��������>����
%����
�������%�����������F��%>�������
$�
�
� �����F� ������������ ������ �$� �� ���$��
%� ��� $���� 2���
%� ���
�#
� ��� ���
� %
�����
�
����
��

�“Visible� and� measurable� erosion”� �
���� ���� %
$�������� ��� ���� ������� �� ���������
���
����
<�

%������.��������

���#��#�
��
�������%2��
���$�$
��������$��
�������#
�
����I���������
�����
�K���������������%����
%��
��,��%
�����
��
���%��#
�$�$
������
��������������#
�����I���������
�����
�K���
��#����%
�>���%������>����%�����$���>����$
�
�����
>�����#
�
��#����
�
����#����
��
�>��������F
�������
��
>��#
�$�$
�������������

“Watercourse”��
���� ����������� �� ���������� ��
��>� ��
>� �

F>� %���#>� �#���
�>� �����>�
���%���>� ����
�>� %���>� �����>� ����
>� ����
>� �� �
����%�>� ��� �#��#� ���
� ������ 
��#
�
��������������� ���
����
������ �!#
���%�#���� �#
����
����
� �����%
�������%2��
����
��
�#���������2
����������%������������
�����������%���
�������#
�%
�����������

“Wetlands”��
�������������������%���#

��#
����
�����
������������������
���#
����%�
�����
����#
����%�������

%�����#���������
���1
����%�?�

�� &�$$��>�����
����$
��%������>�$�������#����#��
����������
%����%������K�
�� ��������$
%������
�����%���
%�#�%�������K����
-� �
�������
%������

%����#��#���������
�������
����
�%������#
���������
��������


��#��
���

�

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 44



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
���

CHAPTER 1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

������� ���� ������������ ���
�� �� ���� %�����
%� ����%� $��
�� �� ����
� ��� $���
����
&
%��
����
�������#
����
�����%����
��
��#������$�$
��
�>�����F�%�����
�����
��>���%�

��
� ��%������ ������� ���� ��� �������
� ���%���$
� ���� %����������� ��%� �
�����
���
��$�����#
�#���������%�����������������+�������$
��
������������
��������#��
�
(�� ��� ���$�
� ��%� ��
� 
��
����
� ��� $
�
��� 
������ �#��� ��� ������� �
%��
���� ;��
� �����
$�����
���
���
�%����%�
%>�������
��
���#
��������%�
+��
�����
��
�
�����������������#
�

�������� �
%��
��� ��� �#
� ������� ���������� �
� 
+��
%� ��� 
���
� ���� �
%��
��� �#���
�
��
�� �#
�� ���
� ��%� �
���
�� ��� ������
� ���
����
�>� �
������
� �
��>� ��%����>� ��%� �#
�
�������
�����
���"
$
�%��������#
��
�
������%������������#
�
�
��
>���������������%�
���
�$
�����
����%������������
+��
�
���� ��� �#
���
� ����%� ����
��
����
��� ���$���%����
���%
+���
������
��������%��
%��
�����������
���
���
�
!#
� $�$��
� ��� �#��� ������� ��� ��� $���%
� �#
� ����������� �

%
%� ��� �

�� �#
� ����� ���
	
��
�I�� )#

���
� F����� ��� �#
� ����*� 
+��
�
���� ��� ���������>� 
��%
���>� ��%�
��#
��
����
%����������������$�2
�������#����#
������������������%����
+��
%���������%�
��
$���
�
��������$
�
����%�
�
�
��
�������
�������������������������
���
�
!#��� ������� ���
�� �� ��
�� %
���$����� ��� ����
� ��%� �
%
��� 
���������� �#��� $
����� ���

��������%��
%��
�����������������$����������
�%
%��������
���#
�����I��
+��
�
������
'
�����������������
���%��
%
�����
���
�����#�����#
�"
$���
�������������
�����B������>�
�#
�"
$���
������&���
� ��%�>���%��#
�������$����������

���
��������

%����%
������
���$�����
����#� �#
�����I��
+��
�
����%�
������������
� �#
����
���%
�
��$
���� �#
�

�$�����������������$������#�����
���%��
%
���
�����������
� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 45



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
���

CHAPTER 2   REGULATIONS 

2.1 INTRODUCTION

 ����>� ����
>� ��%� �
%
��� ��
���
�� 
�����
� �#
� 
�
��
� ��� ����� �� �
%��
��� ���� ��
������������ ���
�� � !#
� ���������� $������ ����� $���%
�� ����������� ��� �#
� ��2��

+��
�
�������
��������%��
%��
����������� �4
����
�
��#����������������
�������+�
>�
#��
�
>�each�applicant�is�required�to�procure�all�permits�and�follow�all�regulations�
pertaining�to�their�construction�site.�

2.2 NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 

(NPDES) PERMIT REQUIREMENTS  1200-C 

����������������$�2
����#���%������������
�����
�������������������,��$
��������
�#
�"
$���
�������������
�����B�������)"�B*�� �"
����
%�
+��
�
������%�������������
�������������������,��$
�����
���������
�����#
�"�B��
�����
��
�
;��
���$
�������������
%>�����$������#
�$
������%�������$$������%����
�����������#����
�#
��&��$������%�%
������������
��������
%�����#
�������

2.3 CITY OF NEWBERG REQUIREMENTS

!#
�
�����������#���������#
�����I��
�������������
+��
�
��������#
�1�����
��
�'��
�
!�" �(�$�
�
���������������%�	����-��.���(���
�
��>�����$�2
�����#���%������.����+����
����
�������%��
�
+��
%������������������
��������%��
%��
����������)�&�*��
���
��
�#��� ������@
� �
%��
��� ����$��� ���� �#
� ���
>� $��
��� �#
� %�����
��� �������
�
����
�>�������@
�%���>��������@
�����>���%�$��
�������F$��
��������$�2
���>�
��%�
��������@
>�
�#��� �
� �����
%� ��� ����%$�����>� ��
��� ���%��>� �� �#��� #��
� �#
� $��
������ ��� %���#��
�
�������
�������
� �#�������� 
<�

%� ����
���%� �
%
������
�+������� ��������
� 
+��
%� ���
�������� �&�� �
���
��� � (�� �%%�����>� ������������ ���
����� ����� �
� $�$
��� ���
%� ��%�
#��%�
%�%����� �#
�$�2
�����%��#
�$�2
�������� �������$�$
�%��$�����$��
%�
���������
����������������
��
�
!#
������
�
�
���#
���#�����
+��
��%%�����������
,�$
�������&���
���
������#
�$�2
������
�����
� �
��

�� ;����
� ���� ��%����� -������� �#
� ���������� �
�K� #��� �� ���$
� �
��
� �#���
��MK�������$�$
������#��������

��������
����
������
������%��K�%��������
������
�

����
����������$�$
������#��������

������#
��
������
�
����
�K�%���������>�����+����
����
�������%����������
����
K�������$�$
����#���#�����
�����$��
�������
�

�
�����K�
������%��
�����
�����$�����%2��
���$�$
��
�������
����
���
�
!#
� ����� 
+��
�� �#��� ��� �&�� ����� �
� �������
%� ��%� �$$��
%� $��� ��� �#
� ����� ���
���������������$�2
�������#����#
����$
����	����-��.�� �&$
�������&�������
+��
�
����
�
�%������
%�����
�����������
�

2.4 ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT (ESA)

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 46



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-�

���� ���� �#�����%���
����%
��%
�� �+������ #������>� ��� ������
� �#��� �������������� ��$����

��
�������
#�������$���
��� )���#�����

%���>� �$������>� 
����>���������>� �

%���>���
�#
��
���*���
���������%
��#�����2�������
��
��������#
��
�
%���
�%���

%��$
��
�>�
���$�#����
%�����#
��&����%����2
�������������������%�$
�����
����

2.5 NEWBERG STREAM CORRIDOR

!#
�	
��
��&�
������%�������
��
%�����

���#
�
+��
�
��������#
�����
�$��������
������ );�'� //�,��.,����).**�� � 7���� .� 
+��
%� �#
� ����
������� ��� �$
�� �$��
�� ��%�
$��
������������������%���
����
����
���!#
�
��������
+��
�
��������#
�	
��
��
&�
������%��;�
����&��,"��������
�����
%����	����.�-���������$��#�������#
���
���
���%�� ���� �
� ����%� ��� �#
� ������� 1�F�� &������
� ��%
� �
�$��
� ��%� ��� �#���� ���
�$$
�%�<����

2.6 DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS (DSL) AND US CORPS OF 

ENGINEERS (USACE) 

!#
�"& ����������
�������#
%�����535�����#
�;����
�����#
���
F�����#
� ��%�4��%���%������
�
���;
���J����%
�������
���
���
���"& ������
��;
���I������
�
%���%�����
����
����%��
��%
� ��������
� ��
�>� ��F
�>� 
�����
�>� ��%� �#
� �
������� �
�� ��� ��������� ���#
�
�>�
����
�
>�
�
�����>���%��������������
�
��$
�������
+��
%�����"& ����
���
>�����>������
���
��#���.����������%��������
����
���#����#
��
%������F��������
������#
�����
������%�����
����%���A��
�
>������$�2
������
�����
%����&���
�&�
����1��
�������%��
���%
������
%�
��
�������������#������>���$
����
���
+��
%����������,��
������������
��%�
��������@
��
�
!#
� "& � ��%� 0&���� #��
� %
�
��$
%� �� 2����� $
���� �$$��������� $��
���� N����� $
����
�$$���������� �
� ����%
%� ���� "& � ��%� 0&���� ��� �#
� "�B� ��� 
��
��� =
+�
����>�
�$$���������
�
+��
%��������$���
�$��
����
��
���
�����#�������F��������@�����>����#�
��%����%���
�$��
�����>��������
��
���
��>���%��$����$��
������������#
��������������
%����
�����
� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 47



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
���

CHAPTER 3     EROSION

!#
�����������
��������������
��
%�����#
��������$
���%��#
������������
�
�������$
�
���
��������
�� �1#��
�
������������������$��
��>�%�����
%����������#��
�
�����������������
�>���� ���
�� �#
� ������� ��
� %�
� ��� �
�
������� 
������ ��%� 
,��%���� ��� ���$
��� � 4��

%�������#
�����������%�����
%�������#���#�%
����
%�$����������%�������������$#������
��%������$�
�
������
��
����
��&���
���
�>�����������������
�����
%��
��#
�
��
������
����������������������
���%�
�������

3.1 EROSION TYPES

������������� ����
�
��������%
$
�%��������#
�������������������%��#
� ���
�����������
�������!#
�
������%
?�
�
Splash�O&$���#�
������
�������#
���#
����
��������������������
�����%�$����������#�%�

����#����%
���#������$�����
��������
����$��
����
�
���
%������� �(������#
�����$
�%
%�
��%� ����$��
%���� ������� � !#���$���%����������� ����%
����� ����� ������
���%� �
��
���
#�%�������#
���#
������%�
���(������
+�
��������>��#
������
%��
���������������
������
�%%�������������>�
�����>���%��
%��
�����������
�
Sheetflow�O&#������������ ����������
��� �
�
�� �����
� ����$���������$�����
�� �#���#��
�
�

��%
���#
%�����$���#�
�������!#
��#�����������
�������
������
���������������#

��
�����
��#������
���

���
��
�����
����������%��
�����������>������>����#���
���#���#�

�������
�
Rill�O�'������
����
%��������
����
%��#

��������(������������������
��,%
���
%��#���
���
�#����
����
�����#
��%

$��
�
Gully�O�'��������������
���#��#�����
����
�������#��$#������%�%���#����%�
��������;��
���
����������
��
%>��������
��%���������������������%�����������
$����
�
Channel�O1#
�������
�#
%�������

%����
��������
�
������������
�������#
�����������
��$
�������
��>��#
����
��
%������������
���%��
���������������
��#���
��
�����������
��
����
�
1��%������#������
����
�
��
��������������
��%
��
%�����#
�%��������������#
��6-�����1��%�

���
�� ����� ���� ��
� $���
� ��%� %
$������ ��� ��� $�$
��� �#������� �
� �%2��
��� �����
��
������ � (�� ����� 
���
��������
� ���� ����>� �
�����
��� ���
���� ����� ������
>� 
���
�� �����
����
���>���%�����
�����$�����������
�
1#��
� �� ��������� ������� ������� �� ����I�� ���
������ �� �#
� ���%>� �#
�� ���� 
%��
� �#
�
������� ��� ������ �#���#� ���%� $�������>� ������������ $#�����>� ��%� ��$�
�
������ �&��
�
���
��� � '
%������ ������ 
������ ��� �� �
����� %
�
��
%� ������� ��� 
������ ��%�
�
%��
���������#��#��������
��������������������������#
������������

3.2 SOIL CHARACTERISTICS AND EROSION POTENTIAL

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 48



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.�

&���������$�%�����������
������
����������I���
�%
�������
�%
������
��������������
���������
�#����
������� ���#� ��� �#
� ����� ��$
>� ���%� ����>� ��%� $�������� � &����� ��� 	
��
�� �
�
$
%�������������������������������
�
&������$
�������
���
�����#
�$�����
���@
��������������#��
��������
�$�����
���@
��#������%���
����� $�����
�� �
� ���������� 
�������� ��� 
������ �
����
� �#
�� �
� ������ 
����#� ��� ����F�
���
�#
� �#���#� ��#
������ ;��
� �#��� ��#
����� ��� ��F
�� ��%� �#
� $�����
�� �
���
�
���$
�%
%� ��� ������ �� ��
���>� �#
�� ����� ���
�� �
��� %������
�� �
��
� �
������� ���K� ���
�
�
��>������F
��-����3�%����������������
���
�����������$
��������!#����#����
��������������
����� ��%
���
�� �#
� ��$�����
� ��� 
������ $
�
������ ��� �$$��
%� ��� ������ ��� 
���
�
���$
�%
%� ����� ���� ������� � Preventing� erosion� using� construction� phasing� and�
vegetative�buffers�will�reduce�the�size�of�runoff�control�measures.�
��
!#
����%������%
����
���#
���@
�����#
����$��F
����
��

�������$�����
��� ������������#��
�
���������%���#��#��
�
������ ����
%�������$�������� � (�� �#
����%���
�����
%>� ������������ ���

%��
%>���
�����������
�
��
%>���%���������������������
����
��
%��������$�2
�����
Minimize� compacted� areas� and� amend� disturbed� soils� with� compost� to� preserve� or�
increase�void�ratios�and�reduce�the�cost�of�your�runoff�control�measures.�
�
��������
���
���#
���@
���%�����
���� �#
����%�� ����#
� ���������������������� �����������#�
#��#� $������>� ���#� ��� ���%>��
���� �#������
� ���� ��������
� +���F���� �  ���$������� �����>�
���#��������>� 
����� �������
� ��������������
��� ����$�������
%��
�� �#
�����
�������%��
���#
��������� ��������������
��� �Construction�phasing�leaves�soil�undisturbed�as�long�
as�possible�in�a�project�thereby�preserving�native�porosity�and�reducing�runoff�volume.��
Using�buffer�areas�can�also�result�in�lower�volumes�of�runoff�leaving�a�site.��
� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 49



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�/�

CHAPTER 4    ESC PLANNING 

�&�� $�������� �����%
�� %
�
������� �#
� $��
������ ��� 
������ ��� ����� ��� �� ���
� ���
�� ����
��$���$#�>� ����� ������
>� ��%� �#
� $�����
� $
��$�������� %����� �#
� ������������� � ��
��������� �#���%� �#
�� %
�
���
��#��#� �
��������
�
��� $�����
�� �
� �$$�$���
� ���
�#
� ���
� ���
�� �#
� $��
������ ��� 
������ ��%� �#
� $���������� ��� $��������� ���� �#
�
������������ ���
����� �#��� ����� �
� ��
%� �����
�� � ��� �&�� $���� ��� �
��
%� ���� �#
�
�
%
���������

4.1 EROSION POTENTIAL

!#
�$��
������ ���
������ ��������%
$
�%����� �#
������ ��$
>����$
>�$�����
�$
��$��������
����������%��
+�
���>���%��#
��������
������
��

4.1.1 Soil Type 

!#
�	������'
����
�����
�������&
���
�)	'�&*�#������
�
%�D��#�������������%>� ���
�#
�$�$��
������&��$�������>��#
�
����
,����
���������
��������
���
%����%
�
���
��#
�

��������%��
%��
�����������
���
�������$�2
�������������������$
�������
�%���

������
�#
� ������� ���
� ��%� �� ����� ���
�� ��� �#
� $�2
��� �
�� ��� 
����
�%
%�� � &

�
#��$?LL�
��������
��������%�������
�

4.1.2 Slopes 

&�

$����$
����%�����>���������������$
�����
��
��������
������>���������
����
����������
����� �#���
��� ��%�$�%��
� ����� ��%� �����
��� (�� ���$
� ��

$�
��� ��� %����
%��#��
� ��#
�
������� �
� #
�%� ��������>� ����� ����� $��
������ ��� ���
��
%� �,�L�� ���
��� (�� ���#� ���$
�
��

$�
�����%��
���#��
�%����
%>�����������$��
����������
���������
���
��
��������������
����� �� ��

$� ���$
�� �#���%� �
� ����%
%K� ��������� %��������� ����� �� ��

$� ���$
�� �#���%�
������
�����%
%����������@
�
�������

4.1.3 Weather and Precipitation  

!#
� ����
��
� ��%� ������� ��� �������� ��� ��$�������#
�� %
��%���� �#
� ��$
� ��%� ��@
� ���

��������������
���
�������
���������
���!#
�1
��
��'
�������������
��
��
�$���%
��
����������� ��� �
�$
���
�>� ���%� %�
�����>� 
�����
� #���%���>� ��%� $
��$��������� !#
�
	;����
����
�����$���%
��
��#
�$
%������������
��������
�����%�#����������
��#
�
��%�$
��$��������%������"
���������������#
�������
�����
%����Table�1���

4.1.4 Rainfall from Adjacent Properties 

'�����������%2��
���$�$
��
�����������������$�2
������
������
��������
��
��#
��������
��������� �#�������������� ���
�$������
�����
������� �1#��
��������������������
��
���

�
�
���������F�������#
��%2��
���$�$
��>� �#
���������
�����������%���$�2
������
�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 50



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�3�

������ %��
����� ����
�� �� �#
�� ���� 
%��
� �#
� �����
� ��� ������ �����
� ����
� ���$�� ��
�
�
������� ��� ��������
� �#
� ������� � !��%
�
��
�$��
������ 
�����>� %��
�
%� ������ �#���%�
������#���%������
������
���%
��
������������$
�����

Table�1.��24�Hour�Design�Storms�

�

�

4.2 POLLUTION POTENTIAL

!#
� �&�� ���������� �����%
� $��
%�
�� ��� �#
� 
�
��� ��� �� �$���� �#��� ����%� �
��
� �����
,
+������� $���
��� � (��
����� �#
� ������������ ���
����� �#��� ����� �
� ��
%� �����
� ��%�
%
�
���
� �#
�$��
������ ���$��������� �#���%��� �$���� ������ ��
��� ����
� �%
�����
%� �����%
�
�����
����
� �
��>� 
��
����� �
��>� �
#���
� ���#���� �
��>� ���
���� �����
� �
��>� ��%�
����
� %��$����� �
��� �����%���� �������� ����
� �
���� � (��$
������ ��� ���
���� ��%� ����
�
�����
��
����#���%��
���%����
%�����#
��&��(��$
�������������%�
$�����
�

4.3 BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

Fit�site�construction�to�the�terrain.�1#
����������������������
%�����#
����������������
����#
����%>���%����
+��
�
�����
�
%��
%���%�
������$��
���������
%��
%��
�
Schedule�grading�and�construction�to�minimize�the�duration�of�soil�exposure.�������@
�
�
����%�%����������
<$���
��(����#
%�����>���F
���������������#
��
�������%��#
��
��#
�
��
������7�%
�%������#
�%���
�������%��������@
�%�����
%��
������+���F������$������
��
�
Schedule� project� components� to� minimize� erosion.� � (������� $
���
��� �� �
�$����
����������
%��
��������
��������������������
���(������
�������
��
����
�
���
%�������
�#
�
�%�����#
�$�2
��>���
��#
��
�
������������������������������
��� �&�#
%��
���F��
��
�
������
��
�������#������������$�
�
%�����������������
���
>�
���������
�%����
�
Retain�existing�vegetation�whenever�feasible.� &��$������ �#
��
���#

� ������������ ���
�����
�� � (��
���
� 
<������� �

�� ��%� ��#
� ������� �
�
������� ����� �#
� ���
� ��$��
�
���
$�����
�
Vegetate�and�mulch�disturbed�areas��������������%����������$�
�
%���
�
Divert�runoff�away�from�site.�������@
� �#
�$������������� $
��$�������� ������������� �#
�
���
�����������
��
�����"��
������������������%���#��
�$���������
����
�
�����������#
�

Storm�Event� Rainfall�(inches)�
�,�
�� ��.��

.,�
�� -����

��,�
�� -�.��

�.,�
�� �����

.�,�
�� �����

���,�
�� ��.��

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 51



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�5�

���
� �� ������
�� � "��
����� ��� ������
� ��������������� ����� ��� ������� %���#��
� $������ ��%�
�
��
��#
�������
������
��%�����
%�������
�
Minimize�slope�length�and�steepness.�(��
�$�����$
�����
��������
��������������
�>�
��$�>���
�
�
��
��#
���
�
Keep�flow�velocities�low.� ��
�%�����
�����#��
�
������>��������>��� ��FK�%
��������%>�
�#������������
��K���
��#
�F�%���K���%�����$���
��&���
���
������
+�
������
��������
���$
����
�
Prepare�drainages�and�outlets�to�handle�increased�runoff.�"
�����$�2
��������#���������
�����������
%������
���
$�
�%�����
�����$
�F��
������
�K���
�
�
���%����$��
���������
����
�
Trap� sediment� on� site.�"
����� ������ �����
� ��� ����� ���� �
���
� ����� �
�
��� ���F���� ���
�
%��
����������%������
�
Inspect�and�maintain�control�measures.�(��$
�����������
���
���
+�
�����$����������
�
��
>� %����>� ��%����
� �����
�
���� ��� 
���
� �#��� �#
���
���F����$�$
������
���
$���
���������������#
��%
�
��$���

4.4 ESC PLANS

4.4.1 ESC Plan Requirements 

��� �&�� ����� ����� �
� �������
%� ��� �#
� ����� ���#� ��#
� $
���� %����
���� ��� �$$�����
���
���������,��$
�������
+��
%�����#
�$�2
�����(��������,��$
�������
+��
%>��#
���#
�
�$$������������$���%
�����$������#
�����,��$
������%��#
���$$������%����
��������#
�
������
��
��
����������������������
�
�����%��&�������#������#���%��������%���������
�� �!#
�������
�
<$��������%�2������
��
�#
� �#���
�� ��� #��� ��� F

$� ����� �����
�� � (�� ��������� ����������� ������ �#
� 
<������� ���
�
���%������>� ������������ ��#
%��
>� ��$
���� 
������ �������>����
����� �#��������
������
>�
��%� $��
%�
�� ��� �
� ������
%� ��� ��� 
�
�
����� � !#
� %������ �#���%� �#��� 
<�������
���%������>���
�����������>����
���$�����>���������������#
���������
���
�>���%��������������
�����
��
�����������#
� 
+��
�
����� ��&�������>�%������>� 
�������>���%� ���$
������
������#���%�
�

��
��#
���������
���
���������
���%�����
>�
����/�.�(��
�����
���������
�
!#
� 
+��
�
���� ����
%� ��� �#��� �
������ �
� �������� 
+��
�
���� ��%� �
� ���2
��� ���
�#���
����
%�������������
����%����������$$�����������
��������%��
%��
����������$�������
�#
� ����� %�
�� ���� 
��
�
� �#
� ��������I�� 
�$����������� ��� 
���
� �#��� 
������ �������
�
���
���
���������
%���%���������
%����$
�
����
%��
��������
������������������
���
�����
�
�&������������������%
��#
�&���%�%�	��
������
%�����$$
�%�<�4�����#�����������

4.4.2 ESC Plan Approval 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 52



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�6�

!#
� �&�� ����� �������
%������ �
� �$$��
%� ��� �#
� ����� �
��
� �� ����%���� $
���� ���� �
�
����
%��
�
A�copy�of�the�approved�ESC�Plan�must�be�kept�onsite�at�all�times�during�construction.�

4.4.3 Basic ESC Plan for a Small Site 

��2
���� ���$�
�
%������ �����
� ���>�%�����������
� �#���.����+��
� �

�>� ��%� �����
%����
%�$�
<� �� �����
� ������� 
��%
������ ����� �#���� $���%
� �� 4����� ��&� ����� ��� �#
� ����� ���
�$$������
��
�$
������
�����
%���%��������������
����������
�$���
���%�
<��$�
�$����
�����������
�����$$
�%�<�������#�����������
�
!#
�4������&��������#���������%
?�

�� �����
��#

�����#��#
�$�$��
%����
�����#
�$�2
��K��������������#
�$�2
��K����
>�
�%%
��>� ��%� $#��
� ����
� ��� �#
� ���
>� %
�
��$
>� ��%� 
����

K� �#
� ���%� ��
�
���#����� ���
� ���
� ����
K� ��%� �#
� ���
� ��%� ��,#��� 
�
�
���� ��������
���������������#
�$
����
�$������
������������������%����$
������
��������%�
�
%��
�����������
���
�K�

4� !#
� ������ ��
��
���� �#
�$�$
�����%� �#
� ������ ��
��
���� �#
�$�$��
%�%�����
%�
�
�K�

�� "������������
�#�%�K�
"� &���
%�%������������
����#��#
����������?�

�� 	��#����>��
�
�%>�$�2
�������%��
�>���%��%2��
�����

��K�
�� ��
�����%�$�$��
%�������
�K�
-� �<����������
���$���$#����%�$�$��
%�������������,������
��������
����#
����$
�

����#
����
�����
��
��#����M�����#��#����
��#
��������������
�����,������
����K�
�� 1��
����
������#
��
������
�
����
�����#��������

������#
����
K�
.�  ����������%���$
�����$�$��
%�
��������������
���
�K�
/�  �������� ��� ������������ 
�����
�>� ��%� 
<���� ��%� ����
�
� ���#����>� ��%�

����F$��
�K�
3�  ����������������

�����#����5,���#������
����F�%���
�
>��
���
%���������

�#
�����%>��#����
����#����#
����
�����%��
�����%2��
��������K�
5� "�
��������������
��������%����
%��������K�
6� 	
��
����
������%����%��#
����,������%$���������#
���
����#��������

�����

�#
�$�2
������
K���%�
��� &����
��������������������������%
������%���<�����#�@�%�������
�������
%�

%������#
�$�2
����
�� (��$
������&�#
%��
K�
=� ���
%�
������
�������
%�����#
�
�
���������$���������<�����#�@�%�������
���K�
7� �
�#�%�����
,�
�
��������#
����
����
������������K���%�
A� "��$������
�#�%�����������������%
������%���<�����#�@�%�������
�����

4.4.4 Regular ESC Plan for a Small Site 

��2
�����
����#�������
�����
<�

%�����#
�4������&��������#
�#��%����������������$�����#���
�����������#��#
�4������&���������%�����������%
���#
������������%%������������������?�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 53



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

�� ���%���������
<��������������
���������
�>������%������%��%
�����#
�%�����
�%���#
�>�
�#��#�����$��������
����
�����>������>��������#
�$�2
������
K��

4� &��
���$���#��������%
��#
������������%%������������������?�
�� �<������� ���
� ��$���$#�� ��%� $�$��
%� �������� ��� �,��� ���
������ 1#

� ���$
��


<�

%��.M>��������������
��#�������.,������
����K�
�� �%2��
������,���
�%�����
�$���
�����%����
%��������K�
-� ��
�������%���������������K�
�� �<���������#�,��,���>�
��
�
������%�2���%�������������%��
�K�
.� �%2��
�����#��,��,��������%��
�K�
/� �<��������
������
��
�����%��
�
���
%����%��K���%�
3�  ���������������
�������$����F����

�� "
����
%�%����������$�$��
%�
��������%��
%��
�����������
���
�K���%��
"� ����
��������$����F�����

�
���
�$���
���%�
<��$�
�$���������������
�����$$
�%�<�"�����#������������

4.5 DESIGNATED ESC INSPECTORS

!#
�%
������
%��&��(��$
�����������������#
��$$��
%��&�����������������$$����������

���
%� $���� �#��� $
�
���� $��������� ���� �
������ �� ���
�� � !#
�� ����� ���$
��� ���� �������
�
���
�� ��� 
���
� �#
�� �
� $�$
��� ������������� � !#
������� %����
��� ���� ���$
������>�

$���>�
$���
�
���>���%�
������������#
���������
���
����!#
�%����
��������������
�
��������
������
�������$
����������#
���������#
�"�B��
�
The� name� and� emergency� contact� information� of� the� project’s� ESC� inspector� must� be�
included� on� all� ESC� plans� submitted� to� the� City.� In� the� event� that� a� different� ESC�
inspector� is� appointed,� the� applicant� must� notify� the� City’s� ESC� Inspector� within� 48�
hours�and�provide�emergency�contact�information�for�the�new�project�inspector.�
� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 54



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

CHAPTER 5    ESC MEASURES 

5.1 GENERAL

���������%��
%��
�����������
���
��������
��������
%��������%���
����#��#
��$$��
%�
�&�� ����� �� ����,�� $
���� $��� ��� ����%� %��������
�� � !#
�� ����� �
� 
���
%� ���
�
������������ ��� �����#
%>�$
���
��� �������@�������
���
���
����$�
�
%>���%�����$�2
���
$
������
�������@
%�����#
��������
�
!#
������������������
���
���#�����
���$�
�
��
%�����������
�?�
�� ��
����� �����K�
4� "����������K�
�� 7���%����
K�
"� ������������������
����%��<���K���%�
�� (��
�����
�������
=� &
%��
���=
������

5.2 CLEARING LIMITS (REQUIRED)

�
�������#
�$�2
������
��#���������
����,����������������������
+��$�
���,����#������
���
����
�>��������
��������������
��>���������������@��
�����$
�
�
%��

��,��#����#��
�
#��#,����������� �
��
� �#��� %
���
��
�� �#
� ��
����� �������� � &
%��
��� �
��
� �����
� ��
%� ��� ��
�
%��
������������%������%����
�����
�������������A��
�
>������
%�����#���$�$��
>�����#����
�
���������
%�����%
����$���%
�����$������������������
%��
�����������

5.3 EROSION PREVENTION

������� $
�
������ ��� �#
� ����� 
��
����
� ��%� ��
<$
����
� �
�#�%� ��� 
%������ ��
����

������
�������$�������������
%����#���������������������
����(������
�����������#�����#��
�
����%�����#
�����>����������F
�-����3�%����������
�������������
���
��������
����������$
�%
%�
�����������!#

��
�
������$
�
����������#
�$���������������&���
���
������#
��������
���������#
������������
�#��+�
������
%��
��#
�
������$��
���������
<$��
%���%�����
%�
��������5�����6.�$
�
����

5.3.1 Native Vegetation and Buffer Zones 

�����������������
��
�
�����������#
������
��
����
���%���
<$
����
��������
������
$
�
��������������4���
�@��
���
�$����
%����$������
�
��������%2��
������%�����
%�
�
����#��#�
%��
�
��������%���������!#
�
��
�#�%���
�$����������
��
����
����
�
������
��
������#�����
����%�>���
������%��>���%��
����

$����$
����To�the�
maximum�extent�practicable,�existing�vegetation�shall�be�protected�from�compaction�
and�left�in�place.�
�
7���%� ���
� �#���� �
� $����
%� ��%� 
�������#
%� ��� ;����
� ���� ��%� �������
� ��� ���������
�#���#�����-��������#
������������
���(������%����
��������
�������#
%����;����
����>��#
�
�$
�� �
��� �#���� �
� $��
��
%� �#���#����� -���� ��� �#
� ���������� �
�����#� ���������#>�

����������F
��>��������>�����#
��
�#�%���$$��
%�����#
�������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 55



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

A. Design�Criteria�

�� �
�
�
������������$������

�����#�����
�� ���
����
�
��������������$����������������������
+��$�
����
-� ��
����
�������#���
����� ������������%
��#
�%�$� ���
����$
�
�
%��

��������#��#�

������������
��
���%�����������
�� =
��������������
������#
%�����

�����#�����
.� =
������������
�����
����-��

��#��#���%��
�#��#���������
��
/� &��$
���������
<�

%��A?�8��

B. Maintenance�

�� '
$����
��������%L������������
�� '
�

%���
��
����
-� !#
� �$$
����
� ��� ����
����
%� ������ ��%����
�� �#��� ��#
� �
�#�%�� ����� �
�

����$���
%�������#
��
���

5.3.2 Dust Control (Required) 

"���� ������� ��� �� 
+��
%� �&���
���
� ��� ���� $�2
���� ��� �#
� ������ � !
�#��+�
�� �����%
�
$������� ��%� 
�������� �$

%� ������� �����
>� �
�
������� %�����
%� �
��>� ��������������>� ��
���������
���������
���#
���$����
������������

A. Design�Criteria�

�� &�#
%��
� ������������ �$
������� ��� �#��� �#
� �
���� ������� ��� $�2
��� �
�� ���
%�����
%������
����
��

�� (������� �
�$���� �� $
���
��� �����
� �������@�������
���
�� ���
%���
��� ���
�
���$�
�������%�����

B. Maintenance�

�� ��������� %���� ������� �
���
�� �#���#� %�� �
��#
� $
��%�� ������ ���� %�����
%�
�
���#��
��

���������@
%��

�� (��
%���
���
,�������@
�%�����
%��
�����

5.3.3 Ground Cover (Required) 

7���%����
������
+��
%��&���
���
��������$�2
��������#
��������(�������$��
����
����
����
����� �� ��#
� �������
� ���
���� �$$��
%� ��� �#
� ����� �����
�� &���� ����#� ��%L��
#�%�����#��
���
%�������2�����������#��

%����������������
�������#
�
�������#�
������
�
�$������$
���
����
�
���������

A. Design�Criteria�

�� 0�
�������$
��%������#
��
���
������
�� "��
������
����
%���������������
�����#
%��
����
-� '
�
����Table�2�����$$��
%�����#
�>��$$�����������
�>���%�%
$�#���

B. Maintenance�

�� ������������
��#��F�
����

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 56



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��-�

�� 0�
����
�����������������F
����
,����#������
���
<$
�
������
�������
-� �������#�%���������,�
��
%��
����
�� (�� �#

�� �� ���� 
������ ��� 
��%
��� �#
�� $��$���� 
,�$$��� �� $���%
� ��#
� �&��

�
�#�%���
.� '
,����#��
����#�����������
�������#��%
+���
����
��

Table�2.��Ground�Cover�Application�

MULCH�

MATERIAL�
QUALITY�STANDARDS�

APPLICATION�

RATE�
PER�ACRE

DEPTH�OF�

MATERIAL�
CONSIDERATIONS�

Straw�
���%�
%>��

�����
�������
��

%��:�
����
����
����

�������P������
��6���������

���
��

���������#
��
���������
�$
�%�

	����
��

%���<
��

+��
%��

Yard�Debris�
or�Compost�

�

1
��,���$���
%�
�����������
��

�
����
����>�$��������
��%���#
���
����
����
�

-,/������

�����#
�����
-A?�8����$
�

-����#
�����
�A?�8����$
��

0�
������
�%�������

���$������@
?�

Q�<�������-?�����$
��
�������
����

P�<������?�����$
���

Wood�or�
Cellulose�

Fiber�
�

"�
%��

�K��������
������������#,
��#�������

���������
�����-����#
��
%
$
�%����
������$
�

0�
�#�%�����#
���

&������%����$
����
���
�$$�����������
���

0�
����F���
��#
��

����
�%
%�����#
�
���������
��

Wood�Chips�
or�Stump�
Grindings�

�

7

������,%�
%�
��%��

�������
�
����
����
����

.,/������
�����-����#
��
%
$
�%����
������$
�

=���
�
���
���������

�$$������#�����#�
����
>�
<���������

+��$�
��>������
#��%���

"��I����
�����
���
�#���
+��
�����
�
��������

Gravel�or�
Crushed�

Rock�
�

1��#
%�Q������.�
���#�

6��%��$
�
�>�����+����

-����#
��

0�
�����#������$
��
��%��������������
���

0�
����
�$��,������
�

$��
,$��
��
���

�

5.3.4 Seeding and Mulching 

&

%����$
�
����
���������
�������#�����
�
����������%�����
%��
�����%������������$
����
&

%���������
����$�
�
%����#��%>����������%������$
�%
>����#���#�#�%��

%�������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 57



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

A. Design�Criteria�

�� "��
���$���$
�����
����
%������������
��
%��
����
�� &

%>� ���,$#��$#���� �
����@
>� ����#>� ���F���
>� ����� ��
�%�
���>� 4��%
%� =��
�

����<�)4=�*>���%��#
�������������@�����������
��$$��
%������
���
$����
-� �$$������%����
������%L$�$
�����#������
������>��������>.�������$
���
��
�� �$$���4=�������
���
��

��->������%��>��������$
���
�%
$
�%�����$����������$
�

��%��
�������
����4=����������
��$$��
%����������
%������>�����
�$
���
���
����
�

@���>�������#
���,#�����
��������������$
��$���������

.� &

%���<��
�� ������� �������� �

%�� ���� �$
��
�� �#��� �
� �����%

%� �������
� ��

�
������������
�� �����������
�
������������
��$
��
�������
�����%�����#
�;
����
�������
���
�$��
���������,5//,(	8�"�'��

/� ���
� �

%���>� ��
� ��������� ������������ �� �������
���������
� �
�
�� ��%���<���@
�
����������
����

3� ���#�����������#����#�����+��%����F������
����#
�������������������
��
5� A�%������ ����#� �� ���F���
�� ��
%� ��� 
������ �� %���� ������� ����� 
�����

�����������������5�M��
�
����������
����
�������#
%�����#
����
��
6� '
�
�����$$
�%�<�7�����#��������������$$�����������
���

B. Maintenance�

�� '
,�$$�������
����#�����������
�������#�5�M��
�
����������
��
�� '
,����#���%L��$��
��������
���
<$
�
������
���������#��������������
������

�����������F
����

5.3.5 Matting (Details 609&610) 

1#��
��
�
�����������#
������
��
����
��
��������������@������������%������������
�����>���
�
���%��#���
������
���������������������������%
�����
����
�������������$�%��������#�
����������>�����F
��>������>���%��
�������
������
�$���
%�����#
�����%���%������#
%����#�
���F
�>��
�������$�
�>����
��
<���
�$������
�
0�
�������������������
�����)
<�
����>�2��
>���%����*�����
���
+�������������@���������
�$� ��� �#

�����#��� 0�
� ������� ����F
��� ��� ���$
� $��
������ ��%� �#��,�
�����
����
$��
��������%������$��
��#
��$

%���%�����
������
,�
�
���������0�
�����#
��������F
���
������������,�
���������@������������
������

A. Design�Criteria�

�� &����
�������
���%
%������#���%��

�����%
���>���F�>����%�>�����F�>���������
�� �$$����

%���%� ���,$#��$#���� �
����@
>� ����

%
%>�$��� ������������ �&

%���<
��

������� �������� �������
� �� 
�
����� �������
� �

%��� � �� ����� ��� 
�
����� �������
�
�$
��
�������
�����%�����#
�;
�����������
���
�$��
���������,5//,(	8�"�'��

-� (�����������#��������������������$�
�
������������#�����������
��
�� &

�Table�3�������������$
��������������%�
�
�������������
I���$
���������������

���$�
�$���
���
.� &��$
�(�����������?�

�� ��� ��$� ��� ���$
>� $���
��������� ��� �� �
��#� ��%� ���$�
� ��� ���
����� ��� �#���� ����
&���%�%�"
�����/�6��

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 58



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��.�

�� 0����� �������� %���#���� ��%� ��
��$� �������
� ��%� �
���#���
� ��� �#���� ���
&���%�%�"
������/�6:/����

�� ����������������$
>�
<�
�%��������

���
���%��#
���
�����#
����$
>��������
����
��%
������#
����%����$�
����������#����
������

/� ;���A?�8����$
�>�����������
�$���
%����#��@���������$���
3� 1#
����
%����������
����#���
���$$��������>�����������������#
�%�
����������������%�

%������2��������#
��
��
�����#
�����
����#���
���
5� ��� 
������ ������� ����F
�>� �������
%� ��
����� ��%� ������
%� ���#� �

%���>�

���������
�����M��
%��
�����%�
�����������������#
����

%��
�����

B. Maintenance�

�� '
$�������%����
%��
�������#
��
��������F
����%����$�
�������#
�����%������
���
�����������
������������#��#
�����%������
��

�� '
$�����%�$��
���
�%
%��
����

Table�3.�Matting�Specifications�

MATTING�TYPE� MAX�SLOPE�OR�CHANNEL�TYPE� NETTING�TYPE�

Straw� -A?�8��

!�$
��?��#���%
��%���
�$���$�$��
�
�
��$���%��������

!�$
��?����M����%
��%���
�)��
����
�
������
�#��������
��*�

Straw�and�
Coconut�

�A?�8��

!�$
��?��#���%
��%���
�$���$�$��
�
�
��$���%��������

!�$
��?����M����%
��%���
�)��
����
�
������
�#��������
��*�

Coconut� �A?�8������,������#���
��

!�$
��?��#���%
��%���
�$���$�$��
�
�
��$���%��������

!�$
��?����M����%
��%���
�)��
����
�
������
�#��������
��*�

Jute� -A?�8�����#����A?�8����$
� ���M����%
��%���
�

Excelsior� �A?�8�������,������#���
��
�#���%
��%���
�
<��%
%,$��������
�#�
��$���%��������

Coir�fabric�
�A?�8����#���
�����#�

��<������
������
�����5����
����

��$
��
���%�

!�$
��?��,���#���%����M����%
��%���
�

!�$
��?�P,���#���%����%
��%���
��

!�$
�-?�R,���#���%����%
��%���
�

�

5.4 RUNOFF CONTROL

Erosion and sediment control measures that control the amount of runoff discharged from a site 
translate to lower volumes and velocities of runoff.  Sediment and other pollutants discharging 
from the site are reduced as runoff volume and velocity is decreased.   

5.4.1 Swales 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 59



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��/�

&���
�� ����
�� �����
� ������ ��� ���,��%�
��� %�����
�� ��� ���
� ����
����
�� ���#� ���
%���#
�����������@
%�����
����&���
�������
���
%����������������������������#�
��#���#
��

A. Design�Criteria�

�� "
���������
������%�������Table�4�������
�� &���
�� ����� ���� �#
� $
�F� ������ ���� �� �,�
�� ��,#��� ����� 
�
��� ���#����


�%����� � �&

�Table�1� ��� �#
��,����,#���%
����������� � (��
��
���$�������#
��
����%�#�@�%��
<�����

-� !#
� �#���
�� �#�$
� ���� �
� $�������� �� ��$
@��%��� )����,������
%*�� 8,�#�$
%�
����
���
����������
%��

�� &������#
�F�%������������$
�%
�������
��
�
��������������@
��#���
��@�������
.� (��������#
�%��
�����#��@��������������
�������������%�����
%����$
��
/� ����������
��#
�����#��
��%������
��
��

������
��������$
�����
�%���
��������
3� (���#
�����
����
�
$�������������%�����
%��
��>����
���������������
�+�������

�������������
��������
5� (�� �#
� ����
� ���
�
$��� ������ ���� ��%�����
%� �
��>� ���
� ������ %������$
� ���

����%�����
%��
�����%�%���#��
����������������@
%�����
���
6� ����%
��������>�����
�
����>����$��
�������
�����
�������

Table�4�Design�criteria�

BOTTOM�WIDTH� �,�������������%���
�
���������#
�����
�

DEPTH� �������

SIDE�SLOPES� �A?�8��������
�

GRADE� ��<�����.M����#�$������
�%�����
�������������
�����
���

SLOPE�OF�DISTURBED�

AREA�VS.�HORIZONTAL�

SPACING�

�
S.M�

�
-������

.,��M� �������

��,�.M� �������

�.,.�M� .�����
�

SLOPE�STABILIZATION�
!
�$�������

%��� ���
����#���F� �����%
$�#����/� ���#
��
��%�$
��� ������#
����F��$$�<����
���-������ ���#
�� �����
%
$�#���������-����#
��

OUTLET�
 
�
���$
�%
����$�$�����������@
%�����
�L�
%��
��������
$��%��

�

B. Maintenance�

�� '
,�
�
���
� �� $���%
� �%%�������� �
���
� ��� ����
� #��� 
�������#
%� �
�
�������
���
�����
����#���5�M�����#
��
���

�� '
���
� �
%��
�������������������� ���
�>� ����
�>� ��%����#��� �#
� ����
� ������������
%
����
%����������$�������

-� (��
%���
���
$���%����
�
������������%
���>�����>�
�����>������$��������
�� (��$
�����%�
$�������
�
��������
�
�
����2��������
.� ������@
����������������������
��
�$����%�F
����%�����
���

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 60



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��3�

/� �#
�F��#
��#���
������
����%�������%����
�
�������������F�������������%�
��%
��
����
$�$�����������#��
����%���F
�
$�������
%���
�����

5.4.2 Outlet Protection (Detail 606) 

0�
%� ������2�����������#���#
�
��������%��
%��
�����������
���
�>�����
��$��
������
%����$��
��
�
������%
�
��
�%���#��
��
������
����%�
������$��
��������

Design�Criteria�

� 0�
��#
�����%�%�%
������������
��$��
�������������������������%
����
����%����������
%
�
���
��������
����$�
<�
�
���%����$��
������
�
+��
%��

� 0�
� ��� �#
�����
��� ��� ����
�>� %���#
�>� �� ��#
� ����
����
�� 
�$
��������#

� ������ ���
%���#��
%������������������,��%
�%�����
��
���
����#��������
������
����%��

Maintenance�

� (�� �#

� ��� ����� ��� �#
� ����
�>� $��
��� �#
� 
�%
%� �
�� ��� ���
������ �#
� ��@
� ��� �#
�

�
��� %����$��
� ��������>� %
�
������ �#
� ���$
>� �� %���#������ ��� �� ���
� �
�
���
%�
�
���

� '
���
����������
%��
%��
����
+�
������

5.4.3 Surface Roughening (Detail 608) 

'���#
����� ��� �����$���#
%� ��� �
������ #��@������ ����
�� ��� ���$
�� ���#� ���F
%�

+��$�
���� � (�� 
������ ���
� ��� �
������ ���
�� ��� �
������ ���
� ������ �<�
����
�
���#�
��������%
�����
��#

�����������$����
%��

A. Design�Criteria�

�� !��F�����#���%��
������$���#
%����%������
+��$�
���up�and�down��#
����$
����
�
��
�#��@������%
$
�������������
���

�� A
��#��������F�����
���#���%��
���.����#
�����
��
��
-� (��
%���
����

%���%�����#����#
�
%��
����

B. Maintenance�

�� =��������>������
�>�������$������#��������
��#
�����������%
>��#
��
,�

%>�����#>���
���������������$������
���0�
�������������#
�
��
���
��%������$
�
���
�������

5.5 SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES

&
%��
��� ��������
���
�� �
� �������� $���
%� ����%� �#
� $
��
�
� ��� �� %�����
%� �
��
�#

����
� ���� �
��
� �#
� ���
�� &
%��
��� ��������
���
��������
� ���$���
��
��
� ���%�
��
�������%���%�����
������!#
���
��#
���������
����%
�
��
�����#
�$
�
�������������
�
+���������%���������
���
%������$������&���
�#�%��
�
1#
�� 
������ ������ ��%� �
%��
��� ��� %
$����
%� ��� ���������� �#

� ��� ���� 
��
� �#
�
�������
� ����
�>� �
������
� �
��>� �����
����
�>��
�#��������
���� ��� 
������� �#
�
�
%��
��� �#���%� �
� ��
%� ����� ��%� �
%��
��� ���������� �
�#�%�� ���#� ��� ���
�� $��
������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 61



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��5�

�#���%��
���
%��
���%���1��#�����#
��
%��
���������#
��������
�����
�>����
����
�>�
���
������
��
��������������$�#����
%���%����2
������$
�����
���
��
(�� ����������
%� ����� ��� 
������

%� %����� �����������>� �#
� ��������� �#���� ���$� ��F�
���
%���
�����%���$�
�
����#
��$�����������$��
%�
���!#
�����������#�������
%���
���
������� �#
�����I���������������� (��$
������%>�%
$
�%������� �#
��
�
���>����
�
�
����

�$���
��
�����%��#
�"�B��

5.5.1 Construction Entrance and Exits (Required - Detail 601) 

������������ 
�����
�� ��%� 
<���� �
� 
+��
%� �&���
���
�� ��� ���� $�2
���� ��� �#
� ������
!#
�� �
� �
�
����� �������@
%� ��F� $�%�� $���
%� ��� ������������ ���
� ���
��� $������ �#��#�

�������
��
%��
��������
��������$��
%��������%�������&��������
�$�2
����������
����

<�������$��
%�%��
��������������������#�
�
���#
����
�$��
�������������F�$�%��
�
!#
��
���$���
�
������ �� ������������
�����
L
<��� �������������� �#
������
�����
� �����
$�2
����
����
��������������������������%���$���#
�
�����
L
<���%�������$�2
����

A. Design�Criteria�

�� (�������������������
�����
L
<�������������
���$��������%�$�������������
���F��
�� ���������$�%���������>����$���
%������%
��
-� ��������%��
������?�

�� &����
�=������'
��%
���������������
���#�<���������%�#��
�� ������#
����
����.������
���#�<���������%�#�

�� ��������%
$�#����5����#
���
.� "����������������F����$��
%������
����
/� (����%
� �� ��
� ���#� ��������� ��� �#
� 
�����
� %�
�� ���� $��
� 
��
����
� ��� 
��������

�
%��
��� �����
�� !#
� ��
� ���#� ��������� ������� %���� ��� �#
� �������
� ����
�>�
���
����
�>��
������
��
��>�����%������

B. Maintenance�

�� �%%���
$���
���F�����

%
%��������������#
��$
����
%�%��
��������
�� (��
%���
���
���
�����%
���>�����>����
%��
������F
%��������%�������
-� 0����� ���
� ��� ���#� �
%��
��� ����� �#
� $������ ��#�,��,���>� �������
� ����
�>�

���
����
�>����
������
��
��������������$�#����
%���

5.5.2 Tire Wash Facility (Required, sites over 1 acre) 

!�
����#���������
��
���
��#����������%�%
�����
��������F
%�������
��1��#���
������#
�
����������������

%���%�����
�
%��������
������
���������������������������
����#�������������

+��
%�����#
�������������
�����
L
<�������������
��%
+���
����$
�
����
%��
�������
�
�������#
����
��

A. Design�Criteria�

�� ���������
���#?��������
�� ����������%�#?��������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 62



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��6�

-� ����������F�%
$�#?�5�����
�� ��
��
���
����#����$?��5�����
.� (������������%
��
��
<���
���������������
�
/� 0�
��,/�������F���
��
��
<���
�������

� Alternate:�-�������$#�����������
��������
����
�����
�
3� D��������������
�����
��������%��
���
�������������
5� (��������
����������
�
��������
������
<�������������������
#���
������������#
���
�

���#��

B. Maintenance�

�� (��$
����

F����������>�����
�%
$
�%�����$�����
��
�� ��
�����
$���
���F������
%����#��
%��
����
-� �����������
����#����$�%
$�#�
�� �������������
�����,����$�%�
.� (��
%���
���
���
���������>��
%��
��>���%
�����#����
������
%������#
�$�%����

�#
���%�����
/� ����
� �#��� �#
� ���#���
� %�����
>� ����
�����>� ��%� �
���
��� ����
�� ���

�������������

5.5.3 Dewatering 

"
���
�����
$���
�����
� �����
%��
��� �#���#� �#
���
�����
�� ���F�>����������<
�>�
���,�������
%� �
%��
��� ����>� ���%� �
%��� ���������>� ��%� ���L����%�
� �#���
��� !���
��$
�������������������
����
����������%�$
���
��
�

A. Design�Criteria�

�� "
�
���
��������$
���%��
�
�������$$�$���
�����������#������������%���#��
�����#
�
�������
�����
�>����
����
�>����
������
��
������

�� 1
�����F����%�����
���<
���
�
��
����
����
������������%��
-� &��%��
%�������
���
�
��
����
����
������������%���%�������
�� ����%�
�����
�����������
���
��������%�������
.� '��F��
��>����,����
�����>����
%��
����
��
���#�$
%������#��������
���%�����
�������

�
�
������#

������
��������
%����������
���
��
�#�%��

B. Maintenance�

�� '
���
��
%��
����#
�����
��#
���L-���$�������
�� ���
����������
�$���
%��������$$��
%����������������
���
<$��
%��������
��

5.5.4 Inlet Protection (Required - Detail 605) 

(��
��$��
�����������
+��
%��&���
���
��������$�2
��������#
������� �(������
����������%�

���
�� �
%��
��� �
��
� ������ 
��#
�� �� ����%���� �� ��#
� ���$��
��� ��� �#
�
�������
�����
���(���������������
����%
�
��
�������MUST��
���
������������
%��

Design�Criteria�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 63



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

� ����
����
��$��
����������
����#

����
�����$��%���%��#

�$��%�������������#��
�
�%�
�
���$������

� (��
��$��
����������������������$����������
�

������
�
����

� '
+��
%�������������%�����%������$
�����#
�%�����
%��
�����������������
���

� 4������������
���
%����$��
%�����$��
%��
����

� &
%��
��� �
��
�� ��%� ��������
�� ���� ����� �
� ��
%� ��� ��$��
%� �
������#� ���$
�� �
���
�#���.�$
�
����

� &
%��
����
��
����%���������
����������
���
%��������
����
%���������������
%����
$��
%��
������#������

����

� Biobags�
o (����������#���/T���
��$�����%�����%�����
o 4�������������
�����#����������#
�������%�����
%��
��������
������#��
o &��F
�����������
�����#����T<�T����%
�����F
���#

��$$������
��&��F
�������

�
�%��
��������#
�����%�������#
�����#������-����#
��$���%���������#
���$����
��
%����������

� Straw�Bales�
o !��#�����������������
��������T��
��#����#�����T��
��$��
o &��F
����#��T<�T����%
�����F
���

� Catch�Basin�Insert�or�silt�sack�
o 0�
�
<$�������
����������$
�
����������$#��������
�������
���
o ����������
���
%��������%%�����������
��$��
�����K���������
���
%�����#
�$�����

���
��$��
�������

Maintenance�

� (��$
�����%�
���
��
%��
����#
�����
��#
���L-�����#
����������
�#
��#���

� (��$
�����%�
���
��
%��
�������#
�����#����������
������������F�����L-�������
� =������������%����
�>���
����
�#��������
�������
���
��
%��
���%
$������)�#��
����

����*��Using�water�to�remove�sediment�is�strictly�prohibited.�
� �#
�F������%
����������%������%��
���������%��#
����
��$��
�������

� '
$�����
$���
����
��$��
�������#
���$���>����>���
����>�����#
���
���$��
%��

5.5.5 Sediment Fence (Detail 602) 

���
%��
����
��
�������
��
��#
%��
��
<���
���
��#
%���������%������#
%������$$������
$������&
%��
����
��
���
��%
+���
�����
��������%
$�#���������
������#���
���%����#

��
�������

A. Design�Criteria�

�� &#�����
��������
%���,��������������%�����%�
������
�$
��
�
���
�� &
%��
����
��
��#����������
���
%�����#

��������&
%��
����
��
��#���������
���
%����

%
��
�������
����
%��������
3. &���%�%���#
���,%�����
%��
����
��
��#����#��
����������
%������#
%����$�����#�

�<�,���#� �,��� $������ � Stitched� loops� shall� be� installed� on� the� uphill� side� of� the�
sloped�area.�

�� &
%��
����
��
���#���%��
��������
%��������������-��

��������
�������$
�����%
�
�����<���@
�������%
�
��������$���������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 64



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

.� (�����������?�
�� ���
��#��#�����
�
<�����
%�/����5����#
��%

$����
�� ����
��#
��
%��
����
��
����#��#����#
������#
%����$���
��������
%�����#
��$#����

���$
����#����F
��%��
������
����/��%%�����������#
��������#
�����%��
�� 4��F������
��#�������#���%
������
��
��

/� ������ �#���� �
� �$��
%� �� ��<����� ��� /� �

�� �$��� ���#���� ��
� ��$$��� ��%� ��
��<������������

���$������#���
���$$����

3� 1#
���
%��
����
��
��$$���#
�������
���������$����>������
��
��$#������%�
<�
�%�
��
������$��
��)/��

�*��

5� 1#
�� 2������� ���� ����
� �
%��
��� �
��
�� ���
�#
>� 2���� �#
� ���� 
�%� ���F
�� ���
��$$�����#
�����
�%������
������
���%���
�#�����������%�%�������#
�2���
%����F
��
������#
�����%����
�#
��

6� A
��#��������
%��
����
��
��#��������
<�

%�-��

���&
%��
�����������������#��������

<�

%��L-�����#
��
��
�#
��#���

B. Maintenance�

�� (��
%���
���
$�������%����
��
�� '
���
����������
%��
%��
������
����#���
��#
%��L-��#
�#
��#������#
��
%��
���

�
��
����������<������
-� (��$
�������#���
�����������$����
������#
��
��
��#��#���%����
���#
��
��
<���
����

�����
%���%L����������������������
���'
$���
��
%��
����
��
����
��
�$���������
���
%��
��#
�$��
����������#���
������������

�� '
$���
�%
�
����
%��������
%��
��
<���
��
.� �#
�F������%
����������$�$������%
��
��
��

5.5.6 Wattle (Detail 611) 

�$$��
%� �����
�� �
� ��
� ����>� �������� ���
>� �� �<�
����� �����
��� !#
�� #��
� ���
�$$�<����
���5����6����#
��%���
�
���%��
�3�����.��

������
���#��1����
���
�$���
%����
�#�������
��#
����%����F
%��������#
������������
���,��������
%���%�����
%����$
���

A. Design�Criteria�

�� '�������%��#�����������
���#���%��
������#
%������F�$��
��
���
�� (������������
��������������#
����
�����#
����$
���(���������F�����$#������%�$����
�����

�#
���������
-� 1����
�������
����#�����������#
����������
��#����F
���
������$��
<�����
��

���#
�

�������%��#
������
��
�� �%2��
��������
��������
����#��������
%���%����F
%���&����
������
�2�������
.� 0�
��<�,���#����%����F
���
/� &��F
��������
�%��
������������������ ���� �������%�����
%����
�������#��� ���-�

���#
��$���%��������
��#
������
��
3� (������� ���F
�� ��� 
��#� 
�%� ��%� 
�
�� �� ���� �%%�������� ���F
������ �
� %��
�� ��� �#
�

%���#������%
�����#
��
��#
���
5� (�������$
$
�%��������������%�
��������%�����#
���������
6� !
��#���������
��
�
���������������������%������������#��#
������
��

B. Maintenance�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 65



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

�� ��F
� ��
� �#
� �����
�� �
� ��� �������� ���#� �#
� ����� ��%� �
� ����
%� 
�%� ��� 
�%���
'
�
��#>�
$���
>���
�����
������
����������%������������

�� '
,�

%��
�
�����������������������������
�
���������������@
����$
��
-� '
���
��
%��
����#
�������������������L-�����#
�������
������
�#
��#���
�� '
$�����
$���
��$���>����>�����
����>�������$���������
��

5.5.7 Straw Bale (Detail 603) 

&�������
�������
���
%�����
%��
�����������#
��$���
%����
�#
����#�����$��
��
��

��
�#
����%����F
%���4��
���

%�����
��
��#
%�������#
�����������#
����%����F����
%��

Design�Criteria�

�� �%2��
�����������
��������
����#��������
%���%����F
%���
�� 0�
��<�,���#����%����F
�����#������F
��%��
�������
��#����
����
-� &��F
��������
�%��
������������������ ���� �������%�����
%����
�������#��� ���-�

���#
��$���%��������
��#
����
��
�� (������� ���F
�� �
�� 
��#� 
�%� ��� �#
� ���
�� �%%�������� ���F
�� ���� �
� %��
�� ��� �#
�

%���#������%
�����#
��
��#��
.� (�������$
$
�%��������������%�
��������%�����#
���������

Maintenance�

�� ��F
���
��#
����
���
���������������#��#
��������%��
�����
%�
�%����
�%���'
�
��#>�

$���
>���
�����
����
����������%������������

�� '
,�

%��
�
�����������������������������
�
���������������@
����$
��
-� '
���
��
%��
����#
���������������
��#
%�����<,���#�)/T*�#
��#���
�� '
$�����
$���
����
��#
���$���>���������������������������
����>������������
�

�����F
���

5.5.8 Vegetated Strips

&������
� ���� �
� %��
�
%� ��� 
<������� �
�
���
%� �
��� ��� $#������ ������������� � (�� ���
��$���������$���%
�#��#,������������
��
�����%����
�
���
%��
�����
���������������������
��$�������

Design�Criteria�

� ����������%�#�����
�
���
%����$������.��

���

� &��$
��������
������
��#����A?�8����#������������
���#�����.���

�����

� =����/A?�8����$
>��#
����������
���#���������

���

� =������A?�8����$
>��#
����������
���#�����.���

���

Maintenance�

� =�����������%������
����%�
,�

%��

� (���������%������
������>���
����
�
���$
�%
�����#
�
�
���%����$��
�����
��
��
��
�
�#

���������%��������

� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 66



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��-�

CHAPTER 6    SOURCE CONTROL 

6.1 MATERIALS

!#
� �&�� ���������� �$
����� �#
� �����
� ��%� %��$����� �
�#�%�� ��� ���� #�@�%���� �� ��<���
���
�������!#
��������������
������
���
%������������������������
�?�

� ;��������
,���
%�$�����

� �+��$�
�����
��

� =���������%���
%������

� &
��
��

� "
�
��
��

� �
���
���$�%�����

� 4���
�
��

� 8
#���
�����
�
��

� �
�����%
����%�#
����%
��

� �%#
���
��

� =���
��
�����%�#��#,%
���������$��

� ��4��)�
�
��������������%������%
�
�
�������
+��$�
��*�

� ���
�����)����������>����
�>�2������
�
������%�����F�>�������>���%���#
����
����*�

�  
�%�)$����>�����>����F��������>�$����������������%
*�

� ����������
%�&�����
�
�����������
�
������
%����������#
�"�B�#�@�%�������
����$�����)��5����.������*�
�����
������������
��%�����#
����
�������
%�����#
��$�2
�����%�$��
������$���������
����
���

6.2 SPILL PREVENTION AND RESPONSE

(�������$����������
����
����
�����������
��#
��&�����������#
�
�
���������
�
�
���K��������
���
����
�$���

I�����
>�F

$����$�����������
%>������
��#
��������������
���$��(���%
����

�����
�����
�$��%�������
�
�
���?�

�� 	������
�
�
����$
����
������#
�#�@�%��������<������
������#����
������
��
4� '
+��
��#���������������%����,����������
�%������&�����������#
��F�����#
�

�������������#
���������
���
����%��#������%������#
�
�
���������
�
�
�����
�
����� �$���� #�����
� ����
�� ��� #��#,����������� �
��>� #��
� �$���� F���� ��� #��%>� ��%� �����

�$���

������$����
�$���
���&$
�����%
������
%��
��������+��%������
���%���������
#���
�
��%� 
+��$�
��������
����
>� ��
�>� ��%����#�����$
�������� � &��
�� �#���%��
��
��,��F
%�
��%�������
������
%�������������
����
�>������%����>���%��
������
��
����
�
������$������
��#��
��$������#����
�
��������
��
%��$����#����
��������#��%�� �!#
������
���������$
����������$����������%�����
,��
��������
+��$�
�����(���#
�
�
�������������
�$���>���
����$��#
��$������%�%��$��
��������
�$�%�����$�$
������
����2���$����#�������
%��#
����������������������#
��$�������#������
�
����
����%���
���
�����F����
��%
������$
����
��������>�����%���#��
�������
������#
�����
���������%

%�
����2���$������=����2���$����>������6�����%��#
�����������

����"
$���
�����0�
��$����F����

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 67



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

��� �������� ��%L�� ��
��� �$� �#
� �$����� � 0�
%����
���������� �
� %��$��
%� ��� ��� #�@�%����
����
��
�
Major�spills�must�be�reported�(see�Appendix�H).���

6.3 SECONDARY CONTAINMENT

&
���%�����������
�����%����
�������
�$���%
%����������+��%������
��
��>��
#���
���%�

+��$�
�����
������
��>���%������
����
��
���� �!�<�����%�#�@�%�������
�����������
�
���

%� ��%� �
� ��� �� %
������
%� �
�� ���#� �
���%��� ��������
���� � 4���
%� ��%� ��<
%�
���
�����������
����$���
�����%����������
%������������#
�����%����
�
��������
������������%
���������������#
����������?�
�� ���
��������$�
�K�
4� '
�
�
���%���K�
�� 4
�������%�%�����%�
�����%
������
�K�
"� "���$������%�$�����#���������#��$��������
�F���#
��
����������#�����������%�K���
�� A��%�������F����������
���
�
&
���%�����������
����#����$���%
�����$������������
�������#
����
����������
����#���
���� ����%��� �� ��M� ��� �#
� ���
���
� �����
� ��� ���� �#
� �������
�� ���#��� ���� ����%���
�#��#
�
� ��� ���
�� � !#
� �
���%��� ��������
��� 
�
$����
� �#���� �
� ��$
������ ��� �#
�
���
��������
%����#�����������%���������������������������
����3��#�����
�
&������
����
$��������#�����
�$���%
%��
��

�����
%��������
���������������$������
���$�
��%�
�
�
����
�$���
����
��������
������#�����
����
%�����#
�����������������
�����#�
�#
���������$�%�������
�����(����$�����
����
��������#�����#����
���%����������#��������
�
����
%�����#
����
��
���%�����������
���
�
$����
��

6.4 VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT FUELING AND MAINTENANCE

;����
� ��
����� �#���� ������
���
%��#

� ��� ��� ��$�������� ��� �
�%��
#���
�� ��%� 
+��$�
���
������
�� � (�� ������
� ��
����� ���$�#������
���
<$
����
>� �#
� ���������� ��
$�� �#���� �
� ��F
�� ���
��
����������
?�
��  ����
� �#
� ��������
�� ��� ��$
������ �
��� �#

� �$����� ������� 
��
� ���
����
�>�

�
������
��
��>����#
��������
�����
���
4� ����%
��
���%�����������
�������
��������%
%����
%��$����F�����%�����
�
�
$����
��
�� ����%
�������
�����#
��
�����
�
�+��$�
����#����������
���
�
%�������
��������%
%����
%���
������
������"��$
���������#��
��
�#����#��
�����$$�$���
��#����������
��Topping�off�and�unattended�fueling�is�
prohibited.�
�
�����
����
� �
��� �#���� �
� �
�� �����
� ��
����� �
��� ��� �#
�� �
� $
�
��� ��� �#
� 2�����
���
�����
����
� �
��� ����� #��
� �
���%��� ��������
��� ��%� �� %
%����
%� �$���� F��� 
������
��������
�����#
��
�����
�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 68



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��.�

&
�
���
>�
��
>���
����
��
��
>����>���������
�>������

@
>���
���������������>����������
�
����
�
�>� ��%� #�%������ ��%� ������������ ����%��� � 8
#���
� ���#���
������ �
� �������
%�
�����
���%����������
%����
��
��#
��������
�����
�����

6.5 CONCRETE WASTE MANAGEMENT (DETAIL 607) 

(�� ���
<$
�����$�#����
%� ������#���������
�
� ���F���#

� �������
��
� �#
��������
�
����
�>��
������
��
��>������
����
���0���
%�����
�
��#�����
��
������F�����#
�
�%�,
��<� ���������� �1��#���
� ���� ����
�
� ���F�� ��%� 
+��$�
�������� �
� %���#��
%� ����� ��
����
�
����#���� ��%� �����
%� ��� 
��$���
� ��%� %��� � ���
������ �
� $���%
%� �
��

��
;����
�������%�����-��������#
������������
�����

6.6 STRUCTURE PREPARATION AND PAINTING

&��
�$�����>�$
$���������%���
���������
����>� ��%�
+��$�
��� ����� ���

%�%
������
%�
�
��� � ���
� ���� �����%
� �
�$���� �������%�������#� �
��
%�%�$� ����#�� ��� ������ �
�����
 �+��%�� ����� #��
� �
���%��� ��������
��� ��� �%%������ ��� ���
�� � 4���%���� ���#���� ���
�����
%� ����� �#
�� �#
� %���#��
� ��� �������
%� �����
� ��%� ����� ���� ���
����
�>�
�
������
� �
��>� ��%� �#
� �������
� ����
��� � !#
� ��
� ��� ���%�>� ���
�>��
���� ���#�
�
�>�
��
��>���#
��
%����
����$�#����
%����
�
����%�����������������
��%���������������%��%�����������%����������������������
���%�
�����
�%������

6.7 WASTE DISPOSAL

"
�
���
� �#��#� ������������ ����
�� ���� �
� 
��
%� �� 
����
%� ��%� $���%
� �
��� ���
�#
�� �#��� �
� �
$���
� ���� ���%���������
�� � 0�
����
,���#�� %��$��
�����#� ��%�� �����
���
&
$���
�#�@�%��������
�����������#
�����
����$�$
�%��$������ � �DO�NOT�mix�waste�
types.�
�
����
������#��������
�%�����
�$
�������%��������%������������%�������� �!��#�����
������
��%� 
�������� ��������
�� �#���� �
� ��
� ��� �#
� ����� �
���
�� 
���
%� ���� �#
� ���
����
�
���$���������
���
%�����%������#
�$�$
�����
���
��������%������"�������
��
������%�$�
$�������$
���������
������������%��#
����
���0�
��$$�$���
����
��������#���������
���
$�%������������$�������%�%��$��
�����#
����
������$$�$���
������
�
&���F$��
�� ��� ����������
%� ����� ����� �
� ���

%� ���#� $������� �#

����� ��%L�� #��
�
�
���%�����������
������
�
&�����������
���������
���#���������
������
%��
���#
��������
�����
�>����
����
�>���
�
������
� �
���� � =�������
�� �#���� �
� ��������
%� ��� �� ���
��
%� 
$�����
� �
���
� ��%� �
�
$�$
��� ������������� � 1���
� �#���� �
� #���
%� ��� �#
� ����
���
� �
���
��� $����� ���
%��$������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 69



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��/�

CHAPTER 7    INSPECTIONS AND DOCUMENTATION 

7.1 GENERAL

!#
� ����� 
�
�
�� �#
� ��#�� ��� ���$
��� ������������ ���
�� %����� ������ �����
��� #���>�
#
������������)�
��
��#�����-����#
�������������$
�#��*>��� ������
�
�
����������������
"����� ��� ���$
�����>� �#
� ����� �&�� (��$
���� ���� 
+�
��� ��%� 
�
��
� �� ��$�� ��� ����
������������ %����
���� �����%���>� ���� ���� �����
%� ��>� $
����>� �&�� ���$
������ ����� ��%�

$���>� �� �#
� ���
��� �
����� ��� �#
� �$$��
%� �&�� ������ � !#
� ���������� ����� �#���%� �
�
��������
�����������
�����
��
�?�

�� ������������$
����K�
4� �&���������%�
�������K���%�
�� (��$
�������������%�
$����%����
�����������
����
>�
$���>���
$���
�
�����

7.2 INSPECTIONS

���� 
������ ��%� �
%��
��� ��������
���
������� �
� ���$
��
%� ��� �#
� ����� �&�� (��$
����
$��� ��� �#
� ����� ��� ������������� � !#
� �$$������� ����� ���$
��� ��%� F

$� �����
�
%����
��������
��%�������$
������%��
����%����
�>�
$���>���%�
$���
�
��������#
��&��
�
���
����!#
�%����
��������������
���������
�����#
������%����������������
���#����
������#
�
�
���������
�
�
�������
�
�<��$�
� ���$
������ ����� ��%� 
$���� �
� ��������
� ��� �$$
�%�<� �� ��� �#��� �������� � !#
�
���$
�����������#���%��
���
%�%������#
����
� ���$
���������#��#
�
$����
��
%����
��#
�
���$
��������%��$%��
%�������������
����
����$�
�
%������������
���
�������%����%������
�#���%��

%� ����� ��#
%��
%������
����
�� � �� ��������
���
� ��� ���� ���%����������� �

%�

$��� ��%L�� �����
����
�� � �� ������� �
���
� ��� $��� ���%������ ��� ���� ������������
$�$
�����%��

%������
�
$���
%��
�
!#
����$
�������
+�
��������&���
���
����?�

Active�Period�

� "������#
��$
��$������������#
�$
���������#���������.T����
��
��
� 1

F���%�����%��$
��%���

Prior�to�the�site�becoming�inactive�or�in�anticipation�of�site�inaccessibility.�

� ;��
����
���
��#���
��������%��
%��
�����������
���
���
������F�����%
�������
�
�
����������
����
���%�
$���������
���%
�$�������
�������#
����
��

Inactive�periods�greater�than�fourteen�(14)�consecutive�calendar�days.�

� ;��
�
�
������)�*��

F���

Periods�during�which�the�site�is�inaccessible�due�to�inclement�weather.�

� (��$�������>����$
�����������������%����������
�
�������%����
�����
�%���#��
�$�������
%�����
�������������

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 70



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��3�

!#
� ���$
���������%����
��� �#
�����������$
��$�������� ��� �#
�$
���������#���� )����
��
����
�
������
�������
�������������
*>����%����������#
��&���
���
�>�����
$������

$���
�
����
+��
%>���%��#
�%��
��#����#
�
$������
$���
�
�����

����$�
�
%��

7.3 DOCUMENTATION  

��
�����������������
������#��
��#
��$$��
%��&���������%������
��������F��#��������%
��

�#
����$
�������������%�
$���>��$����
$���>��#
����������&������>���%�������%�����������

��%
�����#
��&���������!#
�
���
���������
�$���%
%�����#
�������$���
+�
����

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 71



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��5�

APPENDIX A:  NEWBERG STREAM CORRIDOR 
OVERLAY MAP 

�
�
'
�
�����#
���������	
��
��"
�
��$�
�����%
��#�$�
��.�-��>�&�
������%��;�
����
&��%������>����%
�
��������#
������������%�%
�
��$�
�������%�%�����#����#
����%��������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 72



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��6�

APPENDIX B:  REQUIRED STANDARD NOTES FOR 
ESC PLANS 

�� !#
� ��$�
�
�������� ��� �#��� �&�� $���� ��%� �#
� �����������>� �����
����
>�

$���
�
��>� ��%� �$��%���� ��� �#
� �&�� ��������
�� ��� �#
� 
�$����������� ��� �#
�
�$$������L��������� ������ ���� ������������ ��� ���$�
�
%>� �$$��
%� ��%�
�
�
������L���%���$�������
�������#
%���

�� !#
��&������>�����
�������>���%����$
������������#�����
�F
$�������
�����������
�����
-� !#
��&���
���
���#��������#
�$�����
��#
���������
+��
�
��������#
�$�2
���

���
���%��#�����
��$��%
%�����

%
%����������������$�����
����#�����
�����������
�� ���� �&���
���
�� �#���� �
� �$$��
%>� ��� $���
>� ��%� ����������� $��� ��� ���� ����%�

%��������
� ��� �#
� ���
�� � ��������� �#���� ��������� ���� �&�� �
���
�� �#���#����
���������������

.� ��
����� ������>� �������� �$����� �
��>� ����
� @��
�>� ��%� $
�
�
%� �
�
�������
)�����%���� ��$������ �

�� ��%� ��������
%� �������� ���� @��
�*� �#���� #��
� #��#�
����������� �
��
� �������
%� �
��
� ��%���� �� ������������ ��� �%
�����>� ��F>� ��%�
$��
����#
��
����

/� ������������ ��������
�� ����� ����%� �� ������@
� ���� 
<��������� �� ��#
� �����
%
�������@����������;����
������������-��������#
������������
���

3� !
�$�������
��������@�������
���
��������
��������
%�����#
�
�%�����#
��#�����
��
�
��#���%������

F
�%�������#
�
�%����
��#���F%���������������
���������#
��
<�����
#�����

5� &
%��
�����������������
��������
%���%���������
%��������#
����
�$
��
�
��������
%���,��%�
��� ��%
�� ��� �#
� ������������ ���
� ��%� ��� ���� �����
� ��%� �$
��������
���
��������%���������������
��%�������������������

6� "���
�#�%��������
���
%����
���
��
%��
�����%�����
�
���

$����������
���
�#

� %���#��
� ��� ��F
��� ��� �#
� ����� %����>� ��

��>� ���
����
�>� �� �
������
�
�
����

��� ����%��� ��%�%
���� ���F
%������ ��

���������
� 
���
%� ���
%���
��� ��� ��� �����
�
�$
�%���������������#
���
�
��#������%����>����
����
�>����
������
��
����

��� &
%��
��� %���#��
%� ������
� ����� �
� $���
%� ���F� �����
� ���#��� ��� #���� ��%�
�������@
%�� � (�,��
�����F� �#�����
�$
���
%� �������%���
����#� �#
�$��
%�
��
��%����
���
������#
�;
����"
$���
������&���
� ��%���

��� 	���
%��
��,��%
�����
������
�$��$
%>�%��
�
%>�����#
���
�%���#��
%�������
�
���
����$$��
%�����#
��&��������

�-� &
%��
���������
�
���
%��#
�����#���
��#
%��#
��
�
���$
����
%�����#
�����%�%�
%
������

��� &
%��
���������
� 
���
%� �������$
%�������
���#
�� �#
��
%��
��� 
�
������
��$������#����

��
%��
%�����L-%���%����#���-��%�������$�2
������$�
������

�.�1#
��
�������������
%������������#
����
>�
��#
����
���#�����F��������
���
%�
�� ���%�� ����� �
� %���
%� �����
� ������ %�$$���� #��� �

�� 
%��
%� ��� ������@
�
�$�����
��

�/� ���������������
���
��������
� ���$
��
%���������
����
����� �
�����

F��������
�
$
��$�����������
<�
��������.����#
��������#������(�������
�������
��������
���
��#���

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 73



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-��

����

��)��*�%���>�
��������������
���
��������
����$
��
%�$�������#
��������
�
$
��%���%�
�
������)�*��

F��%������#
��������
�$
��%��

�3� ���� ������������ ���
�� ����� ������� $�$
� �����
>� �$$��������>� ��%� %��$�����
$��
%�
�� ��� ������������ ���
������ 	�� %��$���� �� %��$����� ��� ������������
%
���>� ����
>� �� �$���� ���
���� ����� ����� ��� ���� ��
��>� �������
� ����
�>�
�
����%�>������
����
�>�����#
����
����
�����
������
��
����

�5�1���
���$����$
�
��������%�
�$���
�$��
%�
���
�
+��
%�����������
���
�6� !�<�����%�#�@�%�������
����������#��
����
���%��
���%�����������
����
��� ����
�
����F���#��������%���#��
����#���
��#

���������F
���������������������

%����>���

��>����
����
�>����
������
��
����
��� ������� ��������
�� �#���� �
� ������@
%� �
��

�� ;����
� ���� ��%� ���� -���� ��� �#
�

���������� �
�� ��� ����%� $��
������ %���#��
� ��� $������ �#
������� ����� �#
� �����
%����>���

��>����
����
�>����
������
��
����

��� ����� �&�� �
���
�� �#���� �
� 
���
%� ���� �#
� ���
� -�� %���� ���
� ������������ ���
���$�
�
%���%��$$��
%�����#
�������

� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 74



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-��

APPENDIX C:  SYMBOLS FOR EROSION AND 
SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES

�

������������X��������������X����������������������Silt�Fence�

�����������������������������������������������������Biobags�

������������������������������ � Gravel�Construction�Entrance�

� � � � Straw�Bale�

� � � � Sediment�Sack�

� � � � Concrete�Washout�

� � � � Wattle�

� � � � Tree�

� �������123.0� � Ex.�Ground�Spot�Elevation�

� �����142� � � Ex.�Ground�Contour�

� �����152� � � Finish�Grade�Contour�

� � � � Ex.�Surface�Flow�Direction�

� � � � Proposed�Surface�Flow�Direction�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 75



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-��

APPENDIX D:  BASIC SMALL SITE ESC PLANS 

INSTRUCTIONS

!#
������#���%
�
��$
%��#����
�$���
������������������#����$�
�������������&������>�
#��
�
�you�are�required�to�follow�all�applicable�local,�state,�and�federal�regulations�
for�your�project���

!#
����������������#
�������
�$����������#
��&������������
������%
%�����#
�
+��
%�
�&�������%�����������������
%����$�$
��#���������������������T<�3T��������
<��$�
������
������
������%
%��������&�������%�����������?�
#��$?LL����%
+�����
�����L�+L�+$
���L%���L�
�
��L�$%
������L%���L���������&

��$%���

!#
�
+��
%�����%�%����
������&��������)�$$
�%�<�4�����#���������*�������
������%
%�
����#
��&�������%����������

!#
� ;
���� "
$���
��� ��� �������
����� B������� )"�B*� 
+��
�� ��� �$$��������� ��%�
�$$��������������,��$
�����������$�2
�����#���%��������
�����
���
����If�your�project�
will�disturb�1�or�more�acres,�obtain�the�DEQ�1200�C�permit�and�submit�a�copy�of� the�
permit�with�its�supporting�documentation�to�the�City.���

� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 76



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�--�

BASIC SMALL SITE ESC PLAN

SITE INFORMATION

�

CONTACT INFORMATION

Emergency�Contact�Information:�
Name:�)'
+��
%*UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�����������
Emergency�Telephone�Number:��)'
+��
%*UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�����������
Email:��)'
+��
%*UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� �

Project/Site�Name:�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��
Project�Address:�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�
City:�	
��
�� State:�;'� ZIP�Code:�63�-��
County:�D��#����

Latitude�at�center�of�project�
site:UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Longitude�at�center�of�
project:UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Method�for�determining�latitude/longitude:��
�0&7&���$���$#�����$�)�$
���������
?������������������������*� �����1
�����
� �7�&�

�;�#
�)$�
��
��$
����*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�

Instructions:�

�  ���������������������������$$���������%������������������������������

<$
��
%������F���,���
��	������������������%������������������&��

+��
�
�����$$������
�����#
����F���

Instructions:�

� (���#����
�����>�$���%
����������
��������������!#��������������������
���
�������

��%�F

$���>�������������������#
%��
>���%��$$�������#
����%�����������#��
�
%
����
%��������$�2
����

� "
����
%���������������%
�
��������������
I��������%
���%��������%
������
�
����%��������
$�����L�$%
�L�������
L�������������������7����
����#���%�
#��%�����#
����
���
��#
�$�2
������
����

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 77



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-��

�
Applicant:�
���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

	��
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

����>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�����?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Project�Manager�or�Site�Supervisor�(if�different�from�Applicant):�
���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

	��
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

����>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�����?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��,#���
�
�
����������������������?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Subcontractor:�
���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

	��
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

����>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�����?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��,#���
�
�
����������������������?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

This�ESC�Plan�was�Prepared�By:�
���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

	��
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU������>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�����?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�
�
I�agree�to�comply�with�the�requirements�of�the�City�of�Newberg’s�Erosion�and�Sediment�
Control�Manual�and�will�construct,�inspect,�and�maintain�ESC�measures�to�the�standards�
contained�within.�
�
Signature:�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�� �

����Date:UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU������
�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 78



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-.�

PROJECT SIZE AND DISCHARGE LOCATIONS:

�
�

NATURE AND SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY:

Construction�Type:�
�'
��%
������ �����
����� �(�%������� �'��%������������� �0�������

Site�Description:�
!�����&��
�)�+���L��
�*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU���

"�����
%�&��
�)�+���L��
�*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��

1��
�#
%?�� ��#
#��
���

F��� ��A
����

F����� �&$������F��

F�

�
Stormwater�runoff�during�construction�will�flow�to:�

�(�����������"
���
�

��

FL&�
���)%�
���%���#��
*�

�"���#��

�1
����%��

���������&������
�&���
���

�;�#
�V�&$
����?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��

Instructions:�

� 4�
����%
����
��#
�����
�����#
������������������������%��$$�<����
����
����
�
������������������������������$�
�������

� "
����
��
�#�%������������@�����#
����
����
��������������

Instructions:�
-  �����#
���@
�����#
�$�$
�)�
�*��#

��#
�$�2
����������F
�$���
�
-  �����#
��
��)����+��
��

������
��
*��#���������
�%�����
%�����#
�$�2
���
- �#
�F��#
���$
�����������
�����������#���������
�
�
������%���#��
������������
���

(����%
��#��#���
���������������
����
�
�
�������#
�%���#��
������������
��
- (�%����
� �#
� ��������� ��� ���� ���
�>� �����%���� �
����%�>� on� the� site� map�� 1
����%�

����������������
�������
%������#
�"
$���
������&���
� ��%���0�
��#
�����������
���F�� ��� ���
��� 
����
� ����������� ��� 
������ �� ����� ��������
�� ��� �
����%�� ��
���
������

- http://www.oregon.gov/DSL/PERMITS/index.shtml�
- http://www.nwp.usace.army.mil/op/G/home.asp�
- 1
����%��������#

�?�#��$?LL�����
�������L"& L1�! �	"L�
����%�������#����
- �#
#��
���

F>�A
����

F>���%�&$������F��

F��
����2
������!�������<�����

"����� ��%��)!�" �*��������
��>��
���>���%��
�$
���
���D����&��������#���%�
�$
���������� �����%
� �
���
�� ��� $
�
��� �#
� %���#��
� ��� �#
�
� $���������� ��%�
�
%��
����
����
�����#
�%�
�����
����������#��#
�
�$������������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 79



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-/�

�;�#
�)$�
��
��$
����*?�

Estimated�Project�Start�Date:���UUUU�L�UUUU�L�UUUUUUUUUU�
Estimated�Project�Completion�Date:���UUUU�L�UUUU�L�UUUUUUUUUU�
Describe�the�general�scope�of�the�work�for�the�project�and�any�construction�phasing:�
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU

Describe�methods�for�stabilizing�the�site:�
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU

�

SITE FEATURES AND SENSITIVE AREAS TO BE PROTECTED

�
�

Unique�Features�(stream,�wetland,�buffer,�erosive�soil,�etc):��
�����"
��$����?���UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU���������

����� �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

������
���
��������
���=
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*

�

ESC MEASURES IMPLEMENTED ON SITE

�

ESC Measures to Prevent Erosion 

Instructions:�

� "
����
��#
�
��������%��
%��
�����������
���
������
���$�
�
��
%�������
��

� (�%����
��#
�������������#����#
�$�2
������
��

� �&���
���
�����
������$
�
�����>�������������>���%��
%��
�����������
�
%
����
%����Chapter�5�������������
+��
%��&���
���
�����$���%
%����Section�5.1�

Instructions:�

� "
����
����+�
����
��
���
�������%������
���>���
�������
�>����
����
���
%�����
�>��
����%�>��

�>���������
�
������>���

$����$
�>���#��#���
�%���
�������
)&

�#��$?LL������������%�����L$��U����L�U%����#���*�����
���%�����
%���

� "
����
��#
������������%��
���
�����$��
����#
�
��
���
���

(����%
��#
�
��
���
����%��
�������������
���$����

�

'
�
��
��#��������&�������������
������
�
��������#
��$������
���%�����%������
���$��������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 80



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-3�

�&���
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

 �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

ESC Measures to Control Runoff 

�&���
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

 �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

ESC Measures to Control Sediment 

�&���
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

 �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

�

POLLUTION PREVENTION MEASURES

�
�

�
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

�

INSPECTIONS

�
�

(��$
������&�#
%��
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

&�
$�����%
�
��������#
�������
����
>�
$��>���
$���
�
�������

%
%?�
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��

�

�

Instructions:�

� ����%
����$
��������#
%��
�����#
��&���
���
���

� (����%
�$��
%�
�����%
�
��������#
�������
����
>�
$��>���
$���
�
������
�

%
%��

Instructions:�

� (�%����
��
�#�%������$����$
�
�����>����
�����#��%����>����
���������
>���%�
�
�#�%�����%��$��������������������%
������%�����
������%����������������
��

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 81



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-5�

MAPS

�
�

CERTIFICATION AND NOTIFICATION

(�#

����
������#����#
�������������������
%�����#����$$�����������>�����#
��
���������
F����
%�
���%��
��
�>���
>�������
>���%����$�
�
���(�������
��#����#

��
�������������
$
�����
��������������������
�����������>������%�����#
�$�����������������
���%�
��$�����
������F�������������������

A�legally�authorized�representative�must�sign�the�application.�
�
	��
?� � ��!���
? �

&������
?�� ��"��
? �

� �

Instructions:�

� �����#����
���$��#���%������%
��#
������������
+��
%����Section�4.4.3�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 82



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�-6�

SITE PLAN EXAMPLE

�
�
�
�

Drainage�
�

Lawn�
� � � � � � � � �

�
�
�
�
�

� � Lawn�
�

� � � �
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� � � �
�
�

� � � �
����������������������������Lawn�

�
�

LEGEND�
�

������������X��������������X���������� Silt�Fence�

�����������������������������������������������������Biobags�

������������������������������ � Gravel�Construction�Entrance�

� � � � Tree�

�
�
� �
�
�
�
� �<�������A���
�
� G���
���%%
��T�

�
����������������� 	
���

������

&#
%
&����
&���F$��
�

&�

��	��
�

&
�




��
	
�
�


�

������������
1���
�

���
���
���
���
�"
�
�


�
�
�
�

���
�
&���F$��


���
.
�
��




��

���
��
�
5
��
��

C�

C�

C�

C�

C

C

N�
&���
?��TW.�I

&����=
��


�������������
������
�

4��������
����%����
��

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 83



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

� �
APPENDIX E:  REGULAR SMALL SITE ESC PLANS 

INSTRUCTIONS

!#
������#���%
�
��$
%��#����
�$���
������������������#����$�
�������������&������>�
#��
�
�you�are�required�to�follow�all�applicable�local,�state,�and�federal�regulations�
for�your�project���

!#
����������������#
�������
�$����������#
��&������������
������%
%�����#
�
+��
%�
�&�������%�����������������
%����$�$
��#���������������������T<�3T��������
<��$�
������
������
������%
%��������&�������%�����������?�
#��$?LL����%
+�����
�����L�+L�+$
���L%���L�
�
��L�$%
������L%���L���������&

��$%���

!#
�
+��
%�����%�%����
������&��������)�$$
�%�<�4�����#���������*�������
������%
%�
����#
��&�������%����������

!#
� ;
���� "
$���
��� ��� �������
����� B������� )"�B*� 
+��
�� ��� �$$��������� ��%�
�$$��������������,��$
�����������$�2
�����#���%��������
�����
���
����If�your�project�
will�disturb�1�or�more�acres,�obtain�the�DEQ�1200�C�permit�and�submit�a�copy�of� the�
permit�with�its�supporting�documentation�to�the�City.���

�

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 84



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

SITE INFORMATION

�
�

CONTACT INFORMATION

�
�
Emergency�Contact�Information:�

Applicant�Telephone�Number:��)'
+��
%*�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�����������
Email�Address:��)'
+��
%*�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU���������
�

ESC�Inspector�Name:��)'
+��
%*�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�����������
Telephone�Number:��)'
+��
%*�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�����������
Email�Address:��)'
+��
%*�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU���������

Applicant:�

Project/Site�Name:�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��
Project�Address:�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�
City:�	
��
�� State:�;'� ZIP�Code:�63�-��
County:�D��#����

Latitude�at�center�of�project�
site:UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Longitude�at�center�of�project�
site:UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Method�for�determining�latitude/longitude:��
�0&7&���$���$#�����$�)�$
���������
?������������������������*� �����1
�����
� �7�&�

�;�#
�)$�
��
��$
����*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�

Instructions:�

�  ���������������������������$$���������%������������������������������

<$
��
%������F���,���
��	������������������%������������������&��

+��
�
�����$$������
�����#
����F���

Instructions:�

� (���#����
�����>�$���%
����������
��������������!#��������������������
���
�������

��%�F

$���>�������������������#
%��
>���%��$$�������#
����%�����������#��
�
%
����
%��������$�2
����

� "
����
%���������������%
�
��������������
I��������%
���%��������%
������
�
����%��������
$�����L�$%
�L�������
L�������������������7����
����#���%�
#��%�����#
����
���
��#
�$�2
������
����

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 85



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU?�

	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU������������>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�������%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Project�Manager�or�Site�Supervisor:�
���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU?�

	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU������������>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�������%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�
������������)�����
��#������$
����������
*?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��

��,#���
�
�
����������������������?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

Subcontractor:�
���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU?�

	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU������������>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�������%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�
������������)�����
��#������$
����������
*?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��

��,#���
�
�
����������������������?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

This�ESC�Plan�was�Prepared�By:�
���$������;����@������	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU?�

	��
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU������������>�&���
>�9�$���%
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

!
�
$#��
�	���
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�������%%
��?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�
I�agree�to�comply�with�the�requirements�of�the�City�of�Newberg’s�Erosion�and�Sediment�
Control�Manual�and�will�construct,�inspect,�and�maintain�ESC�measures�to�the�standards�
contained�within.�
�
Signature:�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�� �

����Date:UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 86



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��-�

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 87



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
����

PROJECT SIZE AND DISCHARGE LOCATIONS:

�

NATURE AND SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY:

�
�

�

Site�Description:�
!�����&��
�)�+���L��
�*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUU��������������������"�����
%�&��
�)�+���L��
�*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUU��

&����!�$
?��UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

1��
�#
%?�� ��#
#��
���

F��� ��A
����

F����� �&$������F��

F�

�
Stormwater�runoff�during�construction�will�flow�to:�

�(�����������"
���
�

��

FL&�
���)%�
���%���#��
*��

�"���#��

�1
����%��

���������&������
�&���
���

�;�#
�V�&$
����?���UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��

Instructions:�

� 4�
����%
����
��#
�����
�����#
������������������������%��$$�<����
����
����
�
������������������������������$�
�������

� "
����
��
�#�%������������@�����#
����
����
�������������

Instructions:�

�  �����#
���@
�����#
�$�$
�)�
�*��#

��#
�$�2
����������F
�$���
�

�  �����#
��
��)����+��
��

������
��
*��#���������
�%�����
%�����#
�$�2
���

� �#
�F��#
���$
�����������
�����������#���������
�
�
������%���#��
���������
���
���(����%
��#��#���
���������������
����
�
�
�������#
�%���#��
���������
���
��

� (�%����
��#
��������������������
�>������%�����
����%�>�on�the�site�map��1
����%�
����������������
�������
%������#
�"
$���
������&���
� ��%���0�
��#
�����������
���F��������
���
����
���������������
���������������������
������
����%����
���
������

http://www.oregon.gov/DSL/PERMITS/index.shtml�
http://www.nwp.usace.army.mil/op/G/home.asp�
1
����%��������#

�?�#��$?LL�����
�������L"& L1�! �	"L�
����%�������#����

� �#
#��
���

F>�A
����

F>���%�&$������F��

F��
����2
������!�������<�����
"����� ��%��)!�" �*��������
��>��
���>���%��
�$
���
���D����&�������
�#���%��$
���������������%
��
���
�����$
�
����#
�%���#��
�����#
�
�$����������
��%��
%��
����
����
�����#
�%�
�����
����������#��#
�
�$������������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 88



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��.�

Construction�Type:�
�'
��%
������ �����
����� �(�%������� �'��%������������� �0�������

�;�#
�)$�
��
��$
����*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Estimated�Project�Start�Date:���UUUU�L�UUUU�L�UUUUUUUUUU�
Estimated�Project�Completion�Date:���UUUU�L�UUUU�L�UUUUUUUUUU�
Describe�the�general�scope�of�the�work�for�the�project�and�any�construction�phasing:�
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU

Describe�methods�for�stabilizing�the�site:�
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU

�

SITE FEATURES AND SENSITIVE AREAS TO BE PROTECTED

�
�

Unique�Features:��
�����"
��$����?���UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU���������

����� �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

�����&����!�$
?���UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

������
���
��������
���=
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*

Instructions:�

� "
����
����+�
����
��
���
�������%������
���>���
�������
�>����
����
���
%�����
�>��
����%�>��

�>���������
�
������>���

$����$
�>���#��#���
�%���
�������
�#����
�����
���%�����
%���

� "
����
��#
��
���
I���������������#
�$�2
������
�

� "
����
��������$
�)&

�#��$?LL������������%�����L$��U����L�U%����#���*�

� "
����
��
���
�����$��
����#
�
��
���
���

� (����%
��#
�
��
���
����%��
�������������
���$����

�

D����&�������������
������
�
��������#
��$������
���%�����%���������$��������

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 89



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��/�

ESC MEASURES IMPLEMENTED ON SITE

�

ESC Measures to Prevent Erosion 

�&���
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

 �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

'�������
?���UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

ESC Measures to Control Runoff 

�&���
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

 �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

'�������
?���UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

ESC Measures to Control Sediment 

�&���
���
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

 �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

'�������
?���UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

POLLUTION PREVENTION MEASURE

�
�

Instructions:�

� (�%����
��
�#�%������$����$
�
�����>����
�����#��%����>����
���������
>���%�
�
�#�%�����%��$��������������������%
������%�����
������%����������������
��

� (�%����
��������������#
��
���
�����#
�$�2
������
���

� (�%����
�#����#
��
���
������$
�
���%���#��
�������
��

Instructions:�

� "
����
�����
������
��&���
���
�
��#����
������$
�
�����>�������������>���%�
�
%��
�����������#���������
���$�
�
��
%�������
��

� (�%����
��#
���������)�*�����#
��&���
���
�

� (����%
���%
���$���������#����#
��
���
������$
�
��>���
���
%��
��>�
%��
�
�������
������
>�
%��
��������
������>��$����������>�
������

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 90



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��3�

�
���
�)����&
������/*?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

 �������?��� �	������ �	������ ��������� &������� &����� �&1����� ��1������ ��	1�

'�������
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

)'
$
�������
�
����*�

INSPECTIONS

�
�

(��$
������&�#
%��
?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

&�
$�����%
�
��������#
�������
����
>�
$��>���
$���
�
�������

%
%?�
UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

MAPS

�

DETAIL DRAWINGS

�

CERTIFICATION AND NOTIFICATION

(�#

����
������#����#
�������������������
%�����#����$$�����������>�����#
��
���������
F����
%�
���%��
��
�>���
>�������
>���%����$�
�
���(�������
��#����#

��
�������������
$
�����
��������������������
�����������>������%�����#
�$�����������������
���%�
��$�����
������F�������������������

� �

Instructions:�

� �����#�%
�����%��������������
��������������
���
������
���
%�����#
����
��

� "
�����%������������
�����%����
#��$�?LL�����
��
��
�������L
����

���L/��,�
�
�,
�����,������,
����%�%,%
������

Instructions:�

� �����#����
���$����!#
��������$��#���%��#����#
���
���$�$
�������%��
�>�
��������
���
�>�$�2
�������%��
�>���%��&���
���
�������
���%���$��#���%�
�#����#
����
����
�$�2
������$�
������

� !#
�
���$���#���%������%
��#
������������
+��
%����Sections�4.4.3�and�4.4.4�

Instructions:�

� ����%
����$
��������#
%��
�����#
��&���
���
���

� (����%
�$��
%�
�����%
�
��������#
�������
����
>�
$��>���
$���
�
������
�

%
%��

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 91



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��5�

A�legally�authorized�representative�must�sign�the�application.�
�
	��
?� � ��!���
? �

&������
?�� ��"��
? �

�

� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 92



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
��6�

SITE PLAN EXAMPLE

�

�

��������	
������������	�
�������	�����	���	�
��������������� !"�
�

#��$��	�#��������%��!""�&'�
#��$��	��������
��������(�)��	���	�
��������������� !"�
�

���	���*+�������*�����
�"&,!�,"-�
+�	�����	����������&%���������
�

.�����	�����/���������
���� !&��0�1	�
#������������/���������
�� &�2!���0�1	�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 93



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.��

APPENDIX F:  INSPECTION LOGS AND REPORTS

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 94



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.��

INSPECTION LOG

Jobsite�Name:��__________________________________��Address:_____________________________________�

Date:�_____/______/_______���Time�(24�hr�format):�_____:____���Precip�(last�24�hours)______�

ESC�Measure� Condition*�
Repair�

or�
Replace?�

Date�
Completed�

Comments�(include�area�
and�section�e.g.,�SW�corner�

of�storage�area)�
��
����� �������%�
&
������
��
��

7� =� �� � � �

������������
������
L�<���

7� =� �� � � �

!�
�1��#� 7� =� �� � � �

8
�
���
%��
���
��%�4���
�9��
��

7� =� �� � � �

8
�
���
%�&��$� 7� =� �� � � �

7���%����
� 7� =� �� � � �

"����������� 7� =� �� � � �

�������� 7� =� �� � � �

1����
�� 7� =� �� � � �

4������� 7� =� �� � � �

&����4��
�� 7� =� �� � � �

����#�4�����(��
�� 7� =� �� � � �

&���
�� 7� =� �� � � �

;���
�����
������ 7� =� �� � � �

&����
�
'���#
�����

7� =� �� � � �

"
���
�����
�� 7� =� �� � � �

&
%��
���=
��
� 7� =� �� � � �

���
����&����
�
��%�"��$�����

7� =� �� � � �

X�7?�7��%����%������,��

%���������#
%��
%������
����
K��=?�=������%������,��

%��
$�����%L�������
����
K����?�����
���%������,��

%������
�
$���
%��

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 95



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.��

INSPECTION REPORT 

Inspection�Date:�_____/______/_________������������Time�(24�hr�format):�______:__________�

Jobsite�Name:�_______________________________��Address:__________________________________________�

Applicant�Name:�_______________________________________��Address:_______________________________�

City:��__________________________����State:�________����Zip:�______________________________�

Email:��_______________________________________________________________________________���

Inspector�Name:��__________________________________________________________________�

Emergency�Phone�Number:_________________________�

Precipitation�in�the�last�24�hours:�_______�inches�

Has�the�city�of�Newberg�been�notified?���Yes�����No����

If�not,�reason�why:�_______________________________________________________________________________�

�

Action�Item�to�be�Completed� Reason� Date�Completed�

� � �

� � �

� � �

� � �

� � �

� � �

� � �

� � �

� � �

� � �

�

I�certify�that�this�report�is�true,�accurate,�and�complete�to�the�best�of�my�knowledge.�

Signature�of�Inspector:�_________________________________________________________________________�

Printed�Name�of�Inspector:�____________________________________________________________________�

Emergency�Contact�Phone:�_______________________________�

Inspector�License�Number,�if�applicable:�_________________________________�

� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 96



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.-�

EXAMPLE INSPECTION LOG

Jobsite�Name:��____Jack’s�Deli_________________��Address:______999�NE�Q�Street___________�

Date:�__08_/_05_/_12_���Time�(24�hr�format):�__13:30__��Precip�(last�24�hours)__0.5”�

ESC�Measure� Condition*�
Repair�

or�
Replace?�

Date�
Completed�

Comments�(include�area�
and�section�e.g.,�SW�corner�

of�storage�area)�
��
����� �������%�
&
������
��
��

7� =� �� '
$��� 5L3�
1��%���
���
��
�%�������	��

+��%��

������������
������
L�<���

7� =� �� ;F��� VVV� VVV�

!�
�1��#� 7� =� �� 	�� VVV� VVV�

8
�
���
%��
���
��%�4���
�9��
��

7� =� �� '
$���
� 5L���
'
,�

%��
�����&��+��%���%����

��
�����0�
��

%���<�Y���

8
�
���
%�&��$� 7� =� �� 	�� VVV� VVV�

7���%����
� 7� =� �� ;F��� VVV� VVV�

"����������� 7� =� �� ;F��� VVV� VVV�

�������� 7� =� �� ;F��� VVV� VVV�

1����
�� 7� =� �� ;F��� VVV� VVV�

4������� 7� =� �� '
$���
� 5L.� 4����������1�+��%���F
���$
���

&����4��
�� 7� =� �� '
$���
� 5L.�
'
���
��
%��
�����%�
$���
���
!���
�������������%����
��������
�

����
�F����

����#�4�����(��
�� 7� =� �� 	�� VVV� VVV�

&���
�� 7� =� �� ;F��� 5L/� '
���
�&
%��
���

;���
�����
������ 7� =� �� '
$��� 5L/� �%%���F��������
�����&�+��%�

&����
�
'���#
�����

7� =� �� '
$��� 5L/�
'��������������'
��%
���%����F�

����F$��
����1���%
�

"
���
�����
�� 7� =� �� 	�� VVV� VVV�

&
%��
���=
��
� 7� =� �� ;F��� VVV� VVV�

���
����&����
�
��%�"��$����� 7� =� �� ;F��� VVV� VVV�

X�7?�7��%����%������,��

%���������#
%��
%������
����
K��=?�=������%������,��

%��
$�����%L�������
����
K����?�����
���%������,��

%������
�
$���
%��

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 97



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.��

EXAMPLE INSPECTION REPORT

�
Inspection�Date:�___08_/__5__/_12__������������Time�(24�hr�format):�_13:30_�

Jobsite�Name:�____Jack’s�Deli_________________��Address:______999�NE�Q�Street___________�

Applicant�Name:�__Iam�Resident____________________��Address:____555�South�A�Street_____�

City:��_Newberg__________________����State:�__OR___����Zip:_97132______________________________�

Email:��__2bgold@mycompany.com_____________________________________________���

Inspector�Name:��__Ibee�Smith___________________________________________�

Emergency�Phone�Number:___503�555�5555_________________________�

Precipitation�in�the�last�24�hours:�___0.5__�inches�

Has�the�city�of�Newberg�been�notified?���Yes�����No����

If�not,�reason�why:�__No�sediment�or�spills�have�left�site�

�

Action�Item�to�be�Completed� Reason� Date�Completed�

'
$�����
������������
��
����	��
�
������

1��%���
�����%���� 5L3L�����

'
,�

%��
�����&��+��%���%����
��
�����0�
��

%���<�Y���

4�
��
����
�������
� 5L��L�����

'
$���
������������1�+��%��
4��������
�������������
�F�
�$���

5L.L�����

'
���
��
%��
�����%�
$���
������
���
��

&
%��
���#������������
%���
�������!���
������������

5L.L�����

'
���
�&
%��
�����������
���
����
&
%��
���������������������F�
�����

5L/L�����

�%%���F��������
�����&�+��%�
;���
��#�����
��$�����#

�
��F�#������
%��

5L/L�����

'
��%
���%����F�����F$��
����1���%
� '������
��������� 5L/L�����

I�certify�that�this�report�is�true,�accurate,�and�complete�to�the�best�of�my�knowledge.�

Signature�of�Inspector:�________�Ibee Smith_____________________________________________________�

Printed�Name�of�Inspector:�__�Ibee�Smith�______________________________________________________�

Inspector�License�Number,�if�applicable:�_ODOT�5�55555555_________�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 98



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�..�

APPENDIX G:  HYDRAULIC APPLICATIONS 

WOOD FIBER MULCH HYDRAULIC APPLICATION

Average�Water�Required�for�Application�

8���)���*�W�)1��*�L�)����������#�L�����������
*�
�

Maximum�Water�Required�for�Application�

8���)���*�W�)1��*�L�).���������#�L�����������
*�
�

Area�of�Coverage�

��)��
*�W�)1���L�'��*�
��)���*�W�)1���L�'��*�X�)�->./�����L��
*�
�
Rwf� � 1��%�=��
��$$���������'��
�)��L��
*�
Wwf� � 1
��#������������1��%�=��
�)���*�� �
Vwa� � ��
��
�1��
�'
+��
�
���)���*���� �
Vwm� � ��<�����1��
�'
+��
�
���)���*�� �
A� � �
��������
��
�)���*�:�)��
�*�� � �
�

SEED OR FERTILIZER HYDRAULIC APPLICATION

Area�of�Coverage�

��)��
*�W�)1���L�'��*�
�
��)���*�W�)1���L�'��*�X�)�->./�����L��
*�
�
Rsf� � &

%���=
����@
��$$���������'��
��)��L��
*�
Wsf� � 1
��#������������&

%���=
����@
�)���*�
A� � �
��������
��
�)���*�:�)��
�*�
�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 99



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�./�

��

�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 100



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.3�

�

�
� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 101



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.5�

APPENDIX H:  SPILL PREVENTION AND RESPONSE 

)����#��$?LL����%
+�����
�����L�+L��L
�
�
���L
$���$����#���*�

�
The�National�Response�Center�(NRC):���1�800�424�8802��
The�Oregon�Emergency�Response�System�(OERS):��1�800�452�0311�or��503�378�4124�
�

WHEN TO REPORT 

(�����
�����
�
�
������������%��#
���������
�%
$���
���#����

������
%>�������#

�#���
�

�����$�����#�������%�
��#������
����
>����
%���
���������#
�$#��
�����
������
��
�
	'����%�;�'&��
�
+��
%�����
�������
%��#
���������%
���������������#�@�%�������
����

��������?��

� "
��#��

� A��$�����@�������

� ��$
���%����
����
<�
������Z.�>�����

� ���������������������
����#��F���#���%��
�
$��
%��

� ��%���#��
������#�@�%�������
�������
<�
�������#
�
$�����
�+������������#
�
��
�������='�!���
�-�������%�;�'�-��,�����

�
!#
�	'��������������#
�����
�����#
�����%
����
����
$�������4��������
��#���#���%������
����%�
�����������������2
��������Z��>�������
>���
��
�����2���>������#���
�
&$������#���%�������
�
$��
%����;�'&���%��#
�����I����������������(��$
��������#
�
$�2
����1#
��
$���������$���>��
�$
$�
%�������
��#
���������������������?��

� 	��
���%��%%
�������#
�$�2
������
��

� "��
>����
>���%���$
��������%
����

� B����������%���$
����#�@�%�������
���>���������
>�������
�������
%�����#
�
����%
����

� �<�
������������2��
���

� �������
%�+����������%�%��$���������������
���

%����
������

OREGON STATE SPILL RULES 

&���
���
��
��%�����$�������
�
��
�����������%L��#�@�%������������
���������%����;�'�
-��>�"��������������������#��$?LL����%
+�����
�����L
���������L��
��#����
��
(���#
�
�
���������$������
�
��
����#
��
�
%��$������
�
��
����������#�@�%�������
���>�
�#
�$
�������������#���������������
��#
�������#�@�%�������
�����#������F
��#
�
�����������������>�����$$�$���
���

� (��
%���
�����$�
�
����#
����
I��&$�����
�
���������������%������
�
���
�
)&���*����������
����$������

� (�����$����
<����>����
%���
�����F
��#
������������������?��
o �����6������#
�
�
���������
%�����
�
�
������$���������
���#�@�%��

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 102



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�.6�

o �������
�������������$
���������#
����
%���
��
����
o 0�%
��F
�
�
��
�������
��
�#�%�������������#
�������#�@�%�������
������

�
(���#
�����������������#�@�%�������
����
<�

%���#
�
$�����
�+������������
%��
�������
������,#���$
��%>�
$����������#
�Oregon�Emergency�Response�System�(1�800�452�
0311�in�state,�and�(503)�378�4124�out�of�state).��
�
(���#
�+�����������������#�@�%�������
����
<�

%���#
�+��������
�

��
%�������=&�����
-���O�!���
�-����>�
$����#
��$������
�
��
�����#
�National�Response�Center,�1�800�
424�8802.��
�

� ����+������������%�������
����
�������%�������
�����
K��

� (���$���
%���%���#��
%���������
������#
�����
����������������������#��#���������F
���
���
���$
���������
������#
�����
�any�quantity�of�oil�that�would�produce�a�visible�
film>��#

�>����������F>����������%�>���������+���������
>�#���������$�$
������#�����

� (���$���
%�����#
������
�����#
����%>���%�������F
������
���$
���������
������#
�����
>�
����+�����������������
���
���
��)����������*��

� ����������
+����������
��
��#����#
�+������������
%��������='�����-��O�!���
�
-�����) �������A�@�%����&�������
����%�'
$�����
�B�������
�*���%���
�%�
����
�%�$�
%�$������N�����>�������

� !
��)��*�$���%������
������#�@�%�������
����������#
���
�����
%����#��������
%���

���
$�����
�+���������������='�-������

� ����+������������#
��������
���)���#�����
�
���
���������
���
���A">�
��*��

� !���#��%
%�)���*�$���%������
���,���
�)�.*������������$
�����%
�
��%�
�

� ����+����������������
����
�����
%�������#
��������
�����%
�;'&��/.�..���

� ;�
�)�*�$���%�����
�)�*���$�����
����%����
����������
��>������%����
$
�#���
�#��
�
>��$���
%���
�
��
%������%
��#
�%
����
%���������
��������%��
��
���������������
�����
%���%
�;'&��/.�.�.)�*���

CLEANUP 

�����
������
�����#
��$������
�
��
����#
��
�
%��$������
�
��
��#����IMMEDIATELY�
CLEAN�UP�THE�SPILL�OR�RELEASE���&$�������
�
��
��������
���
��
%��$�������$�
�
������
$������
���
�
!#
�"
$���
��I���������
�������
���$���������%L���#
��$$�$���
�"�B�
�����
�����
��#���%��
��������
%��������
��#�����
���$��

�������
�
+��
�
�����!#
�������,
�
�������
���$������������
�
��#
%����).�-*���6,.6�-���

REPORT 

!#
�"
$���
�������
+��
��#
�
�$������
�$��������������������
��
$�������#
�
%
$���
���%
��������������$
��������#
�����%
�����%���
$����F
�����$
�
�����
��
��
���
�����$�
�
$����������
%��
���>�#��
�
�all�spills�must�be�reported�in�the�format�
specified�by�DEQ�on�their�website.�
�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 103



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�/��

NOTE?���#�@�%��������
�%
�
��������������#��
�����
����%���
%����������
���$�%
���>�
�����%��������������
%�����>����
>�������%���
��(���#
��
�
����%
�
���
���#����#
�
��
���$�%
�������#�@�%��������
>����������
�#��%�
%�����%��������
�
A�@�%��������
���
���$�%
���������
������
%�������F����%��������
�����#���������������
$
��������������
+��
�
�����������='��/��-���
�
	;!�?�When�in�doubt�������
$�������#
��$������
�
��
�V�always�report��#
�����%
���
����#
�;
������
�
����'
�$���
�&���
��);�'&*�����
� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 104



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�/��

� �

1���GENERAL�INFORMATION� � � � � ���OERS�No.�)����$$������
*�UUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� ���$����	��
?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� �%%
��?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� ���$�������������
���?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

%�� ��
�
�����#��
�	���
)�*?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�


�� &$
��������,���
��������������#
�
�
��
?�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� Please�provide�a�map�of�the�site�showing�area(s)�where�the�release�occurred,�any�
sample� collection� locations,� location� of� roadways/ditches/surface� water� bodies,�
etc.�

�
2���RELEASE�INFORMATION�

��� "��
L!��
�'
�
��
�����
%?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU��"��
L!��
����$$
%?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� '
�
��
� ���� 
$��
%� ��� )�$
����� "��
L!��
L	��
� ��� �
���� �������
%� �#

�

�$$������
*?�

� � � "�B� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� � � ;�'&� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� � � 	'�� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� � � ����� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� �
���)�*�
$������
�
��
?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

%�� '
�
��
%����
���I�����
>�+����������%�$#�����������
�)���>���+��%>�����%����
��,����%*?�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Please� attach� copies� of� material� safety� data� sheets� (MSDS)� for� released�
material(s).�
�


�� !#
�
�
��
����
��
%?��UUUU����UUUU7���%���
��UUUU&����
�1��
��UUUU&����UUUU&
%��
���
��� 	��
� ��%� %������
� ��� �
�
��� ���
����
>� 
�
�� ��� �����
��
%� )�����%
� ���������� ���

�

F�>���
���>���
����%�%���#
���#���%���#��
���������
����
������$�*?�
� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� A����#
�
�
��
�
��#
%��#
������
����
��%
�����
%�����
[?��UUUUD
���UUUU	��
� ����%��#
�
�
��
�$��
��������
��#��#
������
����
��%
�����
%�����
[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

� �<$����?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� "
$�#�����
�
����+���
L����%���
?UUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� (���
�
����+���
L����%���
�$�����
�)%��F���
*[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��
� A����#
�
�
��
�
��#
%��#
��
�
����+���
L����%���
[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

� �<$����?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

DEQ SPILL RELEASE REPORT

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 105



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�/��

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

#�� '
�
��
���$��
������
�
��
�����#
��������
%[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

� �<$����?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� 1����#

����#
������$���������
��[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��
2�� (���#

�$��
�������������
�
�
��
�[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

� �<$����?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

F�� "
����
���#
�
��
���L��$���������
�
��
�)
�
�
����
���������>����#�F����>�
���*?�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� "
����
�#��� �#
� 
�
��
�����
%�� � (����%
�%
������ ���#���� �#
� 
�
��
� ����
>� ����
>�
�������������
��#
� ������>� ��������
����������$��� �����%����� �#
� 
�
��
>�%��
��
��%����
��������������������
�>������
�$��%
��������
%������������
�����������
�>�
���?�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�
3���SITE�INFORMATION�
��� �%2��
������%���
�������%
�)�#
�F������#����$$�����%�%
$����������
���$�*?�
� UUUU'
��%
������ � UUUU����
����� � UUUU ��#�� (�%������� � UUUUA
���� (�%�������

UUUU������������UUUU;�#
�)%
����
*?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�
��� 1#�������#
�$�$��������%
�����������%�����#
����
?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�
����(���#
����
���%L��
�
��
��
���
��
%�����
����������#
��
���[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��
%���&������$
��)�#
�F������#����$$��*?��UUUU����������UUUU��
%��F��UUUU�������UUUU���%��
� UUUU������UUUU�������������UUUU���������������
�)�
�
��L��$#���L
���*�


���"
����
����
���$���$#�?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�
4���CLEANUP�INFORMATION�
��� 1������
���
���$�$
���
%[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

� (��	�>�
<$����?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� 1#��$
���
%��#
����
���
���$[�

� ���$����	��
?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� �%%
��?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 106



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�/-�

� ��
���$�&�$
����?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� �#��
�	���
)�*?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� A����������������������

��
���
%������#
����
[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

� (��	�>�
<$����?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

%�� �������
%������
��������������
%������
���
%?UUUUUUUUUUUUUU�


�� �������
%������
��������������
%�������
������$���
?UUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� 1�����#�@�%��������
�%
�
�����������%
������
���$����
����[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

��� 4��
%�����#
�%
�
��������>��
��#
���
���$����
�����#�@�%��������
�[�

� UUUUD
���UUUU	������(��D
�>��������������
���%
�?UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

#�� 1�������������
%�����������
�%��$��
%�������������,���
���������[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��

If� yes,� attach� copies� of� receipts/manifests/etc.,� and� provide� the� following�
information:�

� =��������	��
?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU� � �

� �%%
��?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� =���������������?�UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� �#��
�	���
)�*?� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

��� (������������
%�����������
��
�������
%���%L���
��
%���,���
[��UUUUD
���UUUU	��
� (�� �
�>� $�
��
� %
����
� �#
� ���
���)�*>� �����
� ��%L�� �
���
��� �
�>� ��%� �
�#�%��

�����@
%�)�����#��%%���������#

�������
�
����*?�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

2�� "
����
���
���$���������
�������%�����#������������

���F
�>�%��
����%����
����������

�

��������
%���%����$�
�
%>������
���������������
%����
������#����

�
���
%>�
����

)�����#��%%���������#

��������������
$��������
�
���������
�����
��
��*?�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

�
5���SAMPLING�INFORMATION�
� Attach� copies� of� all� sample� data� and� indicate� locations� of� sample� collection� on�

maps.�
�
��� 1

����$�
���������������
%����������
��
%[��UUUUD
���UUUU	���UUUU	L��
��� 1

����$�
���������������
%����
�����
��
%[��UUUUD
���UUUU	���UUUU	L��
��� 1

����$�
������
��
%�����#����#���������������������#�%��

��
���
%[�
� UUUUD
���UUUU	���UUUU	L��
%�� "
����
����$�������������
�>�
��������%�%��������������
�������$������
�#�%�?�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 107



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�/��

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� UUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUUU�

� �

6���SPILL�REPORT�CHECKLIST�
�
To�ensure�that�you�have�gathered�all�the�information�requested�by�the�Department�
in�this�Spill/Release�Report,�please�complete�the�following�checklist:�
�
UUUU� ��$)�*� ��� �#
� ���
� �#������ ����%����>� ��%�>� �����
� ���
� ��%�
�>� %���#
�>�

���
����>� $����� ��� �#
� 
�
��
>� 
<�
��� ��� �������������>� �
��� ��� 
<��������� ��%�
���$�
�����
���������������������#
%��

�
UUUU� ���
����&��
���"����&#

��)�&"&*����
�
��
%����
���)�*������#
%��Note:��an�MSDS�

is�not�required�for�motor�fuels.�
�
UUUU� &��$�����%���L�����������
�����������#
%��
�
UUUU� '
�
�$��L�����
����)������*����%��$����������
���$����
����������#
%��
�
UUUU� ���������
$����)������*������#
%��
�
(�� ��������%� ��F
� ��� ������� ���� 
$��� ��� 
,����� ��� ���� �
� �������
%� 
�
����������� ��?�
";&�(  &\%
+�����
������
� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 108



��������	
��
���������������������������� ���
�/.�

APPENDIX I:  STANDARD DETAILS FOR ESC 
MEASURES

� �

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 109



City of Newberg 
Standard Design Details 

Erosion Control                           600 Series 
 Construction Entrance 601 
 Silt Fence 602 
 Straw Bale Barrier 603 
 Field Drain Inlet Protection 604 
 Inlet Protection 605 
 Outlet Protection 606  
 Concrete Waste Management 607 
 Surface Roughening  608 
 Matting Trench Installation 609 
 Matting-Slope Installation 610  
 Wattles 611 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 110



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 111



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 112



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 113



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 114



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 115



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 116



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 117



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 118



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 119



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 120



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3116

Page 121



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 122



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3117 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 3, 2014 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2014-3117 

SUBJECT:  A resolution to adopt the revised Design 
Standards Manual and Standard Design Drawings.  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Jay Harris, City Engineer 
                Gabriel Rivas, Intern 
Dept.: Engineering Services Department 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2014-3117 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The Engineering Department Design Standards Manual and associated Standard Drawings have been in use 
by the City Engineering Department for many decades.  The current Design Standards Manual and Standard 
Drawings were adopted by Council in March of 2011 by resolution no. 2011-2936 . The Design Standards 
manual and Standard Drawings are approved by the City Council when major modifications are made to the 
documents, as outlined in NMC Section 15.510, Improvements and Specifications. Regular/routine 
modifications are made to the Design Standards Manual and Standard Drawings when required, as approved 
by the City Engineer and/or Public Works Director.  
 
Major changes to the Stormwater System Design Standards (Chapter 4) and Standard Drawings were 
required after the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) required the City of Newberg to 
create a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan for the Willamette River in October of 
2006.   In May of 2011, Council, by Resolution No. 2011-2947, a Stormwater Ad-Hoc Committee was 
formed. The Committee was tasked to work in tandem with staff to prepare the needed changes to the 
Municipal Code developed by City Staff.  In January of 2012, the Planning Commission adopted the Code 
changes, and in July of 2012, Council adopted Ordinance No. 2012-2754 which required measures to control 
construction site and post construction site runoff. This ordinance was a requirement of the City’s TMDL 
Implementation Plan.  Chapter 4 (stormwater) of the Standard Design Manual and Standard Drawings have 
been added and/or revised to address the stormwater requirements of Ordinance No. 2012-2754.  
 
Major updates to Chapter 4 of the Design Standards Manual (stormwater) specify when it is necessary to 
provide for quality and quantity control of stormwater runoff, and the amount of runoff that shall be 
considered. The revised stormwater chapter gives new development projects a hierarchy list of choices that 
can be utilized to meet the new water quality & quantity requirements. The principal contaminates of 
concern, which was identified in the TMDL Implementation plan, is mercury, bacteria and temperature, but 
other contaminates such as oil, grease, and organic/inorganic compounds are also considered for water 
quality treatment. 
 
The preference is that when impervious surfaces are created with public/private development, that Low 
Impact Development Approaches (LIDA) is utilized to treat and detain stormwater runoff. LIDA’s filter 
stormwater to reduce contaminants, reduce temperature, and detain stormwater.  The Engineering 
Department has developed several details that are considered to be Low Impact Development Approaches 
and that may be used by the community to meet the requirements of the design manual, as well as the 

Page 123



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3117 PAGE 2 

Stormwater Management Ordinance No. 2012-2754. 
 
Additionally, all other chapters and drawings of the Design Standards Manual have been reviewed and 
updated as necessary for consistency.    
 
Prior to revising the Design Standards Manual and drawings, a well-attended open house was hosted in 
October of 2012.  This open house was utilized to discuss comments, concerns and ideas. The engineering 
department considered all input received from the open house when developing the Design Standards 
Manual and Standard Drawings. A draft copy of the Design Standards Manual and Standard Drawings was 
recently distributed to interested individuals and also made public on the City Website for input by the 
interested community. Responses were received by multiple individuals, and were reviewed by Engineering 
Department and subsequently incorporated into the Design Standards Manual and Standard Drawings, as 
determined by the City Engineer.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The implementation of the revised Standard Design Manual and Standard Drawings will have a staffing 
impact on the Engineering Services Department.  A separate resolution is being provided to Council for 
consideration that will modify the Engineering Department fee schedule to allow reimbursement for the 
additional plan review and inspection costs associated with adoption of this resolution.  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The revised Design Standards Manual and Standard Drawings will provide guidance to all development 
within the City to meet the new stormwater requirements in NMC section 13.25, as established by 
Ordinance No. 2012-2754.

Page 124



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3117 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE REVISED DESIGN STANDARDS 
MANUAL AND STANDARD DESIGN DRAWINGS 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) ordered the city of Newberg on October 

17, 2006, to create a Willamette River Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan.   
 
2. City staff worked with URS Corporation to create the TMDL Implementation Plan.  The Oregon 

DEQ accepted the TMDL Implementation Plan on October 17, 2008, and was eccepted by the city 
council on December 1, 2008, through Resolution No. 2008-2820. 
 

3. May 16, 2011, council established a stormwater ad-hoc committee by Resolution No. 2011-2947.  
The Committee was tasked to work in tandem with staff to prepare the needed changes to the 
Newberg Municipal Code (NMC).   

 
4. On January 12, 2012, the planning commission adopted Planning Resolution No. 2012-296, which 

amended the NMC. 
 
5. On June 18, 2012, council adopted Ordinance No. 2012-2754, which required measures to control 

construction site and post construction site runoff.  This ordinance was a requirement of the city’s 
TMDL Implementation Plan. 
 

6. City staff solicited input on the manual from the general public, developers, and engineers.  This 
input was considered and incorporated in the final manual, as deemed appropriate by the city 
engineer. 
 

7. Minor changes to the Design Standards Manual and Standard Drawings may occur when deemed 
necessary by the department director, city engineer, or designee, and will be approved using the 
city’s executive order process.  Major changes, as identified by the city manager, or designee, will 
be adopted by the city council. 
 

8. The Design Standards Manual and associated Standard Drawings will provide a guide for 
development projects to meet the requirements of NMC §§13.25, which was revised by Ordinance 
No. 2012-2754. 

 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3117 PAGE 1 

Page 125



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-3117 PAGE 2 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The city council herby adopts the revised Design Standards Manual and Standard Drawings as 
attached in Exhibit A and by this reference is hereby incorporated. 

 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is:  March 4th, 2014. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 3rd day of March, 2014. 

 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 6th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 126



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

�
�Design�Standards�Manual�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�February�2014�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 127



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1  GENERAL ...................................................................................................... 1�
1.0� Authority and Purpose .................................................................................... 1�
1.1 � Engineering Policy ......................................................................................... 1�
1.2� Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings ........................................... 2�
1.3� Revisions to Design Standards ...................................................................... 2�
1.4� Definitions ...................................................................................................... 2�
1.5� Construction Plans ....................................................................................... 12�
1.6� Plan Submittal .............................................................................................. 15�
1.7� As-built Plan Requirements .......................................................................... 16�
1.8� Approval of Alternate Materials, Methods, or Design ................................... 18�

SECTION 2  WASTEWATER ............................................................................................ 21�
2.0� General Design Requirements ..................................................................... 21�
2.1� Pipe Materials and Size ............................................................................... 21�
2.2� Minimum Design Criteria .............................................................................. 22�
2.3� Alignment and Cover .................................................................................... 22�
2.4� Manholes ..................................................................................................... 23�
2.5� Cleanouts ..................................................................................................... 25�
2.6� Service Lateral ............................................................................................. 25�
2.7� Connection to Existing Sewers ..................................................................... 26�

SECTION 3  WATER SYSTEMS ....................................................................................... 28�
3.0�  General Design Requirements .................................................................... 28�
3.1� Pipe Materials and Size ............................................................................... 28�
3.3� Appurtenances ............................................................................................. 32�
3.3� Railroad or Highway Crossings .................................................................... 34�
3.4� Water Service Lines ..................................................................................... 34�
3.5� Fire Service .................................................................................................. 34�
3.6� Backflow Prevention ..................................................................................... 35�
3.7� System Testing ............................................................................................ 35�

SECTION 4 STORM DRAINAGE ...................................................................................... 36�
4.0� General Design Requirements ..................................................................... 36�
4.1� Pipe Materials and Size ............................................................................... 37�
4.2� Alignment, Location and Cover .................................................................... 38�
4.3� Structures ..................................................................................................... 38�
4.4� Drainage Report ........................................................................................... 39�
4.5� Flow Determination ...................................................................................... 40�
4.6� Conveyance Design ..................................................................................... 44�
4.7� Water Quantity and Quality Facilities ........................................................... 46�
4.7.1� General Requirements ............................................................................. 46�
4.8� Low Impact Development Approaches (LIDA) ............................................. 55�

SECTION 5 STREETS ...................................................................................................... 58�
5.0� General Design Requirements ..................................................................... 58�
5.1� Traffic Analysis ............................................................................................. 58�
5.2� Intersections ................................................................................................. 60�
5.3� Half Street Construction ............................................................................... 61�
5.4� Street Classification ..................................................................................... 61�
5.5� Design Speed ............................................................................................... 62�

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 128



5.6� Horizontal/Vertical Curves and Grades ........................................................ 62�
5.7� Pavement Design ......................................................................................... 63�
5.8�  Concrete Curb ............................................................................................. 63�
5.9� Parking ......................................................................................................... 64�
5.10� Sidewalks ..................................................................................................... 64�
5.11�  Bikeways ..................................................................................................... 64�
5.12� Driveways .................................................................................................... 65�
5.13� Street Lighting, Trees, Names and Signage ................................................ 67�
5.14� Permanent Dead-end Streets ...................................................................... 68�
5.15� Alleyways and Private Residential Streets/Access ways ............................. 69�
5.16� Local Street Design for Adverse Topography .............................................. 69�
5.17� Five Year Moratorium Street Cut Replacement Guidelines .......................... 70�
5.18� Trench Restoration Requirement ................................................................. 70�
5.19� Intersection Sight Distance .......................................................................... 70�

    
   APPENDIX A………………………………………………………………………………….....73 
 
  STANDARD DRAWINGS…………………………………………………………………........96

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 129



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �������

SECTION 1  GENERAL 

 

1.0 Authority and Purpose 
 
The purpose of these Design Standards is to provide a consistent policy under which certain 
physical aspects of public facility design will be implemented.  Most of the elements contained 
in this document are Public Works oriented and it is intended that they apply to both public 
improvements under City contract and public improvements under private contract designated 
herein. 
 
These Design Standards cannot provide for all situations.  They are intended to assist but not 
to substitute for competent work by design professionals.  It is expected that engineers will 
bring to each project the best of skills from their respective disciplines. 
 
The Design Standards are also not intended to limit unreasonably any innovative or creative 
effort which could result in better quality, better cost savings, or both.  Any proposed departure 
from the Design Standards will be judged on the likelihood that such departure will produce a 
compensating or comparable result in every way adequate for the user and City resident. 

1.1  Engineering Policy 
 
General:

It shall be the policy of the City of Newberg to require compliance with Oregon Revised 
Statute 672 for professional engineers. 
 
All engineering plans, reports, or documents shall be prepared by a registered professional 
engineer, or by a subordinate employee under the engineer's direction, and shall be signed by 
the engineer and wet stamped with the engineer's seal to indicate the engineer's responsibility 
for them.  It shall be the engineer's responsibility to review with the City any proposed public 
facility extension, modification, or other change prior to any proposed design work to 
determine any special requirements or to determine whether the proposal is permissible.  A 
"Preliminary Review" and/or a "Plans Approved for Construction" stamp of the City on the 
plans for any job does not in any way relieve the engineer of responsibility to meet all 
requirements of the City or obligation to protect life, health, and property of the public. The 
plan for any project shall be revised or supplemented at any time it is determined that the full 
requirements of the City have not been met. 
 
Public works permit application(s) for public street, storm drainage, waterworks, and/ or 
wastewater improvements shall be approved/ issued by the City before commencement of any 
onsite building, grading, or construction activities.  
 
Contractor Qualifications: 
 
All contractors performing work in the Public Right of Way and/ or on City owned infrastructure 
shall be pre-approved with the City of Newberg, and shall apply and possess a current City 
Business License. Upon the City Engineer’s request, contractors shall provide supporting 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 130



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �������

documents of work history showing experience in the scope of work intended to be performed. 
Each contractor shall submit an approved Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) 
contractor prequalification application with its ODOT Approval Letter to the City for 
consideration to become an approved contractor with the City of Newberg. Contractors shall 
submit the pre-approval documents for the City’s consideration at least 10 calendar days prior 
to any proposed construction.   

Fees:

Reference the Engineering Services Department Fee Schedule, for the most current and 
updated rates. A two percent plan review fee is due upon the initial plan submittal/ review 
process. Applicant may incur additional plan review fees for plans/ submittals and/ or length 
review periods considered unacceptable by the City. A three percent inspection fee is due 
upon completion of the plan review process. Additional inspection fees may be incurred due to 
failed inspections e.g. unprepared at the time of City arrival. 

1.2 Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings 
 
Except as otherwise provided by these Design Standards all construction design detail, 
workmanship and materials shall be in accordance with the current edition of the City of 
Newberg Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings.  

1.3 Revisions to Design Standards 
 
It is anticipated that revisions to these Design Standards will be made from time to time.  The 
date appearing on the title page is the date of the latest revision.  Users shall apply the latest 
edition to the work contemplated, and it shall be each user's responsibility to maintain his/her 
copy of these Design Standards with the latest changes.  

 

1.4 Definitions 
 
Alley - A public way not over 30 feet wide providing a secondary means of access for 
vehicular or service access to properties otherwise abutting on a street. 
 
Applicant- The owner or authorized agent acting on behalf of the owner.  
 
Approved Backflow Prevention Device - A device that has been investigated and approved 
by the City and the Oregon State Health Division for preventing backflow. 
 
Arterial Street - A major facility for moving intra-area traffic and for moving traffic to and from 
the freeway/expressway system. 
 
As-built Plans - Plans signed, dated, and stamped by the project engineer indicating that the 
plans have been reviewed and revised, if necessary, to accurately show all as-built 
construction details. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 131



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �������

Backflow - The reverse of flow from its normal or intended direction of flow.  Backflow can be 
caused by back-pressure or back-siphonage. 
 
Backflow Preventer - An approved device or means to prevent backflow into the potable 
water system. 
 
Back-siphonage - Backflow that results from negative or reduced pressure (partial vacuum) 
in the supply piping system. 

Bike Lanes - A designated travel-way for bicyclists that is established within the roadway 
directly adjacent to the outside vehicular lane or on the shoulder. 
 
Bike Path - A designated travel-way for bicyclists which is completely separated from the 
vehicular travel lanes and is within independent rights-of-way. 
 
Bike Route - A designated travel-way for bicyclists that is shared with vehicular traffic.  The 
roadway is designated with signs for bicycling (no pavement markings for the bike route or 
delineation of parking spaces used). 
 
Building Service Lateral - A public wastewater or stormwater sewer beginning at the 
property line or public easement line and extending to the wastewater sewer main. 
 
Building Sewer - A private wastewater sewer beginning five (5) feet outside the building and 
extending to the property line or public easement line connecting to the building service 
lateral.

Building Supply - The pipe carrying potable water from the water meter or other source of 
water supply to a building or other point of use or distribution on the lot.  Building supply shall 
also mean customer line.  
 
Channel Morphology- The stream channel type and the physical characteristics of the 
streambed.  

City - The City of Newberg, Oregon. 
 
City Engineer - The individual designated by the City Manager to have the authority for 
review and approval on all projects subject to these design standards. The Assistant City 
Manager or Public Works Director may act in this role when the City Engineer position is not 
filled. 
 
Collection Systems - Facilities maintained by the City of Newberg for the collecting, 
pumping, conveying, and controlling of wastewater. 
 
Collector Sewer - The portion of the public wastewater conveyance system which is primarily 
installed to receive wastewater directly from individual residences and other individual public 
or private structures. 

Collector Street - A facility that allows traffic within an area or neighborhood to connect to the 
arterial system. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 132



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �������

Common Development Plan- All lands included within the boundary of a certified survey 
map or subdivision plat created for the purpose of development or sale of property where 
integrated, multiple, separate and distinct land developing activity may take place at different 
times by future owners.  
 
Core - To cut and remove a portion of pipe, manhole, or pavement with a circular hollow drill. 
 
Cross Connection - Any actual or potential physical connection between a potable waterline 
and any pipe or vessel containing a non-potable or potable (i.e., well) fluid (suspended solid or 
gas) so that it is possible to introduce the non-potable fluid into the potable fluid by backflow. 
 
Cul-de-sac - A dead-end street that has a vehicular turnaround area at the end. 
 
Cut Sheets - Sheets of tabulated data, indicating stationing, structures, fittings, angle points, 
beginning of curve, points on curve, end of curves, storm drain slope, staking offset, various 
elevations, offset cuts, and storm drain depths for streets, waterlines, wastewater sewers, and 
storm drains. 
 
Datum - The vertical elevation control for the City of Newberg is "The North American Vertical 
Datum of 1988." 
 
Dead-end Street - A street or series of streets which can be accessed from only one point. 
Dead-end streets can be either temporary (intended for future extension as part of a future 
street plan) or permanent.  New construction of permanent dead-end streets (including cul-de-
sacs) must provide adequate turnaround capability, and be publicly maintained. 
 
Definition of Words - That, whenever, in these Standards, the words "directed", "required", 
"permitted", "ordered", "designated", or words of like importance are used, they shall be 
understood to mean the direction, requirement, permission, or order of designation of the City 
Engineer.  Similarly, the words "approved," "acceptable," or "satisfactory," shall mean 
approved by, acceptable to, or satisfactory to the City Engineer. 
 
Demolition- Any act or process of wrecking or destroying a building, improvement, or  
structure.  
 
DEQ- Oregon Department of Enviromental Quality 
 
Designated Arterial or Collector Street - A street designated as an arterial or collector in the 
Comprehensive Plan or the Newberg Transportation System Plan.  
 
Design Standards Manual- The current version of the City of Newberg design standards 
manual and specifications. 
 
Design Storm- A hypothetical discrete rainstorm characterized by a specific duration, 
temporal distribution, rainfall intensity, return frequency and total depth of rainfall.  

Detention – Area used to temporarily contain stormwater and reduce the peak velocity and 
volume of runoff to provide additional system capacity and to reduce erosion in surface 
conveyance facilities. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 133



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �������

Director –The City of Newberg’s director of public works or their authorized representative. 

Development- Residential, commercial, industrial or institutional construction, alteration, or 
other improvement which alters the hydrologic characteristics of a property or properties.  

Domestic Wastewater - The liquid and water borne waste derived from the ordinary living 
processes, free from industrial wastes, and of such character to permit satisfactory disposal 
without special treatment into the public sewer or by means of private wastewater disposal 
system. 
 
Double Check Valve Assembly - An assembly composed of two single, independently 
acting, approved check valves, including tightly closing shut-off valves located at each end of 
the assembly and fitted with properly located test cocks. 
 
Double Detector Check Valve Assembly - A line-sized, approved, double check valve 
assembly with a parallel meter and meter-sized, approved, double check valve assembly.  The 
purpose of this assembly is to prevent backflow contamination to the distribution system and, 
at the same time, provide a metering of the fire system showing any system leakage or 
unauthorized use of water. 

Drainage Facilities - Pipes, ditches, detention basins, creeks, culvert bridges, etc., used 
singularly or in combination with each other for the purpose of conveying or storing storm 
water runoff. 
 
Driveway - A vehicular connection between on-site parking and the public right-of way. 
 
Driveway Apron - A portion of the driveway connecting a street to the right-of-way; also 
known as driveway approach or driveway ramp. 
 
Easement - Areas located outside of dedicated right-of-way, which are granted to the City for 
special uses.  Easements may also be granted to non-City entities such as franchise utility 
companies for their uses. 
 
Engineer - The engineer, including the City's engineer, licensed by the State of Oregon as a 
Professional Engineer under whose direction plans, profiles, and details for the work are 
prepared and submitted to the City for review and approval, or who is in charge of and 
responsible for construction of the improvement. 
 
Expansion Joint - A joint to control cracking in the concrete surface structure.  Felt or fabric 
type expansion joint is not allowed. 
 
Fill- A deposit of soil or other earth material placed by artificial means.  
 
Fire Hydrant Assembly – The fire hydrant, with restraint devices, spool and attached 
auxiliary valve in valve box.  See 300 series detail.  Mechanical joint restraint shall be made 
using Field Lok® Gaskets and/or Megalugs® (no thrust blocks in new construction.) 

Fire Protection Service - A backflow protected connection to the public water main intended 
only for the extinguishment of fires and the flushing necessary for its proper maintenance.  All 
fire services shall have a detector check. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 134



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �������

 
Grade - The degree of inclination of a street or slope. 
 
Grading- Any act by which soil is cleared, stripped, stockpiled, excavated, scarified, filled, or 
any combination thereof.  
 
Half-street - Means a minimum 50 percent portion of the ultimate width of the street (but not 
less than 22 feet with no parking on either side, or 28 feet with parking on one side.)  Usually 
along the edge of a subdivision where the remaining portion of the street shall be provided 
when adjacent property is developed. 
 
Hydrant Spool - The waterline connecting the fire hydrant to the auxiliary valve on the City 
distribution main. 
 
Illicit Connections- A situation that the director determines would cause harm to the public, 
environment, or downstream stormwater facilities before the situation can be alleviated or 
repaired.  
 
Illicit Discharge- Any direct or indirect non-stormwater discharge to the stormwater system 
except discharges regulated under NPDES permit or exempted by this chapter.  
 
Immediate Threat- A situation that the director determines would cause harm to the public, 
environment, or downstream stormwater facilities before the situation can be alleviated or 
repaired.  
 
Impervious- The hard surface area either prevents or greatly retards infiltration and causes 
water to runoff the surface in greater quantities or at an increased rate of flow from that 
present in undeveloped conditions. Surfaces which would ordinarily be considered pervious 
are considered impervious if they do not allow natural infiltration of stormwater.  
 
Industrial Waste - Solid, liquid, or gaseous waste resulting from any industrial, 
manufacturing, trade, or business processes; or development, recovery, or processing of 
natural resources. 
 
Infiltration- The passage or movement of water into the soil subsurface.  

Interceptor Sewer - The primary public wastewater sewer line which conveys wastewater 
directly into the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  
 
Irrigation Service - A metered connection intended for seasonal use and delivering water 
which is not discharged to the wastewater collection and treatment system. 
 
Lateral Sewer - A building sewer service line. 
 
Local or Residential Street - A facility designated to serve primarily direct access to abutting 
land and offers the lowest level of traffic mobility.  Through traffic movement is deliberately 
discouraged. 
 
Longitudinal Joint - A joint that follows a course approximately parallel to the centerline of 
the roadway. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 135



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� �

 
Low Impact Development Approaches (LIDA) - A stormwater management approach that 
mimics pre-development hydrology through design techniques that infiltrate, filter, store, 
evaporate, or detain runoff close to its source. 
 
Maintenance Agreement- An agreement between the City and a maintenance organization 
for private stormwater facilities detailing the operation and maintenance requirements of the 
facilities.  
 
Maintenance Organization- The person(s), company, or nonprofit organization(s) 
responsible for long-term operation and maintenance of stormwater facilities recorded in the 
maintenance agreement.  
 
Major Trees – Trees within the right-of-way which have a 12” caliper or larger.  Street 
improvement plans should identify major trees by location, caliper, and species. 
 
Major tree species are those that contribute to the landscape character of the area to include:  
e.g. Douglas fir, cedar, redwood, sequoia, oak, ash, birch, walnut, maple.  The identification of 
major trees should distinguish species generally suitable for retention adjacent to streets and 
those species with growth habits that create nuisances, unusual maintenance problems, or 
hazards to the public.  Major trees exist in clusters, groves, or rows within the right-of-way.  
Check with City’s Planning Department for a list of approved tree planting species. 
 
Manager - The City Manager (or designee) of the City of Newberg acting either directly or 
through authorized representatives. 
 
Manufacturer's Name - Any manufacturer's name, specification, catalog, number or type 
used herein is specified by make and order to establish the standard requirements of the City. 
 Other equivalent makes will be considered for approval, providing they are comparable with 
this established standard. 
 
Natural Grade - The grade of the land in an undisturbed state. 
 
Net Impervious Area- The increase in impervious area on a property after a project is 
completed.  
 
Non-Stomwater Discharge- Any discharge to the stormwater system that is not composed 
entirely of stormwater.  
 
Owner - The owner of record of real property as shown on the latest tax rolls or deed records 
of Yamhill County, and includes a person who purchases a parcel of property and furnishes 
evidence of the purchase under a written recorded land sale contract. 
 
Partition - To divide an area or tract of land into two or three parcels within a calendar year 
when such area or tract of land exists as a unit or contiguous units of land under a single 
ownership at the beginning of such year. Partition does not include divisions of land resulting 
from the creation of cemetery lots; and partition does not include any adjustment of a lot line 
by the relocation of a common boundary where an additional parcel is not created and where 
the existing parcel reduced in size by the adjustment is not reduced below the minimum lot 
size established by any applicable code.  Partition does not include the sale of a lot in a 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 136



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!�

recorded subdivision, even though the lot may have been acquired with other contiguous lots 
or property by a single owner. 
 
Peak Run-off - The maximum stormwater runoff rate (in cubic feet per second) as determined 
for the design storm. 

Person - Individual firm, corporation, association, agency, or other entity. 

Plans - Construction plans, including any applicable system plans, sewer plans, profiles, cross 
sections, elevations, project specific detailed drawings, standard details, etc., or reproductions 
thereof, signed by the Engineer of Record, approved or to be approved by the City Engineer, 
which show the location, character, dimensions, and details of the work to be performed, and 
which constitute part of the construction contract documents for privately financed 
development projects or publicly financed infrastructure improvement projects. 
 
Potable Water - Water which is satisfactory for drinking, culinary, and domestic purposes and 
meets the requirements of the health authority having jurisdiction over it. 
 
Private Wastewater Collection System - A privately owned and maintained lateral 
wastewater conveyance system installed to serve multi-unit structures on single ownership 
properties which cannot legally be further divided. 

Private Storm Drain - A storm drain located on private property or serving private parking lot 
catch basins. 
 
Project- An activity that creates impervious area.  
 
Project Summary- A narrative that includes the project description, location, emergency 
contacts, and other information determined by the public works director such that the project 
can be located and a determination made regarding methods of stormwater management. 
 
Public Wastewater System - Any sewer in public right-of-way or easement operated and 
maintained by the City for carrying wastewater and industrial wastes. 
 
Public Storm Drain - Any storm sewer in public right-of-way or easement operated and 
maintained by the City. 
 
Reclaimed Water – Wastewater that is treated sufficiently for reuse but not for drinking 
purpose. 
 
Record Survey Monument – any physical marker, such as an iron rod with a plastic, brass, 
or aluminum cap, set in place by a professional land surveyor to indicate the location of a land 
boundary, street centerline, elevation, or other legal or physical land features as noted on a 
survey recorded in the County Surveyor’s Office. 
 
Regional Water Quality Facility- A water quality facility that treats more than 15,000 square 
feet of impervious area runoff.  
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 137



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"�

Release Rate - The controlled rate of release of drainage, storm, and runoff water from 
property, storage pond, runoff detention pond, or other facility during and following a storm 
event. 
 
Responsible Party- A person or entity holding fee title to the property, tenant, lessee, or a 
person or entity who is acting as an owner’s representative including any person, company, 
nonprofit organization or other entity performing services that are contracted, subcontracted, 
or obligated by other agreement to meet the requirements of this code.  

 
Right-of-Way - All land or interest therein which (by deed, conveyance, agreement, 
easement, dedication, usage, or process of law) is reserved for or dedicated to the use of the 
public for sidewalk, utility, and/or roadway purposes. 
 
Roadway - That portion of the right-of-way used or to be used for vehicular traffic, which 
exists typically between curbs, proposed curb lines or ditches. 
 
Sediment – Soil or other surficial materials held in suspension in surface water or stormwater. 
 
Sedimentation – The process or action of sediment being deposited as a result of decreased 
surface water or stormwater velocity. 
 
Sidewalk - A walk or raised path along the side of a street for pedestrians.  A right-of-way 
deeded, dedicated, and designated for the use of non-motorized vehicles (as allowed) and 
pedestrians. 
 
Silt - Fine clay and silt textured soil particles, including clay that is easily erodible and remains 
in suspension even at low stream velocities. 
 
Site- Any property or combination of properties where a project is being proposed or 
completed.  
 
Slope- The change in elevation of a ground surface expressed as a ratio of horizontal 
distance to vertical distance, e.g. 3H:1V. 
 
Standard Drawings - The detailed drawings of structures and/ or details or devices 
commonly used on public improvements and referred to on construction plans. 
 
Stop Work Order- An order issued by the director which requires all project activity, except 
those specifically stated in the stop work order, to cease on the site. 
 
Stormwater- Water that originates as precipitation on a particular site, basin, or watershed 
and flows over land or impervious surfaces without percolating into the ground.  
 
Stormwater Facility- A location to filter, retain, or detain stormwater for the purpose of water 
quality or quantity management. The facility may be structural or non-structural, has been 
designed and constructed according to city design standards, and has been required by the 
city to control post-construction stormwater.  
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 138



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Stormwater Facility Operations and Maintenance Plan- The required steps to be 
undertaken by an owner or maintenance organization to ensure proper functioning of a 
stormwater facility.  
 
Stormwater Management- Techniques or structures intentionally used to temporarily or 
permanently reduce or minimize the adverse effects of stormwater velocities, volumes, and 
water quality on receiving watercourses. A series of techniques or structures constitute a 
stormwater system or treatment train.  
 
Stormwater System- The combination of both artificial and natural system of drains, ditches, 
canals, culverts, detention ponds, retention ponds, dams, and other water control facilities 
used for collecting and transporting stormwater.  
 
Stormdrain- Inlets, outlets, manholes, catch basins, pipes, and other structures used to 
convey stormwater to its ultimate discharge point.  
 
Stormwater- Water that originates as precipitation on a particular site, basin, or watershed 
and flows over land or impervious surfaces without percolating into the ground.  
 
Streets or Roads - Any public highway, road, street, avenue, boulevard, lane, alley, way, 
easement, or right-of-way used or to be used for vehicle movement. 
 
Structures – Anything constructed ir built, an edifice or building of any kind, or any piece of 
work artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner.  

Subdivision - To divide an area or tract of land into four or more lots within a calendar year 
when such area or tract of land existed as a unit or contiguous units of land under a single 
ownership at the beginning of such year. 
 
Super elevation - The tilting of the pavement that helps vehicles travel around a horizontal 
curve is measured as a vertical distance between the heights of the inner and outer edges of 
pavement surface.  Design of super elevation shall follow the latest AASHTO (American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials) design guide   
 
Three-Quarter Street: - Means a minimum 75 percent portion of the ultimate width of the 
street (but not less than 24 feet with no parking on either side, 28 feet with parking on one 
side.)  Usually along the edge of a subdivision where the remaining portion of the street shall 
be provided when adjacent property is developed (per Newberg Development Code 
10.44.315(2).) 
 
TMDL- Total Maximum Daily Load

Transverse Joint - A joint which follows a course approximately perpendicular to the 
centerline of the roadway. 
 
Traveled Way - That portion of the roadway for the movement of vehicles, exclusive of 
shoulder and auxiliary lanes. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 139



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Trunk Sewer - A wastewater sewer which is primarily intended to receive wastewater from a 
collector sewer, another trunk sewer, an existing major discharge of raw or inadequately 
treated wastewater, or water pollution control facility. 
 
Turnaround Area -  A paved area of sufficient size and configuration that a motor vehicle may 
maneuver so as to travel in the opposite direction. The City Fire Marshall may require the 
turnaround to be sized to accommodate turning movements of their specified design vehicle.   
 
Uniform Plumbing Code - The Uniform Plumbing Code adopted by the International 
Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials (current edition), as revised by the State of 
Oregon, called the "Oregon State Plumbing Specialty Code." 
 
Wastewater - The total fluid flow in the conveyance and treatment system which includes 
industrial waste, water-carried wastes from residences, business buildings, institutions, and 
industrial establishments, or any other waste (including that which may be combined with any 
ground water, surface water, or stormwater) that may be discharged into the conveyance and 
treatment system. 
 
Water Distribution System - Water distribution pipelines, pumping stations, reservoirs, 
valves, and ancillary equipment used to transmit potable water from the supply source to the 
service line. 
 
Water Main - The water supply pipe for public or community use. 
 
Water Service Line - The pipe connection from the City water main to the users' water meter, 
hydrant, backflow prevention device, or fire sprinkler double check valve. 
 
Watercourse – Any natural or artificial stream, river, creek, ditch, channel, canal, conduit, 
culvert, drain, gully, ravine, swale, wetlands, or wash in which water flows either continuously 
or intermittently.  The width of the watercourse includes any adjacent area that is subject to 
inundation from overflow or floodwaters from the design storm 
 
Wetlands – Transitional lands where the water table is usually at or near the land surface or 
the land is covered by shallow water.  Wetlands have one or more of the following attributes: l) 
support, at least periodically, plants that thrive in saturated conditions, 2) contains 
predominately undrained hydric soil, or  3) the area is saturated or covered with shallow water 
at some time during the growing season of each year. 

 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 140



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

1.5 Construction Plans 
 

Construction plans shall follow the outline of plan submittal checklist. Prior to any construction 
work and plan approval, complete construction plans, specifications and all other necessary 
submittals shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review. 

1.5.1 Plan Preparation 
Construction plans and specifications shall be prepared as by a professional engineer 
licensed in the State of Oregon.  
 
All construction plans shall be based on the current vertical datum for the City of 
Newberg, NAVD 88.  City benchmark locations are available from the City Engineering 
department. 

1.5.2  Sheet Size 
All construction plans shall be clearly and legibly drawn in ink on sheets measuring 22 
x 34 inches (11x17”, half-size reduction).  Sheets shall have a 1½ inch clear margin on 
the left edge and a ½ inch margin on all other edges.   

1.5.3 Scale of Plans 
When plans are prepared for developer financed projects, the following scale of full-
sized drawings is suggested. 

  
Plan/Scale 

 
Horizontal Vertical  

    
Street 

 
1" = 20'* 1" = 2'  

Wastewater 
 
1" = 40' 1" = 4'  

Storm 
 
1" = 40' 1" = 4'  

Water 
 
1" = 20' or 40'** 1" = 4'  

Demolition 
 
1" = 40' n/a  

Erosion Control 
 
1" = 40' n/a  

Grading 
 
1" = 40' n/a  

Landscape 
 
1" = 40' n/a  

Signing & Striping 
 
1" = 40' n/a  

Street Lighting 
 
1" = 40' n/a  

Topographic 
Survey 

 
1" = 40' n/a 

 
*Subdivision street plans, when combined with other proposed facilities listed above, 
may be drawn at 1" = 40' scale. 

 
**When a scale is used which is smaller than 1" = 20' (i.e., 1" = 40') intersection details 
showing fittings and valves shall be provided at a larger scale. 

 
A horizontal scale of 1” = 20’ (or 1” =30’) for all drawings is recommended when half-
sized drawings are utilized for bid solicitation or for field reference. 
  

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 141



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Architectural scales (e.g., 1/4" = 1'0") are not permitted. 

1.5.4 Required Plans 
Construction plan submittals shall contain the following minimum sheets:  title sheet 
(unless not required by the City Engineer), plan and profile sheet(s) for street, storm 
sewer, water, and wastewater sewer, overall utility plan (existing and proposed), 
proposed grading, temporary and permanent erosion control, and detail sheet(s) plus 
any other relevant construction details.  

Title Sheet 
All subdivision projects and multiple sheet improvement projects shall have a 
title sheet as the first page of the construction plans.  This sheet shall contain 
the following minimum information: 

a. Site plan of entire project with street right-of-way and/or subdivision 
layout at a 1" = 100’ scale.  A 1” = 200’ scale may be used if project size 
is too large. The site plan shall also be a composite utility plan showing 
all properties served by proposed sewer, water, and storm facilities, in 
addition to the proposed facility. 

b. Vicinity map at a 1” = 1000’ scale or greater. 
c. Index of sheets. 
d. Complete legend of symbols used. 
e. General and construction notes pertinent to project, including one-call 

locate note. 
f. Temporary and/or permanent benchmarks used along with their 

descriptions, elevations of benchmark, and datum.  (When topographic 
survey is presented separately, show this information on that sheet.) 

g. Engineer's name, address, phone number including emergency contact 
information, fax number, email, and seal. 

h. Developer/owner’s name, address and phone number including 
emergency contact information. 

i. Statement referencing City of Newberg Standard Specifications. 
j. Provide contact phone number for all affected utility companies including 

the City. 
k. Show tax lot numbers or lot and block designations, land use 

designations, gross site area, and site address. 
l. Date of last plan revision (large/bold). 
m. Land Use Planning case file number(s). 

Plan Sheet 
The plan view of each sheet shall be drawn at the appropriate scale showing the 
following minimum information: 

a. Adjacent street curbs, property lines, right-of-way lines, utility easements 
referenced to property lines, street centerlines, and intersections.  Show 
property corner and curb elevations to determine water service level, 
serviceability of lot/property for wastewater sewer, points of disposal for 
building storm drains, and how new curbs will join to existing curbs. 

b. Location of all underground utilities within 100 feet of project (if they are 
affected by the project), existing power/telephone poles and guy anchors, 
valves, manholes, catch basins, fire hydrants, meter boxes and vaults, 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 142



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

signs, etc. location of nearest street light(s) and fire hydrant(s) (distance 
could be greater than 100’). 

c. Location of all water courses, railroad crossings, culverts, bridges, large 
water transmission pipes and gravity sewers, and/or storm drains within 
200 feet of proposed gravity sewer and storm drain extensions if they 
affect the design of the project.  All water courses shall show the 
100-year flood plain as indicated on the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
and Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) maps and any 
current or proposed wetlands. 

d. On sewer and storm drain plans, each manhole, catch basin, and 
cleanout shall be numbered and stationed.  Stationing shall tie to existing 
street monuments, property corners, or manholes.  Stationing for each 
line shall increase from left to right on the plan sheet.  This should result 
in north pointing to the top or to the left of the sheet.  Each separate line 
shall be separately designated (e.g., sewer line 'A', storm line 'A', etc.).   

e. On street plans, horizontal stationing shall show points of tangency and 
curvature for centerline; curve data shall show tangent length, radius 
distance, centerline curve length, and delta angle.  Centerline 
intersection stationing, in both directions, shall be shown. Provide ¼ 
point elevations for curb returns. 

f. Where streets are being widened, edge of pavement elevations shall be 
shown to determine pavement cross-slope to new curb or pavement 
edge. 

g. On water plans, all fittings and valves shall be shown and identified by 
type (i.e., MJ x MJ, FLG x MJ, etc.); fire hydrants shown; intersection 
details for valves and fittings are required when scale of plans is smaller 
than 1" = 20' (i.e., 1" = 40'). 

Profile Sheet 
Profiles for construction plans shall be the same horizontal scale as the plan 
sheet.  Profiles are drawn on the same sheet as the plan view and shall be 
immediately below the plan view.  Stationing shall increase from left to right with 
lower stations to the left.  The following minimum information shall be shown: 
 

a. For sewers and storm drains, show locations of manholes, catch basins, 
and cleanouts, with each numbered and stationed. 

b. Existing profile at centerline of proposed utility or street. 
c. Proposed profile grade, as appropriate, for all sewers, storm drains, and 

waterlines, giving pipe size, length between structures or fittings, slope, 
backfill and pipe material, sewer inverts, rim elevations, etc. 

d. Existing underground utility that crosses the alignment of the proposed 
facility. 

e. Beginning of all vertical curves, points of vertical intersection, end of 
vertical curve, low point of sag curve, and length of vertical curve.  
Profiles of existing centerline grade shall extend a minimum of 250 feet 
beyond the end of the improvement. 

f. Clearly show all potential conflicts with existing public and private utilities 
(i.e., pipes, conduits, vaults, cathodic protection systems, etc.) that 
impact proposed design. 

 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 143



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

SPECIAL NOTE:  City of Newberg as-built records are only to be used as an 
aid to the engineer.  The engineer shall field locate, or cause to be located, and 
verify the alignment, depth, and inverts of all existing facilities shown on the 
plans that will be crossed by the proposed facility. 

Erosion Control Plans 
The erosion control plan shall address the measures as required by the 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) erosion control standards and 
policies and the Willamette Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation 
Plan. Construction activity is assumed as "active" until all permanent vegetation 
and/or erosion protection is established. 
 
Refer to the City of Newberg Erosion & Sedimentation Control Manual for 
additional information. 

Detail Sheets 
Detailed drawings shall be included with all construction plans where City of 
Newberg Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings do not exist.  If a 
Standard Drawing, such as sewer manholes, must be modified to fit existing or 
unique conditions, the modified drawing shall be shown on the plans.  When 
appropriate, due to required detail complexity, a separate detail sheet shall be 
drawn.  When City Standard Drawing appurtenances or construction 
installations are to be used, a reference to the specific Standard Drawing 
number shall be made on the relevant sheet. 

1.5.5 Supporting Information 
The engineer shall submit sufficient supporting information to justify the proposed 
design.  Such information shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

a. Design calculations. 
b. Storm drainage report with all hydrology and hydraulic calculations, storm water 

quantity and quality calculations, basin maps and downstream analysis as 
required in Section 4, Storm Drainage. 

c. Alternate materials specifications including manufacturer's design application 
recommendation. 

d. Intersection sight distance certification as outlined in Section 5, Streets. 
e. Grading plan support information to include as appropriate: 

(1) Soils engineering report 
(2) Hydrology report 
(3) Engineering geology report 
(4) Arborist report 

f. Water model calculations and fire flow calculations for waterline systems. 
g. Documentation of proper protection and/or replacement of Record Survey 

Monuments. If, in the course of construction of the proposed development, a 
record survey monument shall be removed, disturbed, or destroyed, the 
Engineer shall cause a registered professional land surveyor to reference and 
replace the monument within 90 days in accordance with ORS 209. 

1.6 Plan Submittal 
Construction plans for all privately financed public works facility improvements shall be 
submitted to the City Engineer or the designee.  The City Engineer will coordinate the plan 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 144



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

review and approval of all construction plans which will include review for compliance with all 
Newberg Standard Specifications, the Newberg Development Code, and other City Codes and 
Ordinances. 
 
All plan submittals shall include information required in these Design Standards along with all 
other information requested by the City Engineer.  This information is to include, but not be 
limited to, construction cost estimates, intersection sight distance certifications, easement 
documents, right-of-way dedications, executed agreements, and a plan check and inspection 
fee.  All submittals will be reviewed for completeness and the engineer notified if required 
information is missing.  Submittals should be made in a timely manner as lack of information 
to the City may impede the review process. 

1.7 As-built Plan Requirements 
 
For all public works facility improvements the engineer shall submit a record drawing of  as-
built drawings for all plans that were approved for construction.  As-built drawings shall meet 
the requirements of these Design Standards and shall be of archival quality.   
 
The engineer shall submit, along with the as-built drawings, a statement certifying that all work 
for which plans were approved has been completed in accordance with the Newberg Design 
Standards and Specifications.  No disclaimer to the accuracy of the as-built records is allowed. 
 
 At the time of the final as-built plan approval submittal, the applicant shall provide the City 
with as-built drawings of the public improvements as follows:  

1) 3 mil mylar of the complete construction plan set(s). 
2) A disk of the as-builts in "DWG" format, if available; otherwise "DXF" will be 

acceptable 
3) The complete set of as-builts in printed Adobe Acrobat PDF format.  
4) The as -built drawings shall be tied to the City's GPS network. The applicant's 

engineer shall provide the City with an electronic file with points for each structure 
(manholes, catch basins, water valves, hydrants and other water system features) 
in the development, and their respective X and Y State Plane Coordinates, 
referenced to NAD 83 (CORS 96). Points must be translated and rotated to match 
City co-ordinate system.  

5) As-built drawings must show actual design numbers, “crossed out”, and updated 
with actual as-built numbers.    

 
The words "As-built Drawing" shall appear as the last entry in the revision block of the plans, 
along with the month, day, and year the as-built drawing was prepared. 
 
NOTE:  Actual location and depth from finish grade of any other utilities encountered during 
construction shall be shown and noted on both plan and profile of the as-built plans. 
 
The following minimum information shall be noted on as-built drawings: 

1.7.1 Street 
a. Change in horizontal alignment, curve data, and stationing of primary control 

points (e.g., PC, PI, PT, PRC, and PCC). 
b. Vertical curve or grade changes; change in location of low point in sag vertical 

curve. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 145



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������ �

c. Change to approved thickness for street structural section components. Show 
station limits where changes in structural section have occurred including 
subgrade stabilization rock section.  

d. Change to driveway locations or widths, or construction materials. 
e. Other change(s) altering the approved plans. 

1.7.2 Storm Drains 
a. Station of wye or tee connection into main line; tie end of branch line to nearest 

property corner at right-of-way line and distance back from the face of curb. 
b. Show alignment changes, grade changes, and changes in construction 

materials.  If changed alignment results in station changes, a station equation 
shall be shown as appropriate at a manhole. 

c. Other change(s) altering the approved plans. 
d. Actual location and depth, from finish grade of street and City datum, of any 

other utilities encountered during construction. 

1.7.3 Wastewater 
a. Station of wye or tee into main line.  Tie end of service lateral to nearest 

property corner at right-of-way line and distance back from the face of curb. 
b. Depth at the end of service lateral measured from existing ground to invert of 

pipe.  When required by the City Engineer, invert elevations shall be noted. 
c. Length of service lateral measured from centerline of sewer main to end of pipe. 
d. Show alignment changes, grade changes, and changes in construction 

materials.  If changed alignment results in station changes, a station equation 
shall be shown as appropriate at a manhole. 

e. Other change altering the approved plans. 
f. Type of pipe, backfill material and location. 
g. Actual location and depth, from finish grade of street and City datum, of any 

other utilities encountered during construction. 

1.7.4 Water Main 
a. Station and/or property line/corner to valves (not at standard location), all 

fittings, blow-offs, and dead-ended lines.   
b. All changes from standard 36-inch depth cover.  Limits shall be shown on plan 

with annotated reason for change.  Actual pipe elevation shall be specified at 
regular intervals by engineer of record.    

c. Show alignment changes, grade changes, and changes in construction 
materials.  If changed alignment results in station changes, a station equation 
shall be shown as appropriate at a valve.   

d. Provide manufacturer of all valves and hydrants; identify types of fittings (i.e., 
MJ x MJ, FLG x MJ, etc.).   

e. Other change altering the approved plans.   
f. Provide design calculations and complete pressure/leak test results to the City 

Engineer.   
Actual location and depth, from finish grade of street and City datum, of any other utilities 
encountered during construction.

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 146



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������!�

1.8 Approval of Alternate Materials, Methods, or Design 
 
Any substitute material or alternate method not explicitly approved herein will be considered 
for approval as set forth in this section.  Persons seeking such approvals shall make 
application in writing.  Approval of any major deviation from these Design Standards will be in 
written form.  Approval of minor matters will be made in writing if requested. 
 
Any alternate must meet or exceed the minimum requirements set in these Design Standards. 
 
The written application for an alternate approval is to include, but is not limited to, the 
manufacturer's specifications and testing results, design standards, design drawings, 
calculations, and other pertinent information.

1. General 
The City Engineer may approve a design exception request so long as it does 
not conflict with the City Development and/or Municipal Codes, the County or 
City Land Development Permit Decision, or any other relevant approvals, except 
as expressly provided herein. If the requested exception involves public safety, 
the City will rule in the direction of safety. 

2. Submittal 
All requests shall state the applicable standard, the desired exception, the 
reason for the request and a comparison between the applicable 
specification or standard and the exception as to function, performance and 
safety. If an exception is requested due to economic hardship, the request 
shall contain a statement on the impact to project cost with and without the 
exception. The request for exception shall be prepared by an Engineer and 
shall be stamped and signed by the Engineer. Multiple design exception 
requests shall be separated, individually prepared, and submitted to the City 
as separate requests. 

 
Any approved exception to these Standards shall be documented and should 
reference nationally accepted guidelines, specifications, or standards. The 
approval of an exception shall not compromise public safety or the intent of 
these standards. An exception shall be approved only if the City Engineer finds 
that the alternative proposed by the Engineer meets the criteria addressed in 
this section and will provide equivalent or better function, performance, and 
safety. 

 
Each exception shall be reviewed on a case-by-case basis and approved or 
denied by the City Engineer.  All exception requests granted are considered 
unique to each request and project, do not set a precedent, and are not 
uniformly applicable.   
 
When requested by the City, complete full size plans and design calculations 
shall be submitted for review with the request for approval. 

3. Special Facility Designs 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 147



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������"�

These standards are not intended to address the requirements for all possible 
public or private facilities. Facilities not addressed in these standards are 
considered unique and must be designed to meet site specific criteria.  For 
these types of facilities, the design engineer must request a pre-design meeting 
to review the appropriate design, operating and maintenance criteria that will 
apply to the specific project prior to submittal any design reports or plans.  The 
following are examples of facilities that will require special review and approval: 

 
� Sewer Force Mains  
� Water Distribution Pump Stations 
� Relining of Existing Sewers  
� Relining of Existing Water Mains 
� Internal Sealing of Existing Sewers  
� Water Pressure Regulating Devices 
� Wastewater Regulatory Devices  
� Energy Dissipaters 
� Wastewater Pump Stations  
� Water Reservoirs 
� Sewer Siphons  
� Water Treatment Plants 
� Wastewater Treatment Plants  
� Water Flow Measurement/Monitoring/Telemetry Devices 
� Wastewater Flow Measurement/Monitoring Devices  

4. Review 
The request for design exception will be reviewed by the City Engineer who will 
make one of the following decisions within fourteen days: 
 
� Approve as requested; 
� Approve with changes; or 
� Deny with an explanation 

 
Approval of a request in one project shall not constitute a precedent for other 
projects 

5. Appeal 
The Applicant may appeal the City Engineer’s decision to deny an exception to 
the Director. The appeal shall be submitted in writing within fourteen (14) days 
of the City Engineer’s decision.  

 
The appeal shall be in writing, state the relevant facts, applicable provisions of 
these Standards, specific grounds for appeal, the relief sought, and shall include 
all information on which the applicant relies. The applicant shall have the burden 
of proving that an error was committed, or that the requested exception meets 
the criteria and equals or exceeds the applicable standard as to function, 
performance, and safety. 

 
The Director shall review all the information submitted with an appeal. The 
Director may request additional information from the Engineer, the City 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 148



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Engineer, or both, and may meet with the parties. The Director shall render a 
decision in writing. The Director’s decision shall be final. 

6. Responsibility for Exceptions 
The Engineer shall be responsible for requesting, in writing, any anticipated 
exceptions to these standards at the time of submittal of plans. Only those 
exceptions so noted and expressly approved by the City Engineer, shall be 
lawful and permitted, notwithstanding approval of the overall “red-line” or “as-
builts”. 

*****END OF SECTION***** 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 149



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

 

SECTION 2  WASTEWATER 

2.0 General Design Requirements 
 
Performance Standards - Wastewater system design shall meet the policies and guidelines 
of the current “City of Newberg Wastewater Master Plan Update 2007” and the Oregon 
Department of Environmental Quality wastewater design guidelines and shall be designed with 
a 75 year life expectancy. 
 
Public wastewater systems within the public right of way shall be designed to provide gravity 
service to all areas of development. 
 
Wastewater system capacity shall be designed for ultimate development density of the 
tributary area.  The system shall allow for future system extension and for future development. 
 
Stormwater, including street, roof, or footing drainage, shall not be discharged into the 
wastewater system but shall be removed by a system of storm drains or by some other 
method separate from the wastewater system. 
 
Unpolluted or non-contact cooling waters shall not be discharged into wastewater systems.  
The overflow drains and filter backwash lines of swimming pools and "hot tubs" shall drain into 
a wastewater sewer. 
 
All, waste systems shall be designed to allow for future loads and for ultimate development of 
the specific drainage area or basin concerned. 
 
As a condition of wastewater service, all developments will be required to provide public waste 
to adjacent upstream parcels in order to provide for an orderly development of the drainage 
area.  This shall include the extension of waste mains in easements across the property to 
adjoining properties, and across the street frontage of the property to adjoining properties 
when the main is located in the street right-of-way.  This shall include trunk sewers that are 
oversized to provide capacity for upstream development. 
 
All waste lines shall be located within the public right-of-way for ease of maintenance and 
access, control of the facility, operation of the facility, and to provide required replacement 
and/or repair. Exceptions may be made on a case by case basis as approved by the City 
Engineer. 

2.1 Pipe Materials and Size 
 
All public wastewater sewers shall be constructed with PVC pipe as specified in the 
appropriate section of the Newberg Standard Specifications.  Where required for added 
strength, Class 50 Ductile Iron pipe or C900 will be used.  PVC pipe and fittings shall conform 
to ASTM D-3034, SDR 35 (no ductile iron if line has lateral connections). 
 
All wastewater main lines shall be a minimum diameter of eight inches (8").   Private 
wastewater lines shall meet the appropriate sections of the Uniform Plumbing Code with 
Oregon amendments.  

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 150



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

2.2 Minimum Design Criteria 
 
Velocity - All wastewater lines shall be designed on a grade which produces a mean velocity, 
when flowing half full or full, of no less than two feet (2') per second. 
 
Manning Equation - When calculating minimum pipe slopes and velocities, the engineer shall 
use the Manning pipe friction formula. 

Pipe Coefficient - The minimum pipe roughness coefficient for wastewater sewers shall be 
0.013.  
 
Inflow and Infiltration – An allowance of 1,000 gallons/acre/day shall be added for all land 
area in the basin being served. 

2.3 Alignment and Cover 

2.3.1 Right-of-Way Location 
Wastewater lines shall be located north and west from the right-of-way centerline as 
defined in Standard Drawing No. 103.  All changes in direction of pipe shall be made 
at a manhole. 
 
Sewers shall be located in the street right-of-way.  If streets have curved alignments, 
the center of the manhole shall not be less than six feet (6') from the curb face on the 
outside of the curve, or the wastewater centerline less than six feet (6') from the curb 
face on the inside of the curve. 
 
Utility infrastructure may not be placed within one foot of a survey monument location 
noted on a subdivision or partition plat per ORS 92.044 (7). 
 
Curved alignments in wastewater lines are not permitted. 

2.3.2 Minimum Cover 
In new residential hillside subdivisions, mainline and lateral sewers shall be placed in 
the street at a depth sufficient to drain building sewers on the low side of the street. 
 
Wastewater sewers in residential areas shall be placed in the street with the following 
minimum cover, Standard Details No. 211 & 212: 

 
Building Service Lateral - Six feet (6') 
Trunk and Collector Sewer 
In the roadway - Eight feet (8') 
In easements   - Eight feet (8') 

 
Where the topography is relatively flat and existing sewers are shallow alterations to 
the coverage may be approved by the City Engineer.  

2.3.3 Easements 

Public Sanitary Sewer easements shall conform to the dimension specified in 
Standard Drawing No. 109. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 151



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

2.3.4 Relation to Watercourses 
Generally, the top of all wastewater sewers entering, crossing or adjacent to streams 
shall be at a sufficient depth below the natural bottom of the stream bed to protect the 
sewer line.  One foot (1') of cover is required where the sewer is in rock; three feet (3') 
of cover is required in other materials.  In paved channels, the top of the sewer line 
shall be placed at least six inches (6") below finish grade of the bottom of the channel, 
except as provided above. 
 
Sewers located along streams shall be located outside of the stream bed and 
sufficiently removed there from to provide for future, possible stream channel widening. 
 All manhole covers shall be watertight at or below the 100-year flood elevation. 
 
Sewers crossing streams or drainage channels shall be designed to cross the stream 
as nearly perpendicular to the stream channel as possible, and shall be free from 
change of grade.  The minimum cover shall be thirty-six inches (36") from the bottom of 
the stream bed or drainage channel. 
 
Pipe material shall be Class 52 ductile iron or ASTM C-900 PVC with a 20-foot length 
of pipe centered on the stream or drainage channel centerline.  The pipe shall extend 
to a point where a one-to-one slope begins at the top of the bank and slopes down 
from the bank away from the channel centerline and intersects the top of the pipe.  (No 
tees are allowed in DI runs.) 
 
Concrete encasement will be required when the above cover requirements cannot be 
met.  Each deviation from the above requirements will be reviewed on a case-by-case 
basis, subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 

2.4 Manholes 

Manholes shall conform to ASTM C-478. 
 
Manholes shall be located at all changes in slope, alignment, pipe size, pipe material, and at 
all pipe junctions with present or future wastewater sewers. The number of manholes in 
designs should be minimized, as the goal of the City is to reduce the number of structures 
possible, in order to reduce inflow and infiltration into City systems.  
 
Manhole spacing shall not be greater than 500 feet. 
 
 
Designs for manholes are shown in the Newberg Standard Specifications and Standard
Details No.204-208. They are suitable for most conditions.  New designs or revisions should 
not be shown on the construction drawings unless the standard designs are not suitable.  New 
or revised designs may be necessary if; 
 

a.  One or more of the sewers to be connected to the manhole is over 36 inches in 
diameter (smaller diameters may require a special design if the manhole is at an 
alignment change.) 

b. Several sewers will be connected to the manhole. 
c. There is less than 90° between the incoming and outgoing sewer. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 152



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

d. The manhole will be subject to unusual structural loads. 
e. Diversion or other flow control measures are required. 

 
Where one or more of conditions a, b, or c is encountered, a drawing of the manhole base 
should be made to determine if it is feasible to use designs shown in the Standard Drawings.  
It may be necessary to restrict the options to a specific Standard Drawing specified by a note 
on the construction drawings.  If a special design is required for any reason, it will be 
necessary to show the details on the construction drawings and to provide structural 
calculations as needed. 

Alternate Manhole Features 
 
Some alternate manhole features are shown in the Standard Drawings.  Where these features 
are required, they must be specified by a note on the construction drawings.  Some examples 
are; 
 

a. Short cones must be used in lieu of standard cones where there will be less than five 
(5) feet between the lowest pipe invert elevation and the top of the manhole lid. Flat top 
manholes may not be used on a case by case basis if a standard frame can be used.  
Pre-approval required. 
 

b. Watertight manhole frames and covers are to be used if flood waters are expected to 
cover the manhole top. Such conditions should be avoided wherever feasible.  For 
manhole joint seal, apply wrap-around heat-shrink protection sleeves as approved by 
City Engineer. 
 

c. Tamperproof manhole frames (7” depth) and covers are required in all areas outside 
the paved public right-of-way. 
 

Standards for elevation differences at manholes have been established to compensate for 
normal energy losses and to prevent surcharging of a sewer by a larger sewer.  For purposes 
of slope calculation and for establishing elevation differences, the elevations are given at the 
intersection of the sewer center lines (usually the center of the manhole).  The rules for 
elevation differences at manholes are: 
 

a. The crowns of incoming sewers shall be at least as high as the crown of the outgoing 
sewer. 

 
b. If the incoming and outgoing sewers are of equal size and are passing straight through 

the manhole, there shall be 0.20 ft difference in elevation. 
 

c.  If sewers intersect or the alignment changes at the manhole, the invert elevation 
difference shall be at least 0.20 feet for 0°-45° of horizontal deflection angle, and at 
least 0.20 feet for over 45° of horizontal deflection angle.  Horizontal deflection angles 
greater than 90° are not allowed. 

 
d. The slope of a sewer within a manhole shall be no less than the slope of the same 

sewer outside of the manhole. 
 

e. Drop connections are required when the vertical distance between flow-lines exceeds 
two (2) feet.  The diameter of the drop connection must be specified on the 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 153



�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

construction drawings.  Smooth flow-lines with vertical distances of less than one foot 
must be provided wherever feasible. 

f. All connections must enter the manhole through a channel in the base. This includes 
drop connections and connections to existing manholes. 

g. Channels shall be installed in the base of all manholes to maintain minimum velocity of 
no less than 2 feet per second.  Channels shall also allow for insertion of televised 
sewer inspection equipment into the pipe from outside of the manhole.  All connections 
shall be made with an approved Rubber Boot.  Where conditions make compliance 
with these rules impractical, exceptions will be permitted.  It will be necessary, 
however, for the designer to provide a complete analysis of the need for such designs. 

2.5 Cleanouts 

Cleanouts will not be approved as substitutes for manholes on public sewer lines.  Cleanouts 
are permitted at the upper end of a sewer that will be extended during a future construction 
phase.  If future extension requires a change in sewer alignment or grade, a manhole will be 
required at the cleanout location. A manhole or clean out is required between public and 
private property.

Cleanouts are only permitted at the end of a non-extendable wastewater line that does not 
exceed 250 feet in length and does not serve more than eight (8) dwelling units. 

2.6 Service Lateral 

Service laterals are those public wastewater lines to which a private building sewer connects. 
See Detail No. 211.

Each individual building site shall be connected by a separate, private, building wastewater 
service line connected to the public sewer. Multifamily, commercial and industrial service 
laterals shall connect into the public mainline at a manhole. Combined wastewater service 
lines will be permitted only when the property cannot legally be further divided.  An example of 
this is a residential lot with a house and an unattached garage or shop with plumbing facilities. 

The minimum inside diameter of a wastewater service lateral shall be four inches (4”) and 
shall be equal to or greater than the building sewer diameter.  Service laterals shall be built to 
the same construction standards and of the same materials as the wastewater mainline. 
Laterals must be green colored pipes. Service laterals in general shall be placed at 90 
degrees to the main wastewater line to avoid excessive exposure to other utilities during 
excavation for construction or maintenance of the service lines.  Angles other than 90 degrees 
(45 degrees minimum) may be approved for special conditions such as cul-de-sac lots.  
Service line connections may be made at manholes if such placement would not interfere with 
other present or future connections to the manhole. 

The minimum slope of wastewater service lines shall be 2.00 percent (1/4 inch per foot).  
Except that for unusual conditions, a slope of 1.00 percent (1/8 inch per foot) may be 
approved.  It will be necessary, however, for the designer to provide a complete analysis of 
the need for any wastewater service lateral slope less than 2.00 percent.  The maximum slope 
shall be 100.00 percent (45 degrees or one foot per foot).

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 154



�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Tees for service laterals, with a slope greater than 100 percent, shall have 1/16th or 1/8th bend 
to provide proper grade for service laterals. Service laterals shall be installed to the street 
right-of-way line or easement line.  A water tight plug shall be installed in end of the lateral 
with a 2" x 4" standard wood marker placed from pipe invert to 12 inches above finish grade.  
The 2" x 4" top to be painted green and marked with the depth of the lateral measured from 
ground to invert of pipe.  Curb line and concrete gutter surface shall have an "S" branded into 
the face (top) of curb at lateral crossing. 

2.7 Connection to Existing Sewers 

Connections to, and extensions of, existing sewers will occur to facilitate new development. 
Certain requirements will be placed on the design engineer as to the permitted methods 
and/or locations. 

Connections to existing manholes shall be made with the following guidelines: 

All manhole wall holes and base channels shall be cored; approved Rubber Boots shall be 
used.

a. Where the invert of the connecting pipe is two feet (2') or less above the invert out 
elevation, an inside drop (beaver slide) will be constructed utilizing Portland Cement 
concrete.  The wastewater entering the manhole will follow a smooth concrete channel 
transitioning evenly from the invert of the inlet pipe into main channel.  Wastewater will 
not be allowed to fall freely to the manhole base.

b. Where the invert of the connecting pipe is more than two feet above the manhole shelf, 
the contractor will be required to construct an inside drop per Standard Drawing No. 
206 with the inlet pipe invert being located at the manhole shelf.  The wastewater 
entering the manhole will follow a smooth concrete channel transition from the inlet 
pipe into the main channel.  Plastic pipe inserted thru manhole needs to have a proper 
collar to insure concrete adhesion and prevent infiltration. 

c. Where the invert is required to enter below the shelf of the manhole, the inlet pipe will 
not enter below a point where the crown of the new inlet pipe is below the crown of the 
outlet pipe.  The base of the manhole shall be rebuilt if damaged in this process.  The 
wastewater will enter the main flow in a smooth channel transitioning from the inlet pipe 
to the main channel. 

d. No pipe will enter an existing manhole where the angle between the incoming flow and 
the outgoing flow is greater than 90°. 

When sewers are extended from cleanouts, the entire cleanout assembly, including the wye, 
shall be removed. 

New building service laterals will be made at existing tees where possible. 

When tees do not exist on the Public Wastewater Conveyance System, the new lateral sewer 
will enter the collection system through a "cored" opening with an approved connector saddle 
tap, or ‘cut in’ tee.  This connection shall be done in conformance with City standards. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 155



�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������ �

*****END OF SECTION***** 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 156



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������!�

 

SECTION 3  WATER SYSTEMS 

3.0  General Design Requirements 
 
Performance Standards - Water distribution systems shall be designed to meet Oregon 
Administrative Rules Chapter 333 and Oregon Revised Statues 448, AWWA Standards, and 
guidelines of the current Newberg Water System Master Plans. 
 
Water system design shall provide adequate flow for fire protection and ultimate water system 
demand.  Required water system demands shall be met by maintaining the minimum 
operating pressures required by the City.  For single family residential areas the minimum 
pressure shall be 40 PSI measured at the meter, and the minimum fire flow shall be 1,000 
GPM with a 20 psi residual.  For all other developments, the required fire flow shall be as 
determined by the Fire Marshall. 
 
Water system design shall meet distribution needs for ultimate water system demand within a 
given service area.  New water systems shall allow for future extensions beyond present 
development that are consistent with the Master Plan. 

 
All waterlines shall be located within the public right-of-way or as directed by the City 
Engineer.  Waterlines are placed within the public right-of-way for ease of maintenance and 
access, control of the facility, operation of the facility, and to permit required replacement 
and/or repair.  The City Engineer, under special conditions, may allow a public waterline to be 
located within a public water easement as referenced in Section 3.2.7. 
 
Utility infrastructure may not be placed within one foot of a survey monument location noted 
on a subdivision or partition plat, per ORS 92.044 (7). 

3.1 Pipe Materials and Size 

3.1.1 Materials
All public water distribution systems shall be constructed with ductile iron pipe, 
minimum thickness Class 52.  All such pipe shall be cement mortar lined pipe with 
push-on or mechanical type joints polyethylene encased with an 8 mil tubing meeting 
manufacturer and AWWA standards.  

3.1.2 Minimum Pipe Size 
Water distribution main sizes shall generally conform to the following: 
 

a. 4-inch - May only be used with approval of the City Engineer in residential 
zones on dead end streets less than a center line distance of 250 feet measured 
from the center of the intersection street to the radius point of the cul-de-sac of 
a dead end street with service to not more than 12 residences; and shall be 
connected to a looped minimum six inch main.  Fire hydrants are not permitted 
on four inch lines.  All four inch lines shall terminate with a standard blow off 
Standard Drawing No. 311. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 157



�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������"�

b. 6-inch - Minimum size residential subdivision distribution water main for the grid 
(looped) system, not to exceed an unsupported length of 600 feet and shall not 
be permanently dead ended.  Looping of the distribution grid shall be at least 
every 600 feet. 

c. 8-inch - Minimum size for permanently dead ended mains supplying fire 
hydrants with a fire flow less than 1,500 GPM and for primary feeder mains in 
residential subdivisions. 

d. 10-inch and larger - As required for distribution mains and primary feeder lines 
in larger subdivisions, industrial areas, and commercial areas. (Trench dam 
shall be provided for the 24” diameter water transmission pipeline Standard
Drawing No. 319).

Velocity in distribution mains shall be designed not to exceed five feet (5’) per second.  
Velocity in service lines shall not exceed ten feet (10') per second.  Standard trench 
section Standard Drawing No. 301 will be utilized for all water pipe installed. 

3.2 Alignment and Cover 

3.2.1 Grid System 
The distribution system mains shall be looped at all possible locations.  All 
developments will be required to extend mains across existing or proposed streets for 
future extensions of other developments by the City.  All terminations shall be planned 
and located such that new or existing pavement will not have to be cut in the future 
when the main is extended.  The installation of permanent dead end mains greater 
than 250 feet, upon which fire protection depends and the dependence of relatively 
large areas on single mains, will not be permitted. 

3.2.2 Dead End Mains 
Dead end mains, which will be extended in the future, shall be provided with end of 
line gate valve and a properly sized blow-off (see Standard Drawing No. 311)
assembly.

Permanent dead end mains shall terminate with a standard blow-off assembly see 
Standard Drawing No. 311.

3.2.3 Right-of-way Location 
Water systems shall be located north and west from the right-of-way centerline as 
defined in Standard Drawing No. 103.  All waterlines shall be located in the public 
right-of-way, unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. All abrupt changes in 
vertical or horizontal alignment shall be made with a fitting and secured with Megalugs 
and/or Field Lok Gaskets.  No concrete thrust blocks are allowed unless approved in 
unique circumstances. 

3.2.4 Curved Alignments 
Curved alignment for waterlines or mains is permitted and shall follow the street 
centerline when practical.  The minimum allowed radius shall be based on allowable

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 158



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

pipe deflection for the pipe diameter and the pipe laying length, but not to exceed 3° 
joint deflection. 

3.2.5 Minimum Cover 
The standard minimum cover over buried water mains within the street right-of-way 
shall be thirty six inches (36") from finish grade. 
 
The minimum cover for mains in easements across private property shall be thirty six 
inches (36") from finish grade. 
 
Finish grade shall normally mean the existing or proposed pavement elevation.  Where 
the main is located in the cut or fill side slope or where mains are located in 
easements, finish grade shall mean final ground elevation at the water main alignment.  
 
Deviation from the above standards will be considered on a case by case basis.  When 
there is underlying rock strata that prohibits placement of the water main thirty six 
inches (36") below finish grade, a written request must be submitted to the City 
Engineer for consideration, together with submission of a soils report, with a plan and 
profile certifying that bed rock exists less than three feet (3') below the undisturbed 
ground surface. 

3.2.6 Separation with Wastewater and Other Utilities 
Water mains shall be installed a minimum clear distance of ten feet (10') horizontally 
from wastewater sewers and shall be installed to go over the top of such sewers with a 
minimum of 18 inches of clearance at intersections of these pipes (in accordance with 
the requirements of OAR Chapter 333, Public Water Systems).  Exceptions shall first 
be approved by the City Engineer.  In all instances the distances shall be measured 
edge to edge.  The minimum spacing between water mains and storm drains, gas 
lines, and other underground utilities, excepting wastewater sewers, shall be three feet 
(3') horizontally when the standard utility location cannot be maintained. 
 
Where water mains are being designed for installation parallel with other water mains, 
utility pipe, or conduit lines, the vertical location shall be twelve inches (12") below (or 
in such a manner which will permit future side connections of mains, hydrants, or 
services) and avoid conflicts with parallel utilities without abrupt changes in vertical 
grade of the above mentioned main, hydrant, or service.  Where crossing of utilities are 
required, the minimum vertical clearance shall be six inches (6").  Check all crossings 
to avoid conflicts. 

3.2.7  Easements 
Mains placed in easements along a property line, shall have a minimum easement 
width of ten feet (10’) on the side of the property line where the main is placed (the 
remaining required easement width may be on the adjacent property) and the main 
shall be offset 36 inches from the property line.  Mains placed in easements along a 
right-of-way line shall be offset a minimum 3 feet from the right-of-way line and within a 
minimum 15 foot wide easement.  For mains placed in easements located other than 
along a property or right-of-way line, the main shall be placed in the center of the 
easement.  Easements, when required, shall be exclusive and a minimum of twenty 
five feet (25') in width.  The conditions of the easement shall be such that the easement 
shall not be used for any purpose that would interfere with the unrestricted use for 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 159



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

water main purposes.  Under no circumstances shall a building or structure be placed 
over a water main or water main easement.  This includes overhanging structures with 
footings located outside the easement.   
 
Easement locations for public mains serving a PUD, apartment complex, or 
commercial/industrial development shall be in parking lots, private drives, or similar 
open areas which will permit unobstructed vehicle access for maintenance by City 
personnel. 
 
Any water main placed within a water main easement will be permanently marked with 
steel posts and metal signs at all angle points, and no less than every 100 feet.  In 
addition, such posts and signs shall be placed where the waterline intersects the public 
right of way at the easement location.  A monument cap set in the pavement of parking 
lots shall be an acceptable alternative to the sign.  The City shall provide wording for 
the sign/monument. 
 
All easements must be furnished to the City for review and approval prior to recording. 

3.2.8 Relation to Watercourses 
New water mains may cross over or under existing streams, ponds, rivers, or other 
bodies of water as follows: 
 

a. Above Water Crossings 
The pipe shall be engineered to provide support, anchorage, and protection 
from freezing and damage, yet shall remain accessible for repair and 
maintenance.  All above water crossings will require review and approval by the 
City Engineer. 
 

b. Underwater Crossings 
1) Mains crossing stream or drainage channels shall be designed to cross 

as nearly perpendicular to the channel as possible. 
2) Valves shall be provided at both ends of the water crossing so that the 

section can be isolated for testing and repair.  The valves shall be easily 
accessible and not subject to flooding.  The valve nearest to the supply 
source shall be in a manhole.  Permanent taps shall be made on each 
side of the valve within the manhole to allow insertion of a small meter for 
testing, to determine leakage, and for sampling. 

3) The following surface water crossings will be treated on a case-by-case 
basis: 
a. Stream or drainage channel crossing for pipes twelve inches (12”) 

inside diameter and greater. 
b. River or creek crossings requiring special approval from the 

Division of State Lands. 
4) The minimum cover from the bottom of the stream bed or drainage 

channel to the top of pipe shall be thirty-six inches (36”) except as noted 
below in (5). 

5) A scour pad centered on the waterline will be required for mains less 
than twelve inches (12”) inside diameter when the cover from the top of 
the pipe to the bottom of the stream bed or drainage channel is thirty 
inches (30”) or less.  The scour pad shall be concrete, six inches (6”) 
thick and ten feet (10’) wide; reinforced with number four bars twelve 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 160



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

inches (12”) on center both ways; and shall extend to a point where a 
one-to-one slope begins at the top of the bank and slopes down from the 
bank away from channel centerline and intersects the top of the pipe.  
The upstream edge of the scour pad shall be thickened or protected with 
rip rap to a depth below the scour depth of bank full velocities.

3.3 Appurtenances 

3.3.1 Valves 
In general, valves shall be the same size as the mains in which they are installed.  
Valve types and materials shall conform to the City of Newberg Standard 
Specifications. 
 
Distribution system valves shall be located at the tee or cross fitting.  There shall be a 
sufficient number of valves so located that not more than four (4), and preferably three 
(3) valves, must be operated to affect any one particular shutdown.  The spacing of 
valves shall be such that the length of any one shutdown in commercial or industrial 
areas shall not exceed 500 feet or 800 feet in other areas. 
 
In general, a tee intersection shall be valved in two branches and a cross intersection 
shall be valved in three branches.  Transmission water mains shall have valves at not 
more than 800-foot spacing’s.  Hazardous crossings such as creeks, railroad and 
freeway crossings, shall be valved on each side. 

 
Valve Boxes:  Shall be model 910 or equal (lug less) and placed at finished grade, 
centering vertically over operating wheel (2”) or nut. 
 
Distribution tees and crosses for future branch lines on transmission mains may be 
required at the direction of the City Engineer.  

3.2.2 Fire Hydrants 
The public fire hydrant system shall be designed to provide up to a maximum of 3,500 
GPM.  The distribution system shall be designed in commercial/industrial areas to 
accommodate fire flows up to 4,500 GPM.  Minimum fire flow in single-family 
residential areas shall be 1,000 GPM with a 20 psi residual pressure. 

 
The distribution of hydrants shall be based upon the required average fire flow for the 
area served.  Design coverage shall result in hydrant spacing of approximately 500 feet 
in residential areas, approximately 250 feet in commercial or industrial subdivisions, or 
as approved by the Fire Chief and City Engineer.  In addition, sufficient hydrants shall 
be available within 1,000 feet of a building in commercial/industrial areas to provide its 
required fire flow. 
 
Residential hydrants shall be located as nearly as possible to the corner of street 
intersections and not more than 600 feet from any cul-de-sac radius point. 
 
No fire hydrant shall be installed on a main of less than eight inches (8") inside 
diameter unless it is in a looped system of six inch (6") mains.  The hydrant lead shall 
be a minimum six inch (6") inside diameter. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 161



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

All fire hydrants will be located behind the existing or proposed sidewalk or in the 
planter strip.  If any public hydrant encroaches on private property, an easement will be 
provided as directed by the City Engineer. 
 
No hydrant shall be installed within five feet (5') of any existing aboveground utility nor 
shall any utility install facilities closer than five feet (5') from an existing hydrant. 
 
Hydrant installation shall conform to Standard Drawing No. 312.  Full depth hydrants 
will be required in all installations.  Installation of hydrant extensions will not be allowed 
in new construction, unless approved by the City Engineer. 
 
Each fire hydrant shall have an auxiliary valve and valve box which will permit repair of 
the hydrant without shutting down the main supplying to the hydrant.  Such auxiliary 
valves shall be resilient seat gate valves.  The auxiliary valve shall have mechanical 
flange joint ends as referenced in the Standard Drawing No. 313.  The valve shall be 
connected directly to the water main using a flange joint tee, restrained spool full length 
using mega lugs and/or field loc gaskets. 
 
Hydrants shall not be located within twenty feet (20') of any building, nor will they be 
blocked by parking.  The large hydrant port shall face the road or fire lane. 
 
Guard posts, a minimum of three feet (3') high, shall be required for protection from 
vehicles when necessary.  Such protection shall consist of four inch (4") diameter steel 
pipes, six feet (6') long, filled with concrete, and buried a minimum of three (3’) feet 
deep in concrete, and located at the corners of a six (6’) foot square with the hydrant 
located in the center.  Use of posts other than at the four corners may be approved by 
the City Engineer. 

3.2.3 Air Release Valves and Combination Air/Vacuum Release Valves 
When designated by the City Engineer, air release valves shall be installed.  Such 
valves will be required on large diameter lines at all high points in grade. 

3.2.4. Restrained Joints 
Provide joint restraint (locked joints) to prevent movement of the pipe or fitting at all 
bends tees, crosses, plugs, and hydrants. All MJ fittings shall also be restrained. 
 

a. Mechanical Joint Restraint - Mechanical joint restraint where incorporated into 
the design of the follower gland shall consist of individually actuated wedges 
that increase their resistance to pull-out as pressure or external forces increase. 
 The device shall be capable of full mechanical joint deflection during assembly 
and flexibility of the joint shall be maintained after burial.  The joint restraint ring 
and its wedging components shall be made of grade 60-42-10 to ductile iron 
conforming to ASTM A-536-84.  The wedges shall be ductile iron heat-treated to 
a minimum hardness of 370 BHN.  Dimensions shall be appropriate to match 
pipe materials being utilized.  Torque limiting twist-off nuts shall be used to 
insure proper actuation of the restraining wedges.  
 
The system shall be rated for working pressures of at least 350 psi for pipes 16 
inches and smaller diameter and 250 psi for larger sizes.  The devices shall be 
UL listed up through 24 inch diameters and FM approved through 12 inch 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 162



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

diameters.  The restraint systems and devices shall be Series 1100 Megalug 
restraint, as produced by EBAA Iron Sales, Inc., or approved equal.  Contractor 
shall perform visual inspection of the restraint devices for flaws before 
installation.  Faulty restraint devices shall not be used at all. Contractor shall 
bear all cost of repairing and subsequent retesting to correct the defect. 
 

b. Gasket Joint Restraint - All pipes shall be Tyton joint gasket.  Contractor shall 
use Tyton joint gasket Field-LOK, or approved equal, for pipe-to-pipe gasket 
joint restraint.  Contractor shall perform visual inspection of the restraint devices 
for flaws before installation. Faulty restraint devices shall not be used at all. 
Contractor shall bear all cost of repairing and subsequent retesting to correct 
the defect. 

3.3 Railroad or Highway Crossings 
 
All such crossings defined above, or as determined by the City to be of a hazardous nature, 
shall be valved on both sides of the crossing.  Casing of railroad or highway crossings, if 
required, shall be as noted in the permit from the respective agency. 

3.4 Water Service Lines 
 
The sizes of water service lines that may be used are 3/4", 1", 2", 4", 6", 8", 10", and 12".  
Water service lines will be reviewed for effects on the distribution system and shall not be 
greater in size than the distribution main. Meter box lids shall accommodate installation of 
touch read pad.  
 
For two inch (2") and greater services, a design drawing must be submitted showing the vault 
and fitting requirements with the expected flow (normal and maximum day flow) requirements 
and proposed usage.  
 
Domestic service lines 3/4" through 2" shall normally extend from the main to behind the curb, 
with a meter curb stop and meter box located at the termination of the service connection 
Standard Drawing No. 307, 308 & 309.  Meter must be purchased from and installed by City. 
 Meter boxes are to be provided by the developer.  In general, individual service connections 
shall terminate in front of the property to be served and shall be located 18-inches each side 
of a common side property line. 
 
When a corrosive potential condition is encountered and the copper service passes over or 
under an active cathodic protection system, the service will be installed in a Schedule 40 PVC 
conduit for a distance of 10 feet on each side of the active system.  All conduit placements 
must be provided with as-built records. 
 

3.5 Fire Service 
 
The water fire service line shall normally extend from the main to the property line and end 
with a vault and an approved backflow prevention device. 
 
A vault will be required when a development provides fire sprinklers.  The vault drawing will be 
included on construction drawings submitted to the City.  The vault shall contain all valves, 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 163



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

fittings, meters, and appurtenances required for fire service to the development and be located 
on private property adjacent to the to the public right-of-way. 

3.6 Backflow Prevention 
 
Backflow prevention devices shall be required on all 1-1/2" and larger water services, irrigation 
services, and fire sprinkler system services.
 

3.7 System Testing 
 
All new water systems (lines, valves, hydrants, and services) shall be individually pressure 
tested, chlorinated, and tested for bacteria.  All testing shall be performed in accordance with 
the Newberg Standard Specifications and in the presence of a City inspector.  The contractor 
is to provide all equipment and materials to conduct the test. Water samples for bacteria 
testing will be taken and delivered to the lab by a City representative, the contractor shall pay 
for the testing. 
 
 

*****END OF SECTION***** 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 164



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

SECTION 4 STORM DRAINAGE

4.0 General Design Requirements 
Performance Standards - All storm drain system designs shall make adequate provisions for 
collecting, treating, detaining and conveying all storm water runoff.  The system shall 
accommodate all runoff from upstream tributary areas whether or not such areas are within 
the proposed development. The amount of runoff to be accommodated shall be based upon 
ultimate development of all upstream tributary areas. 
 
New or modified existing storm drain systems shall not adversely impact any inadequate 
downstream system. 
 
Utility infrastructure may not be placed within one foot of a survey monument location noted 
on a subdivision or partition plat, per ORS 92.044 (7). 
 
Storm drainage design shall comply with the required ESC Measures (see City of Newberg 
Erosion and Sediment Control Manual). The development area must include provisions to 
adequately control runoff from all public and private streets and the roof, footing, and area 
drains of residential, multi-family, commercial, or industrial buildings.  The design must ensure 
future extension of the drainage system to the entire drainage basin in conformance with the 
adopted Storm Drainage Master Plans and these Design Standards. These provisions include: 
 

a. Surface and/or subsurface drainage, caused or affected by the alteration of the natural 
grade, removal of natural ground cover/vegetation, or placement of impervious 
surfaces, shall not be allowed to flow over adjacent public or private property in a 
volume, velocity or location materially different from that which existed before 
development occurred.  Surface and/or subsurface drainage shall be managed, 
treated, and infiltrated or collected, and conveyed in an approved manner, to an 
approved point of discharge. 

 
b. Surface water entering the subject property shall be received at the naturally occurring 

locations and surface water exiting the subject property shall be discharged at the 
natural locations with adequate flow control and energy dissipation, to prevent adverse 
impacts from flooding, erosion, or sedimentation. 

 
c. Approved points of discharge for storm water may include but not be limited to a storm 

drain, existing open channel, creek, low impact development approach facility, 
detention pond, or retention pond, as approved by the City Engineer.  Acceptance of 
suggested facilities will depend upon the prevailing site conditions, capacity of existing 
downstream facilities, and feasibility of alternate designs. Curb weephole drainage 
systems shall only be utilized for single home developments.  
 

d. A drainage report with the required analysis of downstream system conditions is 
required with all plan submittals. Planning applications shall include a draft\ preliminary 
report.  
 

e. When private property must be crossed in order to reach an approved point of disposal, 
it shall be the developer's responsibility to acquire a recorded public drainage 
easement on city form prior to commencement of construction.  The drainage facility 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 165



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������ �

installed must be a closed conduit system.  Temporary drainage ditch facilities, when 
approved, must be engineered to contain the storm water without causing erosion or 
other adverse effects to the public and/ or private property. 

 
f. Drainage from roofs, footings, and downspouts may drain directly to a street through 

the curb under the following circumstances: 
1) The building pad ground elevation is at least 12 inches above the existing street 

curb. 
2) The existing street is adequately crowned to avoid sheet flow across the street. 
3) Storm water quantity and quality facility provisions have been satisfactorily 

addressed. 
4) Springs/ sump pumps shall connect to a piping system, unless approved by the 

City Engineer. 

4.1 Pipe Materials and Size
4.1.1 Pipe Materials 
All public storm drains shall be constructed with PVC 3034 SDR 35..  Where required, 
for added strength, C900 or Class 50/ Class 51 Ductile Iron pipe will be used.  When 
approved by the City Engineer, concrete pipe may be used and the pipe strength shall 
meet the applicable sections of ASTM C-14 or ASTM C-76.  

4.1.2 Minimum Diameter 
All public stormwater conveyance pipes, mainlines, and leads shall be a minimum of 
(12”) inches in diameter.Laterals shall be 4 inches in diameter minimum, large diameter 
laterals are considered on a case by case basis and shall connect to the mainline at a 
structure. In all instances, a cleanout is required to be installed at the lateral connection 
between public and private systems as shown in Standard Drawing No. 211. 

4.1.3 Private Storm Drains 
Properties that slope and drain away from the public storm drain systems may need to
provide a private drainage system in private easements.  This system shall be for 
collection of roof drains, footing drains, and surface runoff.  This system shall be 
designed to meet the Uniform Plumbing Code requirements. For multifamily, 
commercial and industrial laterals, a manhole is required at the connection between 
private and public storm systems.  

 
Mainlines crossing multiple lots may be required to be public, such as rear lot drain 
lines as approved by the City Engineer on a case by case basis. A clean-out shall be 
installed at the lateral connection between private and public storm system. When 
required by the City Engineer, a backflow preventer shall be installed on the private 
side at the lateral connection between private and public storm systems.  
 
Site designers shall consider potential drainage from sump pumps and/ or flow from 
perennial flowing wall/ building footing drains. Such drainage systems shall not connect 
to curb weep holes and will be connected to a storm drain piping system.  

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 166



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������!�

4.2 Alignment, Location and Cover  

4.2.1 Alignment 
All pipes shall run in straight lines, with a constant slope, material and diameter from 
manhole to manhole.  

4.2.2 Right-of-Way Location 
Public storm lines shall be located within the public right-of-way as directed by the City 
Engineer.  These lines are placed in the public right-of-way for ease of maintenance 
and access, control and operation of the facility, and to facilitate replacement and/or 
repair. Please reference Standard Drawing No. 103.   

4.2.3 Public Easements 
 

For public storm sewer easement reference Standard Drawing No. 109. 
 
4.2.4 Cover 
 
For stormwater cover requirements reference Standard Drawing No. 110. 

4.3 Structures 

4.3.1 Manholes 
The City preference is for the use of inlet manholes Standard Drawings No. 407, 409, 
& 410, behind the curb piping systems. Manholes and inlet manholes shall be located 
at all changes in slope, alignment, pipe size, and at all pipe junctions with existing or 
future storm drain connections.  

 
Manhole spacing shall not exceed 500 feet and spacing for manholes used as inlets, 
shall not exceed 400 feet. 

 
Standard manholes are required when rim to lowest pipe invert elevation exceeds five 
feet (5’) at pipe junctions.  Short cone manholes shall be used when rim to lowest pipe 
invert elevation is less than five feet (5’).  Flat tops with a standard frame may be 
approved on a case by case basis. 

 
When the downstream pipe size increases, the crown of all upstream pipes shall not be 
lower than the crown of the larger downstream pipe. 

 
All manholes shall be designed with a minimum drop of 0.2 feet from the inlet and 
outlet invert elevations. 

4.3.2 Inlet Manholes and Catch Basins 
All structures shall be located in streets at the curb line to receive storm water runoff 
and convey it to the main storm drain. 

 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 167



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������"�

Structures shall be located at the following locations, but in no case be spaced further 
than 400 feet: 

a. At curb returns on the upstream side of an intersection. 
b. At the end of all dead-end streets with a descending grade. 
c. At intermediate locations so that storm flows at the curb line do not exceed three 

feet (3') in width (measured from the curb face) or three inches (3") in depth 
(measured at the curb face), whichever is less, refer to figure 4-1 for design 
storm.  

d. An oversized inlet manhole at low point (sag) of all vertical curves. Street and or 
vertical curves with flat slopes may require installation of additional inlets.  

e. All structures shall be capable of intercepting completely the design storm flow 
at the curb. 

4.3.3 Culverts 
Culverts at road crossings in natural, perennial channels shall be designed to pass the 
peak discharge for the specified design storm such that the headwater:

a. Does not exceed 1.5 times the culvert diameter; or 
b. Remains at least 1 foot below the roadway subgrade, whichever is less. 
c. Bottomless or fish friendly culverts shall be installed in wetland and/or water 

quality sensitive areas. Final designs shall be permitted by applicable regulatory 
agencies. Approved permits shall be submitted to the City.  

d. Culvert material shall have a minimum design life of 75 years. 

4.3.4 Bridges 
New and replacement bridges over natural, perennial channels shall be designed to 
pass the 100 year peak discharge from the tributary area assuming full development.  
Vertical clearance between the design water surface and the bottom of any part of the 
bridge shall be a minimum of two feet. 

4.3.5 Walls 
When sizing walls, the designer will consider the surcharge caused by vehicles, soil 
and/ or future building construction on facility walls. All walls in public facilities shall be 
cast in place reinforced concrete, with a decorative surface finish, designed by a 
registered professional engineer.  

4.4 Drainage Report 
 
A final drainage report containing the information listed below shall be submitted at the time of 
initial construction plan review by the City.  An abbreviated preliminary drainage report shall 
be prepared and submitted during the land use approval process that is an outline/draft form 
of the final report requirements listed below.  The City may waive some or all of these report 
requirements for single-family residential partition projects and projects where post-
development impervious surfaces constitute less than 25% of the parcel.  In order to apply for 
a waiver, the applicant must submit a written request to the City and the applicant or 
applicant's Engineer must participate in a pre-design meeting to discuss the proposed project 
and its stormwater impacts prior to the land use approval process submittal. 

 
1. Narrative, with tables where appropriate, describing: 

a. Areas and flows used for design calculations per this design manual. 
b. Results of downstream analysis. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 168



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

c. How water quality and quantity requirements of these rules are met by the 
project. 

 
2. Maps showing the following information: 

a. Upstream basin flowing through the site with contours. 
b. Downstream basin to the point where analysis is required in the downstream 

analysis, with contours. 
c. Site plan showing development layout with contours. 
d. Existing stormwater facilities on and adjacent to the site. 
e. Stormwater facilities proposed to be constructed by the project. 
 

3. Calculations for: 
a. Hydrological calculations for both existing and post development conditions. 
b. Conveyance system sizing, including calculations showing portions of existing 

conveyance system that are not proposed to be altered have adequate capacity 
according to the criteria in these rules. 

c. Sizing of water quality and quantity facilities. 
 

4. Downstream Analysis: 
a. A certificate of investigation stating that the design engineer has taken 

downstream impacts into consideration is required for each development 
constructing, collecting or discharging more than 500 square feet of new 
impervious area.  

b. Projects that receive approval for a fee in lieu of construction and/or install 
partial or no storm water quantity facilities, the analysis shall extend downstream 
to a point in the drainage system where the additional flow from the proposed 
development site constitutes 10 percent or less of the total tributary drainage 
flow. 

c. When the downstream analysis does not continue for at least one-quarter (1/4) 
mile, the design engineer shall provide a stamped certification of investigation 
that states the design Engineer has visually investigated the downstream system 
for at least one-quarter (1/4) mile downstream and is aware of no observable 
downstream impacts to the conveyance system. 

 
5. For privately maintained water quantity or quality facilities or conveyance systems, a 

maintenance plan that clearly identifies maintenance activities and frequency in a 
form that can be easily provided to and understood by the people responsible for 
maintenance.   
 
The maintenance plan is to be included with the City standard private facility 
maintenance agreement form and submitted to the City for review.  Upon approval 
of the maintenance agreement by the City, the applicant shall record the agreement 
with Yamhill County and return one fully executed original to the City Recorders 
office. 

4.5 Flow Determination 

4.5.1 Design Event/Storm Frequency 
All public storm drain systems shall be designed for the design storm recurrence 
interval and 24 hour rainfall depths as in the following Figures 4-1 & 4-2: 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 169



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Figure 4-1: DRAINAGE SYSTEM DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

Drainage System Design Requirements 

Drainage System Element Design Storm Recurrence 
Interval (years) 

Facilities: Water Quantity & Quality Control  See Sections
 4.7.8 & 4.7.9 

Minor: Minor Collector Streets, Local Streets, 
Curbs, Gutters, Inlets, Inlet Manholes and 
Mainlines up to 250 Tributary Acres 

25 

Major: Major Collector, Arterial Streets, the 
Drainage System in or under Arterial Streets, 
and anything greater than 250 Tributary Acres 

50 

Watercourses: Without FEMA Designated 
Floodplain 50 

Watercourses: FEMA Designated Floodplain 100 

Bridges: 100 

 
 
Figure 4-2: Rainfall Depths

24 Hour Rainfall Depths
Newberg, Oregon 

Recurrence Interval 
(years) 

Total Precipitation 
Depth (inches) 

2 2.5 

5 3.0 

10 3.5 

25 4.0 

50 4.2 

100 4.5 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 170



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

4.5.3 Computational Methods for Runoff Calculations  
Design of conveyance systems shall be based on full build-out of the upstream 
basin based upon the most recent approved City comprehensive Land Use Plan 
and realistic estimates of development densities in areas included in recent 
additions to the Urban Growth Boundary. 
 
Unless an alternative method is approved by the City in writing, calculation of storm 
runoff used for conveyance design shall be based on one of the following methods 
with the limitations on use of each listed. A maximum overland distance for sheet 
flow used in calculations shall be 100 feet. 

 
Rational Method 
The rational method is allowed with the following limitations: 

a. Drainage subbasin area cannot exceed 1 acre for a single calculation without 
approval from the City. 

b. The time of concentration shall be a minimum of five minutes.  
c. The calculation methodology shall conform to the procedures outlined in 

Chapter 7 and Appendix A & F of the 2011 Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) Hydraulics Manual.  The City of Newberg Intensity, 
Duration, and Frequency (IDF) recurrence interval curves to be used in the 
calculations shall be ODOT Zone 7. 

 
Santa Barbara Urban Hydrograph (SBUH)  
SBUH methods shall be based on the following information: 

a. The rainfall distribution to be used within the City is the design storm of 24-
hour duration based on the standard NRCS Type 1A rainfall distribution 
using the chart included herein. 

b. Curve numbers shall be derived from the National Resources Conservation 
Service’s (NRCS) runoff curve numbers contained in Technical Release 55 
(TR-55)-Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds. 

c. Soil types shall be derived from the NRCS Soil Survey for Yamhill County.  
 

TR-55
a. The TR-55 method developed by NRCS when used for runoff calculations 

shall be based on the following information: 
b. A standard NRCS Type 1A storm shall be assumed. 
c. Curve numbers shall be derived from the National Resources Conservation 

Service’s (NRCS) runoff curve numbers contained in Technical Release 55 
(TR-55)-Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds. 

d. Soil types shall be derived from the NRCS Soil Survey for Yamhill County.  
 

Stormwater Management Model (SWMM) 
a. The SWMM method developed by EPA may be used on medium to large 

projects for computing runoff volumes for conveyance. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 171



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Figure 4-3: 24-Hour NRCS Type 1a Rainfall Distribution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 172



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

4.6 Conveyance Design 

4.6.1 Design for Full Build Out  
Storm drainage and conveyance facilities shall be designed and constructed to 
accommodate all future full build-out flows generated from the upstream drainage 
basin.  Conveyance system adequacy shall be demonstrated by performing a 
backwater analysis. The calculated hydraulic grade line shall in all cases be lower than 
a 2 foot minimum from finished grade at all structure locations.  The hydraulic grade 
line for shallow conveyance systems shall be determined by the City Engineer on a 
case by case basis.  

4.6.2 Velocity and Slope 
All storm drains shall be on a grade that produces a mean velocity, when flowing full, of 
at least three feet (3') per second. 
 

4.6.3 Pipe Roughness Coefficient  
The manning’s roughness coefficient to be used in conveyance calculations shall be 
a minimum of 0.013. 
 

4.6.4 Open Channels 
Open channel systems shall be designed for minimum 1 foot freeboard from bank full 
provided no structures are impacted by the design water surface elevation. 
 
a. Natural Channels 

Control of discharge from developed areas to natural channels shall be such that 
the average velocity resulting from all design storms less than or equal to the 
10-year event remains below the erosive velocity of the channel. 
 

b. Manmade Channels (Ditches) 
Ditches are only allowed as temporary facilities; rock lining is required when 
flows are in excess of 3 ft/s.  Manmade channels shall be designed for a 10 year 
storm with a maximum depth of 2 feet and 3:1 side slopes. Water Quality 
Facilities are not considered ditches. 

4.6.5 Overflow Analysis 
Overland/Overflow analysis shall be performed for all conveyance, water quality & 
water quantity systems that demonstrate that the 100-year event will not impact or 
inundate any buildings. Designer shall submit documentation indicating the 
overland/ overflow path during the permitting process to the City.  

4.6.6 Upstream Impacts  
Modifications to the existing on-site storm drainage facilities shall not restrict flows 
thereby creating backwater onto off-site property to levels greater than the existing 
situation, unless approved by the impacted off-site Property Owners and the City.  
When approved, the off-site Property Owner(s) shall agree to and sign a permanent 
easement legally describing the location of the backwater storage and authorizing 
the use of their property for stormwater drainage and detention purposes. The 
easement shall be in a form approved by the City. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 173



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

4.6.7 Downstream Impacts 
Downstream restrictions that create backwater during the 25-year design storm in 
the current or post-development condition may be required to be removed by the 
developer, at the discretion of the City. The engineer of record shall evaluate 
downstream impacts per Section 4.4. 

 
Removal of downstream obstructions shall not be allowed if the removal will cause, 
contribute, or exacerbate flooding and/or erosion damages to existing buildings, 
dwellings or properties in the 100-year design storm. 

 
When downstream restrictions are not removed, an on-site detention facility shall be 
required. 

4.6.8 Cross-Lot Drainage 
Developments shall accommodate existing off-site drainage entering the site so as 
to not impact upstream property owners or negatively impact the new development.  

 

4.6.9 Outlet Protection/Dissipation of Runoff 
Runoff exiting a development site shall be discharged with adequate energy dissipation 
to prevent downstream damage.  Storm drain lines shall enter a creek or drainage 
channel at 90° or less to the direction of flow. The outlet shall have a head wall and 
appropriate scour protection to prevent erosion of the existing bank or channel bottom. 
 The size of pipe or channel being entered will govern which protective measures are 
required.  All protective measures must conform to the erosion control requirements of 
these Design Standards and the City’s Erosion and Sediment Control Manual. 

4.6.10 Subsurface Drains 
Subsurface drains (under drains) shall be provided at the following locations: 
a. For all existing springs and field tile intercepted during construction activity for other 

facilities; i.e., wastewater, water, mains, street excavations, foundations, etc.   
b. Where high ground water exists or when it is necessary to reduce the piezometric 

surface to an acceptable level to prevent land slippage or under floor flooding of 
buildings. 

c. Subsurface drainage shall not discharge into a street or a street gutter. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 174



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

4.7 Water Quantity and Quality Facilities 

4.7.1 General Requirements 
 

Figure 4-4:

Stormwater Quality & Quantity 
Design Flow Chart 

 
< 500 ft2 

No New Treatment 
or Detention 

Facilities Required. 

Single Family 
Residential Homes 
on lots created or 
approved prior to 

July, 18 2012. 

 Approved regional 
facility already 

exists to treat the 
site. 

NET
IMPERVIOUS

AREA CREATED 
OR

TRANSFERRED 
BETWEEN
DRAINAGE 
SYSTEMS

Submit a Design by 
a Registered Design 

Engineer in 
Accordance with 

this Manual. 

� 2,877 ft2 or any 
site which 

disturbs one acre 
or more 

Treat & 
Detain All 
Net New 
Impervious 
Area 
Created. 

� 500 ft2 <2,877 ft2 Treat & Detain 
all Net New 
Impervious 

Area Created. 

Submit Best 
Management 

Practices 
Application & 

Sizing 
Forms. 

Meet Storm 
Water 

Conveyance 
Requirements of 

Section 4.6. 
Single Family Homes 
with a disturbed site 
area less than one 

acre. 

Upon    
  City 
Review 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 175



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������ �

Impervious Surface Area: 
a. For all sites, the threshold and approach for the design of water quality and 

quantity facilities shall be based on Figure 4-4 (above). 
b. For single family and duplex residential subdivisions, stormwater quality 

facilities shall be sized for all net impervious area created by the subdivision. 
This includes all existing and proposed residences on individual lots at the 
rate of 2877-square feet of impervious surface area per dwelling unit. Private 
LIDA facilities on individual lots shall utilize actual impervious area. For the 
purpose of design calculations, the actual impervious surface can be utilized 
as an alternative to 2877 square feet per dwelling unit when the average lot 
size on a single-family residential project is less than 3000 sq.ft. 

c. Except as noted in Section (a.) above, for all developments other than 
single family and duplex, including row houses and condominiums, the sizing 
of stormwater quality facilities shall be based on the net impervious area 
created by the development, including structures, roads, and other 
impervious areas. Impervious areas shall be determined based upon building 
permits, construction plans, or other appropriate methods of measurement 
deemed reliable by the City. 

Erosion Protection 
a. Inlets to water quality and quantity facilities shall be protected from erosive 

flows through the use of an energy dissipater or rip rap stilling basin of 
appropriate size based on flow velocities.  Flow shall be evenly distributed 
across the treatment area. 

 
b. All exposed areas of water quality and quantity facilities shall be protected 

using coconut or jute matting. Coconut matting or high density jute matting 
(Geojute Plus or approved equal) shall be used in the treatment area of 
swales and below the water quality volume levels of ponds.  Low density jute 
matting (Econojute or approved equal) may be used on all other zones. 
 

Planting/Vegetation
Planting/vegetation shall be in accordance with Appendix A: Planting Requirements. 
 No invasive species shall be planted or permitted to remain within a facility which 
may affect its function, including, but not limited to the following: 

 
1. Himalayan blackberry (Rubus discolor) 
2. Reed canarygrass (Phalaris arundinacea) 
3. Teasel (Dipsacus fullonum) 
4. English Ivy (Hedra helix) 
5. Nightshade (Solanum sp.) 
6. Clematis (Clematis ligusticifolia and C. vitabla) 
7. Cattail (Typhus latifolia) 
8. Thistle (Cirsium arvense and C. vulgare) 
9.   Scotch Broom (Cytisus scoparius) 

 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 176



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������!�

 
Fencing
Any facility with the potential of storing (18) inches or more at any time shall require 
delineation fencing around facilities and/or tracts containing facilities.  The fence 
shall be 4-foot high, black or brown vinyl-clad chain link fence in conformance with 
the City Standard Drawing No.419. 

 
a. When a facility is fenced, the fence shall include a 12-foot wide lockable gate 

for maintenance access conforming to the City Standard Drawing No. 419. 
 
b. If a facility is located adjacent to a riparian corridor, wildlife friendly fencing 

shall be utilized, as approved by the City Engineer and Planning Division. 

Access
Access roads shall be provided for maintenance of all water quality and quantity 
facilities.  The following criteria are considered to be the minimum required for 
facilities maintained by the City.  If the design Engineer anticipates that any of the 
requirements will not be met due to the configuration of the proposed development, 
the design Engineer is advised to meet with the City Engineer to gain approval for 
the deviation prior to submittal. 

 
Standard Road Design
1.  The road section shall be designed according to Standard Drawing No. 513; 

 the subgrade shall be compacted to 95-percent AASHTO T-99; or, the 
design Engineer may submit an alternate design certified as capable of 
supporting a 30-ton maintenance vehicle in all weather conditions.  

2.  Strengthened sidewalk and driveway sections according to Standard
Drawing No. 510. 

3.  Maximum grade shall be 10-percent with a maximum 3-percent cross-slope. 
4.  Minimum width shall be 12 feet on straight runs and 15 feet on curves.  

Minimum gravel shoulder width shall be 1-foot, matching the cross slope of 
the access road. 

5.   Curves shall have a minimum 40-foot interior radius. 
6.   Access shall extend to within 10-feet of the center of all structures unless 

otherwise approved by the City. 
7.  The City may require a curb or other delineator at the edge of the road for 

drainage, a curb stop, or to demarcate the road where the road edge is not 
apparent.   

8.  The side slope for road embankments shall be 2H:1V or flatter, as approved 
by the Geotechnical Engineer for the project.  

9.   A vehicle turnaround shall be provided when the access road exceeds 150’ 
in length, reference Standard Drawing No. 529. 

 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 177



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������"�

4.7.2 Maintenance Responsibilities 
Public Facilities 
a. Unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer, newly constructed water 

quality or quantity facilities serving public roads shall be publicly maintained to 
City Standards.   

b. The developer, or other legally bound party, shall be responsible for Public 
facility bonding and maintenance, two years from the date of the acceptance of 
the public facility improvements.  The maintenance period may extend beyond 
the two year period if facility plant die off is greater than 20-percent at the end of 
the two year period.  

c. Publicly maintained water quality or quantity facilities shall be contained within a 
tract with an approved access road provided and encumbered by a surface/ 
stormwater management easement dedicated to the City. The City will retain 
ownership of the tract. 

 
Private Facilities 
Private facilities shall be maintained by the owner. The owner or responsible party 
shall complete the City standard private maintenance agreement forms and submit 
to the City for review/approval.  The maintenance agreement shall be approved by 
the City and recorded with Yamhill County before the issuance of building 
occupancy permits. 
 
A maintenance plan is required for all privately maintained stormwater facilities, it shall: 

 
a. Be composed of an agreement to be signed by the owner of the stormwater 

facilities and the City and a detailed explanation of the operation, maintenance, 
and preservation of the stormwater facility including a schedule of required 
maintenance activities.  The maintenance plan will be appended to the property 
deed.  Educational material will be given to all present and subsequent owners 
of the facility that describes the stormwater facility, maintenance procedures 
including methods of waste disposal, maintenance schedule, and the location of 
the installation and maintenance records of previous years. 

b. Components – 
1. Inspection schedule including storm- related inspections 
2. Description of facility components, the observable trigger for maintenance, 

and the method of maintenance including appropriate waste disposal method 
3. Type of maintenance for plants and other landscaping material required for 

proper functioning of the stormwater facility and to maintain a 75% vegetative 
cover  

c. Contain the location for stormwater installation records.  The installation records 
will be kept until the facility is dismantled and no longer discharges to the City’s 
stormwater system.  They include at a minimum, the design calculations and 
assumptions and the construction drawings that show the individual components 
and the entire system. 

d. Provide requirements for maintenance records.  Annual reports will be submitted 
to the City by the owners of the stormwater facility attesting to the proper 
maintenance, safety, and functioning of the stormwater facility.  The 
maintenance records will be kept with the facility installation records and be 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 178



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

available for inspection by the City for at least five (5) years.  Installation records 
will be kept until the stormwater facility is dismantled and no longer discharges 
to the City’s stormwater system. 

4.7.3 Facility Selection Hierarchy 
The hierarchy of preference for public and or private water quantity and/or water 
quality facilities is listed below in the order of preference by the City Engineer and 
Public Works Maintenance Department.  The highest technically feasible option 
must be used (1=highest, 4=lowest).  Applicants must provide the appropriate 
technical analysis and evaluation and demonstrate the need to move from a higher 
option to a lower option as reviewed & approved by the City during the land use 
application or permit review application process.   
 
Detention Facilities Water Quality Facilities 
1. LIDA Facilities 1. LIDA Facilities 
2. Surface Pond 2. Regional LIDA Swale 
3. Underground Tanks 3. Proprietary Treatment Systems 
4. Fee in lieu of construction payment 4. Fee in lieu of construction payment 
 

4.7.4 Private and Public Proprietary Treatment Systems  
Proprietary treatment systems shall meet the removal efficiency requirements of the 
City’s Willamette TMDL implementation plan.  Proprietary treatment systems shall 
be allowed in situations meeting one of the following criteria: 
 

Private
a. Treatment of runoff from a single parcel. 
b. Treatment of runoff from an adjoining commercial, industrial, or multi-family, 

or condominium parcels which share a common parking lot. 
c. Treatment of runoff from high-density zoning classifications where the 

development is primarily single family residential and the average lot size is 
3000 or less square feet. 

d. Proprietary treatment systems shall be maintained by private parties, except 
for systems that are approved by the City Engineer on a case by case basis, 
to treat runoff from a public street. 

e. Proprietary systems require a long-term maintenance plan identifying 
maintenance techniques, schedule, and responsible parties.  This 
maintenance plan shall be submitted and approved with the drainage report 
for the project. 

f. All proprietary treatment systems shall be subject to maintenance 
responsibilities as stated under 4.7.2.  

 
Public
Treatment of runoff from new and expanded collector and arterial roadways 
where no other opportunities exist for treatment without necessitation of the 
removal of homes or businesses. 

All public and private water quality proprietary treatment systems shall be in 
conformance with Contech Stormwater Management StormFilter system or 
approved equivalent. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 179



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

4.7.5 Small Developments 
Two and three parcel single family home partitions that can demonstrate (storm 
report required) adequate downstream conveyance capacity are eligible for a fee in 
lieu of construction of stormwater quality/quantity facility payment. Large parcel 
single family home partitions with the potential for additional dwelling units and/or 
future subdividing/partitioning are not considered small developments.   

 

4.7.6 Fee in Lieu of Construction Payment 
Refer to the Engineering Services Department fee schedule for the fee in lieu of 
construction payment schedule.  The payment shall be made to the City before 
recordation of the final partition or subdivision plat for single family home construction, 
or the issuance of building permits for all other projects. 

 
Fee in lieu of construction payments for water quantity and quality facilities will be 
collected by the City and used to fund the enhancement/upsizing of existing facilities 
and development of regional facilities when feasible 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 180



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

4.7.8 Water Quantity Facility Design & Control Standards 

 General Requirements  
a. Each new development shall incorporate techniques for mitigating its impacts 

on the public stormwater system in accordance with the City of Newberg 
Ordinance No. 2012-2754, having an effective date of July 18, 2012, by the 
construction of permanent on-site stormwater quantity detention facilities 
designed in accordance with this chapter. 

 
b. All water quantity facilities shall be designed in accordance with City 

guidance documents and be consistent with this Chapter. 
 

c. When required, stormwater quantity on-site detention facilities shall be 
designed to capture runoff so the post-development runoff rates from the site 
do not exceed the pre-development runoff rates from the site, based on 24-
hour storm events ranging from the ½ of the 2-year return storm to the 25-
year return storm.  Specifically, the ½ of the 2, 2, 10, and 25-year post-
development runoff rates will not exceed their respective ½ of the 2, 2, 10, 
and 25-year pre-development runoff rates; unless other criteria are identified 
in an adopted watershed management plan or storm drainage basin master 
plan. 

 
d. Applicable low impact development approaches, designed in accordance 

with this Chapter, can be utilized to meet all or part of any detention 
requirements on a site.  

 
e. For all sites, the threshold and approach for the design of water quantity 

facilities shall be based on Figure 4-4. 
 

 
 Hydraulic Design Criteria 

a. Detention design shall be assessed by dynamic flow routing through all the 
conveyance components within the basin.  Documentation of the proposed 
design shall be included in the drainage report.  Acceptable analysis 
programs include those listed below, as well as others using the SBUH or 
TR-55 methodology. 

 
1. HEC-1 
2. HEC-HMS 
3. SWMM 
4. HYDRA 
5. Others as approved by the City Engineer 

 
b. A pond overflow system shall provide for discharge of the design storm event 

without overtopping the pond embankment or exceeding the capacity of the 
emergency spillway. 

c. Provide an emergency spillway sized to pass the 100-year storm event or an 
approved hydraulic equivalent. Emergency spillway shall be located in 
existing soils when feasible and armored with riprap or other approved 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 181



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

erosion protection extending to the toe of the embankment.  The emergency 
spillway shall direct flows away from proposed or existing structures. 

 
Facility Design Criteria 

a. The facility can be a combined water quality and quantity facility provided it 
meets all relevant criteria. 

b. Provide an approved outlet structure for all flows and an approved secondary 
flow route/path if the primary outlet and or conveyance system fails.   

c. Certain situations require use of multiple orifice plates to achieve desired 
outflow rates.  

d.   All water quality/ quantity facilities shall have a maximum depth of 5 feet 
unless approved by the City Engineer.  

 
Walls in Water Quantity Facilities  

a. Retaining walls may serve as pond walls if the design is prepared and 
stamped by a registered professional engineer and a fence is provided along 
the top of the wall.  At least 25% of the pond perimeter shall be vegetated 
with a side slope of 3H:1V or flatter allowing for maintenance access.  All 
retaining walls in publicly maintained facilities, shall be cast in place concrete 
with a decorative surface finish, unless otherwise approved by the City 
Engineer. 

b. Walls that are 4 feet or higher that are surcharged and/ or are periodically 
inundated shall meet all of the following criteria: 
1. Permitted through the City Building Division.  
2. The City shall not have maintenance responsibility for the wall. The party 

responsible for maintenance of the walls within the water quantity tract or 
easement area shall be clearly documented on the final plat, or in 
alternate form, both with review and approval by the City Attorney and 
City Engineer. 

4.7.9 Water Quality Facility Design and Treatment Standards 

Water Quality Treatment Requirements 
Owners of new development and other activities which create new impervious surfaces 
or increase the amount of stormwater runoff or pollution leaving the site are required to 
construct permanent water quality facilities per the City of Newberg Ordinance No. 
2012-2754, having an effective date of July 18, 2012, to reduce contaminants entering 
the storm and surface water system. 
 
Required Treatment Design Efficiency  
The following approaches are available for meeting the treatment design efficiency 
standards of the pre-development vs. post development reduction of wind/ rain 
deposited organic & inorganic sediments, automotive wastes, bacteria, mercury, 
and temperature control, as follows:  

 
a. Pretreatment as specified in the following sections in combination with a facility 

listed in b & c below: 
b. Low impact development approaches and regional water quality/ detention 

facilities  that can be demonstrated, to the satisfaction of the City, to meet 
treatment efficiency standards.  

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 182



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

c. Proprietary treatment systems meeting the requirements of Section 4.7.4. 
 

Design Considerations 
a. If an onsite water quality facility cannot be constructed to treat the runoff from 

the development’s impervious surface, then with City Engineer approval, an 
off-site water quality facility may be designed to treat runoff from an 
equivalent area of adjacent untreated impervious surfaces. 

b. Facilities shall be designed such that flow from the development is treated 
off-line from the storm conveyance system and reconnected to upstream 
flows following treatment. 

c. Discharges to riparian and/or wetland sensitive areas shall maintain the flows 
of pre-development site conditions to the extent necessary to protect the 
characteristic functions of the sensitive area.  Conversely, discharge of flows 
that may be damaging to downstream water quality sensitive areas into other 
catchments will not be permitted. 

 

Water Quality Volumes and Flows 

Water quality volumes and flow rates are calculated using section 4.5.3 
computational methods for runoff calculations. 

a. Water Quality Storm 
The water quality storm is the storm required by regulations to be treated.  
The storm defines both the volume and rate of runoff. The stormwater quality 
only facilities shall be designed for a dry weather storm event totaling 1.0 
inches of precipitation falling in 24 hours with an average storm return period 
of 96 hours using Figure 4-3, rainfall distribution.  
 

 

 Water Quality Pretreatment 
Incoming flows to a regional  water quality facility shall be pretreated using a water 
quality manhole or other pre-treatment methods such as forebays, water quality 
manholes, or other methods, as approved by the City.  

 Water Quality Manholes 
a. Hydraulic Criteria: 

1. Minimum Design Flow:  Water Quality Flow 
2. Upstream flow splitter may be used to bypass conveyance flows in 

excess of the Water Quality flow. 
 
b. Design Criteria: 

1. Shall conform to City Standard Drawings 
2. Minimum Manhole Diameter:  60-inch 
3. Maximum size of incoming pipe: 18-inch (high flow flow splitter may be 

required.) 
4. Sump Depth:  No deeper than 5 feet from invert out to bottom of sump 
5. Volume of sump: 20 cubic feet/ 1.0 cfs of flow into the water quality 

manhole, up to the 25-year flow.  Flow calculations shall include the effect 
of an upstream flow splitter. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 183



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

6. Maintain a 3-foot clear access zone between the inside structure. 
7. Orient access to structure in a clear zone. 

4.8 Low Impact Development Approaches (LIDA)  
 
Introduction
 
The City’s Design Standards define the requirements for development to treat and detain 
stormwater runoff. Stormwater is the runoff from impervious surfaces such as streets, roofs 
and parking lots that flows to storm drains, ditches and culverts, and then to the nearest river, 
stream or wetland. When it rains, stormwater runoff may pick up oil, sediment, bacteria, 
grease and chemicals that can pollute local waterways. 

LIDAs offer options to comply with stormwater management requirements, and complement 
the water quality facilities that have been established as part of this manual. The five 
objectives of LIDA are to:  

1. Conserve Existing Resources  
2. Minimize Disturbance  
3. Minimize Soil Compaction  
4. Minimize Imperviousness  
5. Direct Runoff from Impervious Areas onto Pervious Areas  

 

LIDA Design Considerations 
 

a. LIDA may be used in combination or with standard water quantity and quality 
facilities to meet the requirements of this Chapter. 

  
b. The applicant shall provide an analysis in the drainage report of the ability of any 

proposed LIDA to meet the water quantity and quality requirements for a project. 
 
c. The applicant shall provide a report from a  registered design professional detailing 

infiltration rates of existing soils for LIDA facilities that are proposed to fully 
discharge into existing soils. 

 
d. Maintenance access shall be provided for all LIDA facilities adjacent to collector or 

arterial roadways as approved by the City Engineer.  
 
e. Approval of use of a LIDA by the City does not eliminate the need for the applicant 

to secure approval from other appropriate agencies for use of LIDA on their project. 
A  potential example maybe DEQ’s underground injection control (UIC) permit. 

 
f.   LIDA facility planting shall follow the guidelines as detailed in Appedndix A of this 

Design Manual. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 184



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

LIDA Approvable by the City: 
 
a. Figure 4-5 identifies acceptable LIDA facilities to meet the requirements of this 

chapter.  The table identifies LIDA facilities to be used for publicly maintained 
systems and whether LIDA can be designed to meet the quality or quantity 
requirements of the Chapter.  Designers are also encouraged to consult the City of 
Portland’s stormwater management manual, Clean Water Services LIDA 
Handbook, and/or Oregon State University Extension Service LID facility design 
details for additional specific designs and other considerations. 

 
b. LIDA facilities not included in Figure 4-5 may be approved by the City Engineer if 

the applicant can demonstrate that the LIDA can meet the requirements of this 
Chapter. 

 
c. LIDA facilities require a long-term recorded maintenance plan identifying 

maintenance techniques, schedule, and responsible parties.  This requirement shall 
be noted in a maintenance plan and the City private maintenance agreement 
template shall be completed and approved with the drainage report for a project, 
before building permit and or site development permit is finalized for a project.  

 
d. All private LIDA Facilities shall be designed and constructed in locations that are 

approved by the building department.  
 
e. Reference Standard Drawing No. 451, LIDA Sizing form.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 185



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������ �

Figure 4-5 
APPROVABLE LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT APPROACHES 

 

Application Green 
Roof 

Porous 
Pavement/ 

Pavers 

Flow-
through 
Planter 

Infiltration 
Planter1/ 

Rain 
Garden 

Vegetated 
Filter Strip 

LIDA 
Swale 

Quantity 
Control  �� �� �� ��     

Quality Control �� �� �� �� �� ��

Impervious 
Area Reduction �� ��         

Infiltrate   ��   �� �� ��
Private 

Property �� �� �� �� �� ��

Public Street/ 
ROW     ��   �� ��

Steep Slope ��   ��       
Soils with 
Low Infiltration 
Rate2 

�� �� ��   �� ��

High GW Table ��   ��   �� ��

Contaminated 
Soils ��   ��       

 
1. Water proofing maybe required for the building, foundation or a crawlspace. 

2. Infiltration testing is required to determine rate.  

*****END OF SECTION***** 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 186



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������!�

SECTION 5 STREETS 

5.0 General Design Requirements 
 
Performance Standards - All street designs shall provide for the safe and efficient travel to 
the motoring public.  Streets shall be designed to carry the recommended traffic volumes 
identified for each street classification.  Street classifications are set forth in the City of 
Newberg Transportation System Plan (2005) and the Newberg Development Code. 
 
Streets shall be designed to meet or exceed the minimum guidelines set forth in the "AASHTO 
Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets" (latest edition).  Traffic Control Devices 
shall conform to the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways," 
Federal Highway Administration, with Oregon Supplements, Oregon Department of 
Transportation (latest edition).  
 
All vertical and horizontal curves shall meet the guidelines of the AASHTO Policy and the 
design speed for each street classification. 

5.0.1  Right-of-way and Pavement Width 
Please refer to City of Newberg Development Code chapter 15.505.060.

5.0.2  Access 
Please refer to City of Newberg Development Code 15.505.200. 

5.1 Traffic Analysis 
 
The City Engineer will require a traffic analysis report as determined by the type of 
development and its potential impact to existing street systems.  A traffic analysis will 
generally be required for a development: 

a. When it will generate in excess of 40 trips per p.m. peak hour, or 
b. When a development's location, proposed site plan, and traffic characteristics          

 could affect traffic safety, access management, street capacity, or known traffic      
 problems or deficiencies in a development's study area. 

 
The report shall be prepared by a licensed traffic engineer in the State of Oregon.  At a 
minimum, the report shall contain the following: 
 

1. Purpose of Report and Study Objectives 
A discussion of key traffic issues to be addressed and the transportation system 
and development objectives related to a specific development. 

 
General transportation system objectives are: 

a. To  provide safe and effective transfer of vehicle traffic between the site and the 
street system; 

b. To maintain easy and safe traffic flow on surrounding street system; 
c. To  provide convenient, safe and efficient on-site and off-site movement of 

vehicles, pedestrians, transit, service and delivery vehicles, and bicycles; 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 187



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������"�

d. To effectively mitigate adverse site generated traffic impacts on affected streets 
and intersections.  Site specific objectives may be established by the City for 
each study. 

 
2. Executive Summary 
A concise summary of the study purpose/objectives, site location and study area, 
development description, key assumptions, findings, conclusions and 
recommendations. 

3. Description of Site and Study Area Roadways 
Anticipated  nearby development and committed roadway improvements, which would 
affect future traffic in the study area. 

 
The study area will be defined by: 
All roads, ramps, and intersections through which peak hour site traffic composes at 
least 5% of the existing capacity of an intersection approach, or roadway sections on 
which accident character or residential traffic character is expected to be significantly 
impacted. 

4. On-site Traffic Evaluation 
An evaluation of the proposed (and alternative) site access locations, the adequacy of 
access drive depth, driveway lanes, and queuing storage, the safety and efficiency of 
proposed vehicular circulation, parking layout, pedestrian and service vehicle 
routes/facilities, together with recommendations for on-site traffic markings and 
controls. 

 
5. Technical Appendix 
A technical appendix including worksheets, charts, and drawings to support findings 
described in the body of the report. 

 
6. Recommendations for Public Improvements 
Recommendations should be made for external roadway improvements, such as 
additional through lanes and turn lanes, and traffic control devices necessitated as a 
result of the development.  Recommended improvements to transit facilities, and 
pedestrian and bike circulation should also be reported. 

 
The recommendations should specify the time period within which improvements 
should be made, particularly if improvements are associated with a phased 
development, the estimated cost of improvements, and any monitoring of operating 
conditions and improvements that may be needed.  If needed street improvements 
unrelated to the development are identified during the analysis, such improvements 
should be reported. 
 
7. Access Management 
On sites with arterial and major collector street frontages, the report shall evaluate and 
recommend the use of access management plans or techniques: 

 
a. To separate basic conflict areas (reduce number of driveways or increase 

spacing between driveways and intersections). 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 188



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

b. To remove turning vehicles or queues from the through lanes (reduce both the 
frequency and severity of conflicts by providing separate paths and storage area 
for turning vehicles and queues). 

 
These techniques may include turn restrictions, striping, medians, frontage roads, 
channelization of lanes or driveways, shared driveways and access between similar 
uses, access consolidation, lanes for left or right turns, and other transportation system 
management (TSM) actions. 

 
8. Off-site Traffic Evaluation 

Offsite traffic should include: 
 

a. Existing daily and P.M. peak hour counts by traffic movements at intersections 
effected by generated traffic from the development (use traffic flow diagrams). 

b. Projected daily and P.M. peak hour volumes for these same intersections and 
proposed access points when the development is in full service. (Use traffic flow 
diagrams) 

c. A determination of the existing levels of service and projected levels of service 
at each intersection and access points studied. 

d. A discussion of the need for traffic signals.  This should include a traffic warrant 
computation based on the latest edition of National Manual on Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices. 

e. The recommendations made in the report should be specific, and should be 
based on a minimum level of service "D" with maximum volume to capacity (v/c) 
ratio of 0.90 when the development is in full service.  As an example, if a traffic 
signal is recommended, the recommendation should include the type of traffic 
signal control and what movements should be signalized.  If a storage lane for 
right turns or left turns is needed, the recommendation should include the 
amount of storage needed. If several intersections are involved for signalization 
and an interconnect system is considered, specific analysis should be made 
concerning progression of traffic between intersections. 

f. The report should include a discussion of bike and pedestrian usage, safe route 
to schools, and the availability of mass transit to serve the development. 

5.2 Intersections 
 
Connecting street intersections shall be located to provide for traffic flow, safety, and turning 
movements, as conditions warrant.  Where signalized, design shall provide for optimal signal 
phasing.  Consideration for arterial street progression, protected/permitted and permitted left 
turn phasing shall occur.  New signal proposals in remote locations shall first include an 
evaluation of alternate applications such as roundabouts.

Arterial Intersections:  Exclusive left and right turn lanes will be provided; bus turnouts will 
be provided if traffic flow and safety conditions warrant; designated crosswalks will be 
provided at controlled locations; street alignments across intersections shall be continuous. 
 
Minor Collector and Local Street Intersections:  Street and intersection alignments should 
facilitate local circulation but avoid alignments that encourage non-local, through traffic. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 189



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Streets shall be aligned so as to intersect at right angles (90°).  Angles of less than 75° will not 
be permitted.  Intersection of more than two streets at one point will not be permitted. 
 
New streets shall intersect with existing street intersections so that center lines are not offset, 
except as provided below.  Where existing streets adjacent to a proposed development do not 
align properly, conditions may be required of the development to provide for proper alignment. 
 
For intersections which are not directly aligned with street center lines, the centerline spacing 
must meet the following minimum separation distance: 
 

Street Class Intersection Spacing (Ft.) * 
 
3 Lane Major/Minor Arterial 300  
Major Collector 200  
Minor Collector 150  
Local/Cul-de-sac 100 

 
*The City Engineer may permit a lesser spacing when comprehensive findings are made to 
establish that: 

 
a. Without the change, there could be no public street access from the parcel(s) to the 

existing street, and 
 

b. All other provisions of the street design requirements can be met. 

5.3 Half Street Construction 
 
Half street construction is generally not acceptable.  Where such a street is justified, the City 
Engineer will approve the right-of-way and pavement width.  In no case shall the pavement 
width required be less than that required to provide two lanes of traffic to pass at a safe 
distance.  For a 34 foot local street, the half street pavement width will be 22 feet.  Half streets 
will only be approved when the abutting or opposite frontage property is undeveloped and the 
full improvement will be provided with development of the abutting or opposite (upon right-of-
way dedication) frontage property.  Half street shall be signed “No Parking” until the full width 
of the street is improved.  A clear 20 feet for travel shall be maintained at all times. 
 
A development on an unimproved street shall be responsible for constructing a continuous, 
City standard street to a connection with the nearest standard (publicly maintained) street. 

5.4 Street Classification 
 
All streets within the City shall be classified as listed in Newberg Transportation System Plan.  
The classification for any street not listed shall be that determined by the City Engineer. 

 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 190



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

5.5 Design Speed 
Design speeds for classified streets shall be as follows*: 
  

3 Lane Major/Minor Arterial 35 - 45 mph  
Major Collector 25 - 35 mph  
Minor Collector 25 - 35 mph  
Local 25 mph  
Cul-de-sac 25 mph 

 
* Where existing traffic conditions identify speeds in excess of design speeds listed, then the 
higher speed will be used for design purposes. 

5.6 Horizontal/Vertical Curves and Grades 

5.6.1 Horizontal Curves 
Horizontal curve radius (on centerline) for each street classification shall be designed 
according to the roadway design speed.  The radius shall not be less than the 
following: 
  

Design Speed (MPH) Radius (Feet)  
25 180’  
30 300'  
35 450'  
40 670’ 

All horizontal curves shall be designed to the current version of the American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Manual. 

5.6.2 Vertical Curves 
Vertical curve length shall be based on the design criteria which include:   
a. Design speed  
b. Crest vertical curve  
c. Sag vertical curve - stopping sight distance for crest and sag vertical curves shall 

be based on sight distance and headlight sight distance, respectively. 
 
All vertical curves shall be parabolic and the length shall be computed for each 
location and shall be designed to the current version of the American Association of 
State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Manual. 

5.6.3 Grades 
Maximum grades for each street classification shall be as follows: 
  

Arterial 0.060 ft./ft.  (6%)  
Major Collector 0.080 ft./ft.  (8%) 
Minor Collector 0.100 ft./ft. (10%)  
Local/Cul-de-sac 0.120 ft./ft. (12%) 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 191



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

Local and cul-de-sac streets may exceed 12%, but in no case permitted to exceed 
15%.  The City Engineer may approve a grade greater than 12% when all of the 
following conditions exist: 
 

1) Topographic constraints do not allow the development to be served by a street 
with a maximum grade of 12% without causing destabilization of soils by 
excessive cuts and fills. 

2) There is no access to the property being developed through adjacent properties 
at a maximum 12% grade. 

3) The section of local street will not exceed a combination of length, horizontal 
alignment, and/or grades exceeding 12% which will create hazardous traffic 
conditions. 

4) In no case shall the maximum street grade exceed 15%. 
 
Minimum grade for all streets shall be 0.0050 feet per foot (0.50%) however, in all 
cases street grades shall allow for proper and adequate drainage.  Cul-de-sac "bulbs" 
shall have a minimum slope of 0.0060 feet per foot (0.60%). 
 
Street cross slopes shall be as shown in street typical section Standard Drawing No. 
513.

5.7 Pavement Design 
 
In general, all streets shall be constructed with asphaltic concrete; however, Portland Cement 
Concrete (PCC) streets are permitted as approved by the City Engineer. 
 
Typical flexible pavement thicknesses will be as shown in Standard Drawing No. 513.  This 
will apply only to local streets and lower classifications.   
 
The Design Engineer will provide a street structural design section for all roadways classified 
as “Minor Collector” and higher, and for local streets in industrial zones. Minimum standards 
for roads classified as “Minor Collector” and higher shall be as shown in Standard Drawing 
No. 527. 

5.8  Concrete Curb 
 
All development projects will be required to construct street improvements with concrete 
curbs.  Monolithic curb and gutter, as shown in the Standard Drawings, shall be used on all 
streets.  Curb exposure for monolithic curb and gutter shall be six inches (6") and eight inches 
(8") at catch basins.  Joint spacing in curbs shall be 15-foot maximum for contraction joints 
and 45-foot maximum for expansion joints.  In addition, expansion joints shall be located at all 
curb return points and at driveway curb-drop transition points. 
 
 A minimum of two drainage block outs to accommodate 3" drain pipe shall be provided for 
each lot.  Typically these block outs are located five feet (5') from each side of property line. 

5.8.1  Curb Return Radius 
Please refer to City of Newberg Development Code Chapter 15.505.090. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 192



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

5.9 Parking
  

Street Class Parking Lanes Parking Required 
 3 Lane Major/Minor Arterial      None Not Allowed 
Major Collector      None Variable (1) (2)  

 Minor Collector      2 Yes  
 Local      2 Yes (3) (4)  
 Cul-de-sac      2 Yes (3) (4) 

 
1) Where bike lanes exist, parking may be prohibited. 
2) No parking within 45' of curb return. 
3) No parking within 30' of curb return. 
4) Local Streets and Cul-de-sacs in areas of steeper topography, which are approved for 

reduced 32 feet pavement width, will be required to have one parking lane; to assure 
that on street parking is adequate for adjacent uses, a reduced street design will 
consider clustered parking bays adjacent to the street, if needed.  Parking will not be 
allowed in reduced radius cul-de-sacs. 

 
For streets designated as “Major Collector” and below, the City Engineer may consider design 
modifications to conserve major trees in the public right-of-way.  Subject to approval by the 
City Engineer, parking lanes may be removed on one or on both sides of a street. 

5.10 Sidewalks 
 
In general, new sidewalks are required for all development requiring a development permit.  
Where planter strips are required, sidewalks shall be one (1) foot off the right-of-way line 
(except cul-de-sacs).  Where no planter strips are required, sidewalks shall abut curbs.  
Minimum sidewalk width is five feet. 
 
For streets designated as “Major Collector” and below, the City Engineer may modify design of 
sidewalk to conserve major trees in the public right-of-way.  Include handrails or fences to 
protect pedestrians when there is a vertical drop of 30-inches or greater adjacent to sidewalk. 

5.10.1 Sidewalk Ramps 
All new street intersections shall provide sidewalk ramps (for access) that meet the 
requirement of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  In residential areas the ramp 
will be located at the midpoint of the curb return.  On streets classified above local or 
cul-de-sac, ramps may be required at different locations within the curb return.  It may 
also be required to construct two (2) ramps at a curb return when a different location is 
required.  Retrofit of existing ramps within the project limit may be required. 
 
Locations of sidewalk ramps shall be designed with regard to storm water flows, street 
grades, and pole locations.  Other factors may also dictate sidewalk ramp location. 
 
See Standard Drawing No. 505 for standard locations. 

5.11  Bikeways 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 193



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

The City has adopted the "Newberg Bicycle/Pedestrian Plan."  This plan summarizes the 
City's policy and implementation strategies for bikeways within the City.  Follow AASHTO and 
ODOT standards and criteria as the minimum guidelines for bikeway design, construction, and 
control. 
 
Use the following guidelines for bikeway improvements: 
 

1) ODOT, “Oregon Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan” (latest edition.) 
 

2) AASHTO, “Guide to Development of Bicycle Facilities” (latest edition.) 
 

3) Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices with Oregon supplements by Oregon 
Transportation Commission (latest edition.) 

5.11.1 Bikeway Location, Width 
  

Bikeway Location Width Comments  
    
Public Street  
(designated bike lane)

  5'** Each direction of travel at shoulder/curb 

**   Six foot is recommended for “Arterial” classification. 

5.11.2 Design Criteria 
In general, bikeway design shall meet the adopted standards referred to in Section
5.11. 
 
All bikeways shall have a minimum cross slope of two percent (2%) and a maximum 
cross slope of five percent (5%).  On curved alignments, the cross slope shall be to the 
inside of the curve. 

 
Bikeway curvature will be based on a minimum design speed of 20 MPH. 

 
Bikeway grades shall be limited to a maximum of five percent (5%).  Where topography 
dictates, grades over five percent (5%) are acceptable when a higher design speed is 
used and additional width is provided. 

5.12 Driveways 
 
Access to private property shall be permitted with the use of driveway curb cuts.  The access 
points with the street shall be the minimum necessary to provide access while not inhibiting 
the safe circulation and carrying capacity of the street. 
 
On Major Collector streets and above, one driveway per site frontage will be the normal 
maximum number.  Double frontage lots and corner lots on these streets may be limited to 
access from a single street, usually the lower classification street.  If additional driveways on a 
frontage are approved by the City Engineer, a finding shall be made that no eminent traffic 
hazard would result and impacts on through traffic would be minimal; restrictions may be 
imposed on additional driveways, such as limited turn movements, shared access between 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 194



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ��������

uses, closure of existing driveways, or other access management actions. Please refer to City 
of Newberg Development Code Chapter 15.505.200. 
 
Driveway approach types shall generally be limited to those shown in the Standard Drawings 
for residential driveways, and commercial/industrial driveways.  Residential driveways shall 
conform to Standard Drawing No. 508 & 509; commercial/industrial driveways shall conform 
to Standard Drawing No. 510 & 511.  Curb return driveway approaches must be approved by 
the City Engineer.

TABLE 5-1 

Driveway Widths (Minimum/Maximum in Feet) 
 

Street Classification Res. Comm. Ind.  
3 Lane Major/Minor 

Arterial: 
NA (1) NA (1) NA (1) 

 
Major Collector: 12/24 (2) 12/36(5) 12/36(5)  
Minor Collector: 12/24 (2) 12/36(3) 12/36(3)  

Local: 12/24 (2) 12/36 (4)  
Cul-de-sac: 12/24 (2) 12/36 12/36 

 
Res.    = Residential Zone 
Comm. = Commercial Zone 
Ind.    = Industrial Zone 

 
Notes: (1)   Special conditions may warrant access. 

(2)   28' maximum with 3-car garage (measured at low curb cut) 
(3)   Frontage greater than 130/ft. permitted one additional curb cut. 
(4)   Build to Minor Collector standard. 
(5) Certain businesses may warrant one additional curb cut                     

for service driveway. 
 

For classification of Major Collector and above, driveways adjacent to street intersections shall 
be located beyond the required queue length for traffic movements at the intersection.  If this 
requirement prohibits access to the site, a driveway with restricted turn movements may be 
allowed. 
 
Within commercial, industrial, and multi-family areas, shared driveways and internal access 
between similar uses are encouraged to reduce the access points to the higher classified 
roadways; to improve internal site circulation; and to reduce local trips or movements on the 
street system.  Shared driveways or internal access between uses will be established by 
means of common access easements at the time of development. 
 
Driveway grades shall not exceed twelve percent (12%) from the curb line to the front edge of 
setback (Type “A”) sidewalk. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 195



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������ �

5.13 Street Lighting, Trees, Names and Signage 
Utility infrastructure may not be placed within one foot of a survey monument location 
noted on a subdivision or partition plat, per ORS 92.044 (7). 

5.13.1 Street Lighting 
General Design 
a. All street lighting shall be designed using the Illuminating Engineering Society of 

North America and Washington County Standards for Roadway Illumination, as 
amended.

b. All electrical components shall be UL approved and testing lab approved from labs 
accepted by the State of Oregon. 

c. All street light plans shall include pole, conduit, junction box, photo cell, and 
transformer/controller locations, and photometrics (or P.E. Certification), along with 
any other pertinent information. 

d. The Contractor shall be responsible to provide all required traffic control during 
system installation. 

e. The Contractor shall be responsible for making arrangements with PGE for 
installation and connecting the street lighting system to the local distribution system. 

f. For installation of new street lighting on an existing street lighting system, contact 
the City Engineer. 

g. For installation of a new street lighting system associated with a residential 
subdivision, contact the PGE Engineering Division. Engineer shall submit to PGE 
electronic file of the survey base and site development base files including all 
underground public utilities. 

h. All street light poles should be located near property lines and at least 25 feet from 
any street trees, unless otherwise approved in writing by the City Engineer. 
The following codes and references shall be used in designing all street light 
systems: 1. National Electrical Code (NEC). 2. Portland General Electric (PGE). 

i. The Design Engineer shall submit a copy of the approved PGE lighting plan to the 
City before commencement of any onsite or offsite work. 

j. The Contractor shall submit a copy of the final electrical inspection to the City prior 
to City acceptance of the street light system. 

k. The City and the appropriate natural resource agencies shall determine whether or 
not lighting shall be provided for shared-use paths in designated natural resource 
and wildlife areas.  

l. All street lights shall be Option “A” as defined below unless otherwise approved in 
writing by the City Engineer.  The Public Works Director will have to approve any 
alternative street illumination options (B or C) with PGE prior to approving site work 
construction plans. 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 196



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������!�

LIGHTING LEVELS 
AVERAGE MAINTAINED ILLUMINANCE ON THE HORIZONTAL 

MINIMUM AVERAGE MAINTAINED FOOT CANDLES 
Roadway 
Classification

High Pedestrian 
Conflict Area 

Medium Pedestrian 
Conflict Area 

Low Pedestrian 
Conflict Area 

Arterials 1.7 1.3 0.9 
Collectors 1.2 0.9 0.6 
Neighborhood 0.9 0.7 0.4 
Local 0.9 0.7 0.4 

Option “A” Lighting 
Under this PGE option, PGE will install, own, and maintain street lighting system. 

Poles and Street Lighting Fixtures 
Light standards (poles), luminaries, and lamps shall be on the approved PGE list, be 
approved by the City Engineer, and have the most energy efficient and maintenance-
free PGE approved lamp.  

Street Lighting Controls 
a. A single phase, 3 wire, 240 volt, dedicated unmetered service shall be provided 

by the developer for street lighting. 
b. All street light circuits shall be controlled by a single photocell installed on the 

street light fixture closest to the controller cabinet. 
c. In systems with lights on both sides of the street, the circuitry shall be designed 

such that the lights on one side of the street can be “de-energized” without 
affecting the operation of the lights on the opposite side of the street. 

d. All conduit runs, pole boxes shall be designed and installed per PGE Standards.

5.13.2  Street Trees 
Please refer to City of Newberg Development Code Chapter 15.420.020. 

5.13.3  Street Names and Traffic Control Signage 
Signs will conform to current City Sign Standards. 

 
The City’s planning division, prior to recording of any maps or plats will approve street 
names for all new development.  The city planner shall refer proposed street names to 
the Newberg Fire Department for their consideration. 
 
Street names and building numbers shall conform to the established grid system(s) in 
the City and metropolitan area.  No new street name shall be used which will duplicate 
or be confused with the name of existing streets within the Newberg Fire District. 

5.14 Permanent Dead-end Streets 
 
A standard cul-de-sac turnaround shall be provided at the end of a permanent dead end street 
that does not provide looped circulation.  Permanent dead end streets shall be limited to 
serving no more than twenty five dwellings and shall not exceed four hundred feet in length 
from the point of the nearest centerline/centerline intersection. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 197



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ������"�

A permanent dead end street is measured from the right-of-way line at the nearest intersecting 
street which has at least two points of access, to the right of way line at the furthest end of the 
dead end street.  Exceptions to the dead end street standard must comply with the Newberg 
Development Code. 
 
An existing dead end street system which is more than 600 feet long or which serves more 
than 25 dwelling units may be terminated in a cul-de-sac if no Future Street Plan has been 
adopted and the following criteria are met: 
 

a. Alternative emergency vehicle access or fire protection is provided satisfactory to the 
Manager; and, 

 
b. Neighborhood traffic circulation needs are not adversely impacted by the proposed cul-

de-sac termination of the street. 

5.15 Alleyways and Private Residential Streets/Access ways 

5.15.1 Alleyways 
 
Alleyways may be provided in commercial and industrial developments with approval 
by the City Engineer.  When approved, alleyways shall be dedicated to the City.  The 
right-of-way width shall be 20 feet with a 20 foot pavement width.   
 
Design for alleyways shall meet the same criteria as other public streets.  The 
exception to those criteria may be centerline radius and design speed.  Generally, 
alleyways shall be designed for one way operation. 

5.15.2 Private Streets 
Private streets are not allowed, refer to Newberg Municipal Code 15.505.180. 

5.15.3 Limited Residential Streets 
Design for limited residential streets shall meet the same criteria as other public 
streets including structural section and materials. 
 
The conditions for usage as set forth in the Newberg Development Code Section 
15.505.060 specify factors that will be reviewed by the governing body in 
determining feasibility. 

5.16 Local Street Design for Adverse Topography 
 
Local streets shall have a minimum cross section slope of 2.5% ("crown") in accordance with 
Standard Drawing No. 513, except in situations of adverse topography.  The Design 
Engineer may utilize an "offset" or unequal crown section when the existing ground slope 
exceeds 8.00% across the roadway section. 
 
The offset crown design shall meet the following conditions: 

1. Minimum distance from "crown" to (one) face of curb is 10 feet. 
 

2. Maximum cross slope of pavement is 5.00%. 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 198



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� ��

3. Maximum differential in top of curb elevation from one side to the other is 1 foot. 
 

The existing ground "side-slope" criteria are based on the relationship of the slope of the 
ground to the transverse slope of the roadway profile.  This relationship shall be met for the 
entire length of the roadway alignment utilizing an offset.  

5.17 Five Year Moratorium Street Cut Replacement Guidelines 

The City of Newberg has enacted a five-year moratorium on all new pavement surfaces.  This 
will include overlays, inlays, reconstruction, and new construction of at least a half street or 
greater. 
 
Anyone applying to open cut a moratorium street for utility connections, upgrading/repair of 
subsurface facilities or new street connection shall apply for the appropriate permit through the 
City of Newberg Public Works Department, Engineering Division.   
 
If the permit is approved, the applicant shall adhere to strict reconstruction guidelines to 
achieve the following goals: 

� Minimize pavement degradation 
� Maintain structural integrity of street 
� Maintain a smooth riding surface 
� Limit visual impact and perceptions  

5.18 Trench Restoration Requirement 

The actual trench cut shall be repaired as per standard drawing number 517.  Asphaltic 
concrete shall be replaced in a minimum of 2 lifts and be at least 92% of rice theoretical 
maximum density as determined in conformance with AASHTO T-209 as modified by OSHD. 
 
After performing trench cut restoration, a 2” grind/inlay for a distance of 1’ per posted mile per 
hour (mph) each direction from the cut is required.  The extent of surface grind/inlay width will 
be as follows: 

� A single lane that is impacted will have full restoration for the width of the lane 
� If multiple lanes, the full width of those lanes shall be restored 
� If impact extends past the centerline, all lanes curb to curb shall be restored 
� All inlayed asphaltic concrete shall be placed with a self-propelled slip form                

   paver. Drag boxes shall not be used 
� All tie-in joints to existing asphaltic concrete surfaces shall be sealed with                  

    rubberized asphalt emulsion (hot or cold) 
� All striping removed by grinding shall be replaced with thermoplastic.  All                   

    symbols, emblems, arrows, letters and bars shall be preformed thermoplastic  

5.18.1  Striping Restoration 
� All striping removed by grinding shall be replaced with thermoplastic.  All 

symbols, emblems, arrows, letters and bars shall be performed thermoplastic

5.19 Intersection Sight Distance 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 199



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� ��

It is the policy of the City to have the applicant’s Project Engineer evaluate safe intersection 
sight distance using the principles and methods recommended by the current edition of 
AASHTO. This policy shall apply to the design of new streets and driveways, and to the 
placement of any object in the public right-of-way, including landscaping features. Unless 
superseded by the current version of AASHTO, the following minimum standards shall apply: 
 
Intersection (and Driveway) Sight Distance: The following table is for intersection and 
driveway sight distances:  
 

INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTANCE DESIGN SPEED  
(MPH)  

MINIMUM
INTERSECTION

SIGHT DISTANCE  
(FEET)  

15  145  
20  195  
25  240  
30  290  
35  335  
40  385  
45  430  

Source: American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials, A Policy of 
Geometric Design of Highways and Streets 2001, Fourth Edition, (based on AASHTO Case B2 and 
B3). 

Sight distance shall be determined for each street approach to an intersection. A driver on the 
approach street should be able to see each vehicle on the intersecting street from the time 
that the vehicle is the sight distance from the intersection until the time that the vehicle 
reaches the intersection. Poles, trees, and similar obstructions will be allowed within the sight 
distance area only if it can be shown that such obstructions do not prevent the continuous 
view of the vehicle approaching on the intersecting street.  
 
For purposes of this calculation, the driver’s eye is assumed to be 15 feet from the near edge 
of the nearest lane of the intersecting street, and at a height range of 3.5 feet to 7.6 feet above 
the approach street pavement. The sight distance criteria should be met throughout the range 
of driver’s eye heights. The top of the vehicle on the intersecting street is assumed to be 3.5 
feet above the cross-street pavement.  
 
The traffic speed used in the calculation shall be the highest of the following: (1) the design 
speed of the intersecting street; (2) the posted speed of the intersecting street; or (3) the 
measured 85th percentile speed of the intersecting street. Where the intersecting street is 
controlled by a stop sign or yield sign, a design speed of zero may be assumed. Where traffic 
signal control exists at an intersection or where a traffic signal is likely to be installed in the 
future, adequate sight distance shall be provided for potential right turns on red. In some 
locations, maintenance of the required sight distance may require restrictions to potential 
development outside the public right-of-way. The Project Engineer shall demonstrate that 
adequate restrictions are in place (and enforceable by the City such as sight distance 
easements) to assure that the required sight distance can be maintained in the future.  
 
At the time of construction plan submittal, the project engineer shall submit a stamped 
intersectional sight distance report for each new or modified intersection by a development 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 200



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� ��

which generally includes a sketch, calculations, narrative,  and photographs, for review by the 
City. 
 
No modifications or exceptions to these standards shall be allowed unless approved by the 
City Engineer.

******END OF SECTION***** 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 201



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� ��

Appendix A 
PLANTING REQUIREMENTS 

 
A1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 
A1.1  General 

 
The City recognizes the need to improve water quality and preserve aquatic species. To meet 
the intent of both the federal Clean Water and the Endangered Species Acts, the City 
developed requirements for planting Stormwater Facilities. 

 
Successful vegetation of Stormwater Facilities is key for the benefit of water quality and 
quantity management, and aquatic species preservation. This Appendix aids professionals, 
the development community, and field crews in planning, designing and implementing 
successful vegetation projects.  This document guides design decisions to promote successful 
planting efforts, while allowing flexibility to address opportunities and constraints at each site.  

 
A1.2  Jurisdiction 

Most Sensitive Areas are regulated by the Division of State Lands (DSL) and/or the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers (Corps). Where the Corps and/or DSL permit mitigation, planting plans for 
these areas shall follow DSL and Corps guidelines and approved plans. Stormwater Facilities 
are regulated by the City and the plans and management strategies for these areas shall 
follow the steps outlined in this document.   Alternative plans and management strategies may 
be approved by the City 

 
A1.3 Professional Assistance   

Vegetation in Stormwater Facilities should facilitate succession toward low-maintenance plant 
communities.  Consultation with a professional landscape architect, ecologist, or horticulturist 
knowledgeable in native plants is highly recommended when preparing plans. Satisfying the 
landscaping requirements may require the services of a registered landscape architect. See 
ORS 671.310 through 671.459. 

 
Non-native, invasive plant management and wildlife damage management strategies may 
need to be developed.  Especially challenging management situations may require assistance 
from a landscape maintenance contractor or a wildlife biologist.  

A2.0 PLANTING PLAN METHODS 
 

Planting plans shall be required for development projects with Stormwater Facilities.  When a 
planting plan is required, four major components shall be addressed: hydrology, soils, plant 
materials, and maintenance.  When developing planting plans, the following steps should be 
used: 

A2.1 Step 1: Assess Hydrologic and Hydraulic Conditions 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 202



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� ��

 
a.   Determine the frequency and duration of water inundation, including appropriate 

elevations of the vegetation area.  In some cases, current site conditions (i.e. 
wetland presence) will suffice.  For Stormwater Facilities, the models used to 
design and size the facility shall be used to determine frequency, duration and 
surface water elevations within the facility.   
 

b.   Assign appropriate hydrologic zones to the vegetation area and apply them to the 
plan. Most project sites include one or more of the following planting zones with 
respect to hydrology during the growing season: 

 
1. Wet - standing or flowing water/nearly constant saturation; anaerobic soils 
 
2. Moist - periodically saturated; anaerobic and/or aerobic soils 
 
3. Dry - infrequent inundation/saturation, if any; aerobic soils 

 
A2.2 Step 2:  Assess Soil Conditions and Assign Appropriate Preparation
 
Specifications to Plans 

 
a.  Determine the organic content and non-native, invasive seed bank likely in the soil.  

For most Stormwater Facilities, the soil is often high in clay, gravel, or minerals 
devoid of topsoil and organic material, and/or high in non-native, invasive weed 
content.  The conditions in Sensitive Areas and adjacent areas can vary greatly. 

 
b.  For upland sites with at least one foot of native topsoil, but containing a non-native, 

invasive seed bank or plants, add notes to the plan to remove the undesirable 
plants, roots, and seeds prior to planting.   

 
c.  For upland sites with either disturbed and compacted soils or less than one foot of 

topsoil and invasive, non-native seed bank or plants that have become established, 
the following notes shall be added to the plan: 

 
1.  Remove the undesirable plants, roots, and seeds prior to adding topsoil.  
 
2.  Till the sub-grade in these areas to a depth of at least four inches and add at least 

12 inches of clean compost-amended topsoil. The compost-amended topsoil shall 
have the following characteristics to ensure a good growing medium: 
A) Texture – material passes through one-inch screen 
B) Fertility – 35% organic matter 
C) In lieu amending onsite soils, the contractor can import a certified amended soil 

in the treatment area which is composed of equal parts of organic compost, 
gravelly sand and topsoil. Compost is weed-free, decomposed, non-woody plant 
material; animal waste is not allowed. Check with the City of Newberg or Clean 
Water Services for Seal of Testing Approval Program (STA) Compost provider. 

 
3.  In the event of floodplain grading, over-excavate the sub grade to ensure 12 inches 

of topsoil can be applied without impacting surface water elevations.    
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 203



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� ��

a. For wet areas in Sensitive Areas and Stormwater Facilities, the soil conditions 
shall be hydric or graded to hold sufficient water to promote hydric soil 
formation.  The addition of organic muck soil will improve plant establishment 
for some bulbs and tubers. 

b. Where appropriate and necessary for erosion control or to enhance organic 
matter, leaf compost may be placed uniformly on topsoil. (Refer  the Erosion 
and Sediment Control Manual). Other amendments, conditioners, and bio-
amendments may be added as needed to support the specified plants or adjust 
the soil pH.  Traditional fertilization techniques (applying N-P-K) are not 
necessary for native plants. 

 
A2.3 Step 3:  Identify Plants to be Preserved 

 
Select Re-vegetation Plant Materials, Quantities, Placement, and Assign 
Planting Zones and Specifications to Plans 

 
a. Preservation: Every effort shall be made to protect a site’s existing native 

vegetation. Native vegetation along Sensitive Areas and adjacent areas shall be 
retained to the maximum extent practicable.  

 
b. Selection:  Plant selection shall be from a native species palette and shall 

consider site soil types, hydrologic conditions, and shade requirements.  
Containerized or bare root plants may be used.  A list of common native plant 
community types appropriate for planting Sensitive Areas, Vegetated Corridors 
and Stormwater Facilities are provided in Planting Tables.  Upon approval from 
the City, limited use of non-invasive non-native plants may be permitted in 
highly urbanized and other unique settings such as regional town centers. 
Unless approved by the City Engineer, planting restrictions are limited to the 
following: 

 
1. Deep rooting trees and shrubs (e.g. willow) shall not be planted on top of 

concrete pipes, or within 10 feet of retaining walls, inlet/outlet structures or other 
culverts; and  

 
2. Large trees or shrubs shall not be planted on berms over four feet tall that 

impound water.  Small trees or shrubs with fibrous root systems may be 
installed on berms that impound water and are less than four feet tall. 

 
c. Quantities:   
 
1. Vegetated Corridors and Sensitive Areas 
Trees and shrubs shall be planted using the following equations to achieve the 
specified densities: 
 

A) Total number of trees: 1 tree per every 200 square feet of area. 
B) Total number of shrubs: 1 shrub per every 100 square feet of area. 
C) Groundcover: plants and seeds to achieve 100% areal coverage 

 
2. Stormwater Facilities 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 204



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� ��

A) Stormwater Facilities in tracts or easements less than 30 feet wide shall 
be planted using the following equations to achieve the specified 
densities on a per acre basis: 

i. Total number of shrubs: 1 shrub per every 100 square feet of area. 
ii. Groundcover: plant and seed to achieve 100% areal coverage 

B) Stormwater Facilities in tracts or easements 30 feet wide or more shall 
be planted using the following equations to achieve the specified 
densities on a per acre basis: 

i. Total number of trees: 1 tree per every 200 square feet of area. 
ii. Total number of shrubs: 1 shrub per every 100 square feet of area. 
iii. Groundcover: plant and seed to achieve 100% areal coverage 

 
d. Size:  Potted plants shall follow size requirements outlined in (Planting Tables). 

 Bare root plants shall be 12 to 16 inches long. 
 
e. Placement:  Plant placement shall be consistent with naturally occurring plant 

communities. Trees and shrubs shall be placed in singles or clusters of the 
same species to provide a natural planting scheme. This arrangement may 
follow curved rows to facilitate maintenance.  Distribution and relative 
abundance shall be dependent on the plant species and on the size of the re-
vegetation area.  The Vegetated Corridor re-vegetation area shall be over 
seeded with native seed mixes appropriate to the plant community and 
hydrologic zone of the site (see Planting Tables): Plant Communities for Re-
vegetation). Plant placement and seeding shall promote maximum vegetative 
cover to minimize weed establishment.  

 
A2.4 Step 4:  Determine Plant Installation Requirements and Assign Specifications to 

Plans
 
a. Timing 

Containerized stock shall be installed only from February 1 through May 1 and 
October 1 through November 15.  Bare root stock shall be installed only from 
December 15 through April 15. Plantings outside these times may require 
additional measures to ensure survival which shall be specified on the plans.   

 
b. Erosion Control 

Grading, soil preparation, and seeding shall be performed during optimal 
weather conditions and at low flow levels to minimize sediment impacts. Site 
disturbance shall be minimized and desirable vegetation retained, where 
possible.  Slopes shall be graded to support the establishment of vegetation. 
Where seeding is used for erosion control, an appropriate native grass, Regreen 
(or its equivalent), or sterile wheat shall be used to stabilize slopes until 
permanent vegetation is established. Biodegradable fabrics (coir, coconut or 
approved jute matting (minimum 1/4” square holes) may be used to stabilize 
slopes and channels.  Fabrics such as burlap may be used to secure plant plugs 
in place and to discourage floating upon inundation.  No plastic mesh that can 
entangle wildlife is permitted.  Refer to the Erosion and Sediment Control 
Manual for additional information. 

 
c. Mulching 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 205



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����  �

Trees, shrubs, and groundcovers planted in upland areas shall be mulched a 
minimum of three inches in depth and 18 inches in diameter, to retain moisture 
and discourage weed growth around newly installed plant material. Appropriate 
mulches are made from composted bark or leaves that have not been 
chemically treated. The use of mulch in frequently inundated areas shall be 
limited, to avoid any possible water quality impacts including the leaching of 
tannins and nutrients, and the migration of mulch into waterways. 

 
d. Plant Protection from Wildlife 

Depending on site conditions, appropriate measures shall be taken to limit 
wildlife-related damage. 

 
e. Irrigation 

Appropriate plant selection, along with adequate site preparation and 
maintenance, reduces the need for irrigation. However, unless site hydrology is 
currently adequate, a City approved irrigation system or equivalent (i.e., 
polymer, plus watering) shall be used during the two-year plant establishment 
period. Watering shall be at a minimum rate of at least one inch per week from 
June 15 through October 15.  Other irrigation techniques, such as deep 
watering, may be allowed with prior approval by the City Engineer. 

 
f. Access 

Maintenance access for plant maintenance shall be provided for Sensitive Areas 
and Vegetated Corridors via a five-foot easement or shared boundary with 
Stormwater Facilities.  Stormwater Facility access requirements are provided in 
the Storm Drainage Chapter.  

 
A2.5 Step 5:  Determine Plant Monitoring and Maintenance Requirements  

 
a. Monitoring 

Site visits are necessary throughout the growing season to assess the status of 
the plantings, irrigation, mulching, etc. and ensure successful re-vegetation. 

 
b. Weed Control 

The removal of non-native, invasive weeds shall be necessary throughout the 
maintenance period, or until a healthy stand of desirable vegetation is 
established. 

 
c. Plant Replacement and Preservation 

Installed plants that fail to meet site review inspections by the City Engineer 
shall be replaced during the maintenance period.  Prior to replacement, the 
cause of loss (wildlife damage, poor plant stock, etc.) shall be documented by a 
landscape, arboriculture, and/or wildlife specialist with a description of the 
corrective actions taken.  

 
A2.6 Step 6:  Prepare Construction Documents and Specifications 

 
The construction documents and specifications shall include: 

 
a. Sensitive Area and Vegetated Corridor boundaries that include limits of 

approved, temporary construction encroachment. Orange construction fencing 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 206



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� !�

shall be noted at Vegetated Corridor boundaries as well as at encroachment 
limits during construction. Note permanent type fencing and signage between 
the development and the Vegetated Corridor for project completion is required. 

 
b. Site Preparation plan and specifications, including limits of clearing, existing 

plants and trees to be preserved, and methods for removal and control of 
invasive, non-native species, and location and depth of topsoil and or compost 
to be added to re-vegetation area. 

 
c. Planting plan and specifications, including all of the following: 

1. Planting table that documents the common name, scientific name, 
distribution (zone and spacing), condition and size of plantings 

2. Installation methods for plant materials 
3. Mulching 
4. Plant tagging for identification 
5. Plant protection 
6. Seeding mix, methods, rates, and areas  

 
d. Irrigation plan and specifications, including identification of water source, 

watering timing and frequency, and maintenance of the system. 
 
e. Maintenance schedule; including responsible party and contact information, 

dates of inspection (minimum three per growing season and one prior to onset 
of growing season) and estimated maintenance schedule (as necessary) over 
the two-year monitoring period. 

 
f. Easement descriptions for all Vegetated Corridor and Sensitive Areas that are 

required as part of the development. 
 
g. Good rated corridor notes i.e. invasive species removal resulting in cleared 

areas exceeding 25 square feet shall be replanted with native vegetation.  
 
h. Access points for installation and maintenance including vehicle access if 

available. 
 
i. Standard drawing details (north arrow, scale bar, property boundaries, project 

name, drawing date, name of designer and Property Owner). 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 207



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� ����� "�

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 208



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!��

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 209



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!��

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 210



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!��

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 211



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!��

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 212



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!��

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 213



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!��

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 214



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!��

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 215



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����! �

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 216



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!!�

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 217



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����!"�

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 218



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"��

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 219



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"��

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 220



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"��

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 221



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"��

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 222



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"��

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 223



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"��

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 224



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"��

City of Newberg 

Standard Drawings 
 
 
General Information 100 Series 
 Tree and Shrub Clearances 101 
 Utility Service Locations 102 
 Utilities Plan 103 
 Bollard 104 
 Residential Fences, Walls, and Clearance Areas 105 
 Fences and Walls Interior Lots 106 
 Tree Grate and Frame 107 
 Street Tree 108 
                                                                                                                                     
Waste Water  200 Series 
 Trench Backfill 201A 
 Pipe Bedding  201B 
 Manhole Base 203 
 48” Standard  204 
 Oversized Manhole                                                                        205 
 Inside Drop Manhole 206 
 Number Reserved 207 
 Offset Manhole 208 
 Waste Water Manhole Frame and Cover  209 
 Clean Out  210 
 Service Branch 211 
 Double WYE Service Branch 212 
 Traffic Box  213 
 Manhole Abandonment  214 
 Manhole Removal  215 
 
Water  300 Series 
 Water Pipe Bedding  301 
 Water Tapping Sleeves 302 
 Valve Box Assembly 303 
 Valve Box and Cover  304 
 MJ Holding Spool 305 
 Joint Restraint 306 
 Standard 3/4” and 1” Water Service 307 
 Double Water Service 308 
 Standard 1 ½” and 2” Water Service 309 
 Water Line Crossing 310 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 225



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����" �

 Blow-Off Assembly  311 
 Fire Hydrant Assembly 312 
 Valve Locations and Spacing 313 
 1” Combination Air-Vacuum Release Assembly                          314 
 Cathodic Protection                                                        316 
 Vault and Water Service                   317 
 Water Service for 3” and Larger                                318 
 Trench Dam                                                                          319 
 
Storm Sewer 400 Series 
 Catch Basin 401 
 Catch Basin Frame and Grate 402 
 Ditch Interceptor Type A 403 
 Ditch Interceptor Frame and Grate Type A 404 
 Pelican Catch Basin 407 
 Oversized Pelican Catch Basin 409 
 Supersized Pelican Catch Basin 410 
 Storm Water Manhole Frame and Cover 411 
 Shallow Manhole 412 
 Water Quality Manhole (mechanical) 413 
 Water Quality Manhole (Snout) A 414 
 Water Quality Manhole (Snout) B 415 
 Flow Control Structure 416A 
 Flow Control Structure Notes & Orifice                                        416B 
 Outflow Control Structure 417 
 Orifice Plate & Guide 418 
 Chain Link Fence and Gate 419 
 Concrete Spreader 420 
 Removable Bollard 421 
 Rip Rap Specifications 422 
 
LIDA                                                                                            450 Series 
 Design Steps, General Notes & Growing Med.                             450 
 LIDA Sizing Form                                                                          451 
 Flow Through Planter                                                                    452  

Infiltration Planter                                                                          453 
 Public Planter (with parking)                                                          454 
 Public Planter (without parking)                                                     455 
 Public Planter (section view)                                                         456 
 Rain Garden                                                                                  457 
 Vegetated Filter Strip                                                                     458 
 Porous Pavement                                                                          459 
 Vegetated Swale                                                                           460 
 Extended Dry Basin                                                                       461 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 226



 

�������	
�������������������	����������������� �����"!�

 Curb Cut                                                                                        462 
 Perforated Pipe                                                                             463 
 Liner Attachment & Pipe Boot                                                       464 
 Concrete Check Dam for Planters                                                 465 
 Public Planter Walls                                                                      466 
 Street Tree                                                                                    467 
 Meter and Hydrant Locations                                                        468 
 Planting (planter landscape template)                                           469 

Street  500 Series 
 Curb and Gutter  501 
 Curb Type “C” 502 
 Sidewalk Type “A” 503 
 Sidewalk Type “B” 504 
 Curb Ramp Locations 505 
 Sidewalk Ramp Type “A” Sidewalk 506 
 Sidewalk Ramp Type “B” Sidewalk  507 
 Driveway Apron Curb Cut Type “A” Sidewalk 508 
 Driveway Apron Curb Cut Type “B” Sidewalk 509 
 Commercial Driveway   510 
 Industrial Driveway  511 
 Cul-de-sac 512 
 Residential Street Cross Section 513 
 Intersection Paving Plan 514 
 Street Monumentation  515 
 Street Barricades 516A 
 Street Barricade Post Support Detail 516B 
 Trench Paving  517 
 Pavement Seal Coat Pattern 518  
 Rain Drain Curb Cut Out 519 
 Asphalt Overlay Typical Section 520 
 Sign Post 521 
 Street Light 522 
 Sign Clearances  523 
 Street Sign and Post Locations  524A 
 Typical Sign Assembly 524B 
 Standard Signpost Ground Applications 525A 
 Standard Signpost Concrete Applications 525B 
 Structural Street Sections 527 
 Valley Gutter  528 
 Approved Fire Department 529 
 

 

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 227



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 228



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 229



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 230



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 231



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 232



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 233



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 234



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 235



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 236



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 237



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 238



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 239



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 240



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 241



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 242



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 243



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 244



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 245



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 246



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 247



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 248



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 249



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 250



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 251



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 252



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 253



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 254



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 255



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 256



Diameter 90° 45° 22 1/2° 11 1/4° 4" 6" 8" 10" 12"
4" 30 23 20 19 44 -- 37 53 65 77

6" 35 25 21 20 55 -- -- 38 53 67

8" 40 27 22 20 66 -- -- -- 37 54

10" 44 29 23 21 76 -- -- -- -- 51

12" 49 31 24 21 86 -- -- -- -- --

Horizontal Bend Reducer                       
(restrained length for large diamter side)

Dead End

LENGTH (L1) OF PIPE REQUIRED FOR RESTRAINT (FEET)

Branch 
Pipe 

Diameter
LR=0 LR=2 LR=4 LR=6 LR=8 LR=10 LR=12 LR=14 LR=16 LR=18

4" 44 30 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19

6" 55 45 36 26 19 19 19 19 19 19

8" 66 59 52 44 37 30 23 19 19 19

10" 76 70 64 58 53 47 41 35 30 24

12" 86 81 76 71 67 62 57 52 47 43

LENGTH (L1) OF PIPE REQUIRED FOR RESTRAINT WHEN USING TEES (FEET)
Tee configurations (Restraint length for Branch)

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 257



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 258



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 259



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 260



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 261



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 262



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 263



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 264



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 265



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 266



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 267



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 268



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 269



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 270



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 271



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 272



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 273



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 274



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 275



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 276



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 277



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 278



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 279



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 280



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 281



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 282



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 283



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 284



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 285



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 286



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 287



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 288



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 289



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 290



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 291



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 292



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 293



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 294



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 295



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 296



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 297



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 298



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 299



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 300



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 301



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 302



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 303



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 304



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 305



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 306



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 307



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 308



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 309



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 310



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 311



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 312



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 313



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 314



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 315



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 316



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 317



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 318



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 319



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 320



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 321



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 322



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 323



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 324



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 325



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 326



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 327



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 328



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 329



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 330



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 331



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 332



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 333



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 334



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 335



Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 336



Length 
(feet)

Width 
(feet)

Turnarounds Required

0-150' 20' None Required

151'-500' 20'
120' hammerhead, 60' "Y", or         

96' diameter cul-de-sac

501'-750' 26'
120' hammerhead, 60' "Y", or         

96' diameter cul-de-sac
OVER 750'            SPECIAL APPROVAL REQUIRED

Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 2014-3117

Page 337



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 338


	Agenda
	Resolution No. 2014-3114 - Utility Billing Clerk Appointment
	Resolution No. 2014-3115 - Engineering Fee Schedule
	Ordinance No. 2014-2770 - 9th Street Vacation
	Enterprise Zone Application to the State
	Resolution No. 2014-3116 - ESC Manual & Standard Details
	Resolution No. 2014-3117 - Design Standard Manual and Drawings



